
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 18, 2024 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular City Council meeting of March 4, 2024. 

Agenda Revisions 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 

business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing to consider entering into an Agreement for Private Development, and to consider 
conveyance of city-owned real estate to Blackhawk Properties, LLC. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 03/09/2024) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development and a 
Minimum Assessment Agreement; and approving and authorizing execution of a Deed Without 
Warranty, conveying certain city-owned real estate to Blackhawk Properties, LLC. 

3. Public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to the City’s floodplain regulations. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 03/09/2024) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the City’s 
floodplain regulations, upon its first consideration. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

4. Receive and file the Committee of Whole minutes of March 4, 2024 relative to the following items: 
a) Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DEI) Update. 
b) Automated Refuse Collection Rates. 
c) Cease Fire Update and Discussion. 

5. Receive and file the following resignation of members from Boards and Commissions: 
a) Jennifer Onuigbo, Human Rights Commission. 

6. Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Paul Lee, Civil Service Commission, term ending 04/01/2028. 

7. Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to the following certified 
lists: 
a) Aquatics Recreation Programs Supervisor. 
b) Planner II. 
c) Public Safety Officer. 

8. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Barn Happy, 11310 University Avenue, Special Class B retail native wine - renewal. 
b) Chilitos Mexican Bar and Grill, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
c) Social House, 2208 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Second State Brewing, 203 State Street, Class C retail alcohol - temporary outdoor 
service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – November 15, 2024) 
e) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol, Special Class A beer - 
temporary outdoor service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – November 15, 2024) 
f) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - temporary outdoor 
service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – November 15, 2024) 
g) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
temporary additional outdoor service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – November 15, 2024) 
h) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - temporary outdoor service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – 
November 15, 2024) 
i) Trigger Time Sims, 4302 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol – new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

9. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

10. Resolution approving and accepting Quit Claim Deeds from Team Property Management, L.C. and 
OneNeck Data Center Holdings, LLC for the conveyance of approximately 2.5 feet along the 
Northern Boundary of Lot 1, Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase I. 

11. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove a tree from the 
property located at 307 N. Francis Street. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for 2024 City Initiative Day of Service 
with the Iowa Commission on Volunteer Service. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Collaborative Program Agreement with the 
Black Hawk Tennis Club relative to providing Youth Tennis Lessons, in conjunction with the summer 
recreational programs. 

14. Resolution approving and adopting 2023 Small Area Fair Market Rents (SAFMRs) payment 
standards for the Housing Choice Voucher Program relative to the Section-8 Housing Program. 

2



Page 3 of 3 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement for asbestos testing 
and clearance monitoring services with Hawkeye Environmental relative to property located at 1218 
Cottage Row Road. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Amendment Number One to the Subaward 
Agreement with the Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management Division 
(HSEMD) for an extension of the Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) Program 
grant funding relative to Stormwater Resilience Planning. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with Cedar Pak, LLC, relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for the 
Casey's General Store located at 1620 West 1st Street. 

18. Resolution receiving and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of Aspro, Inc. in the amount of 
$1,023,036.30, being the only bid received for the 2024 Street Restoration Project.  

19. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Dave Schmitt 
Construction Co. in the amount of $3,606,866.70, for the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction 
Project Phase 2.  

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of six City of Cedar Falls Owner Purchase 
Agreements; and approving and accepting three Black Hawk County Permanent Easements, and 
approving and accepting seventeen Temporary Construction Easements, in conjunction with the 
West Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project. 

21. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting April 1, 2024 as the date of public hearing, on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the West Viking Road 
Reconstruction and Trail Project. 

Ordinances 

22. Pass an ordinance adopting the Code of Ordinances for the City of Cedar Falls, upon its first 
consideration. 

23. Pass an ordinance, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicle, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the speed limit on certain portions of Center Street, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

24. Allow Bills and Claims for March 18, 2024. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

25. Refer to Work Session a discussion on the future planning of the current Cedar Falls High School 
site and the Sartori/MercyOne hospital site. 

26. Refer to Work Session or Committee of the Whole a discussion of the future land use map, 
Resilience Plan, and flood plain maps regarding future development planning and how we’re 
addressing potential impacts on our waterways (especially Dry Run Creek and its watershed). 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, MARCH 4, 2024 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR DANIEL LAUDICK PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:02 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, 
Hawbaker (via zoom), Ganfield, Dunn. Absent: Crisman. Mayor Laudick led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
54656 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of February 19, 2024 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54657 -     Mayor Laudick read a statement regarding the request for a ceasefire in the 

Israel -Gaza war on behalf of the Council. 
 
54658 - Mark Suchy, Cedar Falls, expressed concerns with the speed limit on Center 

Street. 
 
  Sonja Bock, Cedar Falls, expressed her support of DEI efforts and asked for 

continued support and an Advisory Board. Bock also commented on civic 
engagement and diversity. 

 
  The following individuals spoke in support of and requested City Council pass a 

resolution demanding an immediate and permanent ceasefire in Gaza: 
 

  Amelia Gotera, Cedar Falls 
  Ev Wilson, Waterloo 
  Sam Blatt, Waterloo 
  Byron Plumly, Cedar Falls 
  Xandra, Cedar Falls 

Sam Trumble, Cedar Falls 
Jason Droste, Cedar Falls 

  Brad Krugg, Cedar Falls 
  John Greer, Cedar Falls 
  Kyle Karkosh, Waterloo 
  Charlie Grove, Waterloo 
   
  Mary Carol, Cedar Falls, thanked Council for the statement Mayor read earlier in 

the meeting. 
 
   Josh Wilson, Cedar Falls, thanked Councilmembers and the Mayor for their 

response regarding a ceasefire resolution and encouraged individuals to contact 
State Legislators and Congress. 

 
   UNI Student Liaison Hackbart announced UNI Day at the Capitol on March 5, 

2024, from 11 AM – 2 PM. 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

     
   Pastor Larry Stumme, St. Paul Lutheran Church, commented on Martin Luther 

King, Civil Rights, and difficulties the black community faces and requested 
Waterloo and Cedar Falls work together as one community. 

 
   Aliya Rahman, Waterloo, spoke of the culture and climate of Cedar Falls. 
 
   Reverend Michael Blackwell, Cedar Falls, commented on racism and the quality 

of life in Cedar Falls.  
 
  Briane Brisco, commented on racism in Cedar Falls. 
 
54659 - Director of Finance & Business Operations Rodenbeck announced a Career Fair 

on Saturday, March 23, 2024, at the Public Works Complex from 10 AM – 1 PM 
and invited the public to participate in a survey regarding the Downtown Parking 
Feasibility Study. Rodenbeck responded to a comment by Councilmember 
Kruse. 

 
54660 - Mayor Laudick announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

24, 2024, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2024 Street Restoration 
Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
54661 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Principal Engineer Claypool 
provided a summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present 
wishing to speak about the proposed project, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
54662 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Schultz that Resolution #23,507, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2024 Street Restoration Project, be adopted. Following questions by 
Councilmembers Ganfield and Latta, and responses by Claypool, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Dunn. 
Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,507 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
54663 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that Ordinance #3049, amending 

Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the 
Cemetery Section, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, 
Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Ordinance #3049 duly passed and adopted. 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
54664 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Latta that Ordinance #3050, amending 

Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicle, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the 
speed limit on certain portions of West 27th Street, be passed upon its third and 
final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Dunn. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3050 duly 
passed and adopted. 

   
54665 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed, and approved: 
 

Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of February 19, 
2024 relative to the following items: 
a) Railroad Crossing Elimination (RCE) Grant Application 2024 – Potential 
regional application: Cedar Falls, Butler County, & Shell Rock. 
b) Budget Presentation. 

 Approve the application of Casey's #4553, 1525 W. Ridgeway Avenue, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service -renewal. 
c) Hillstreet News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street, Class E retail alcohol - 
renewal. 
d) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class B retail alcohol - change in ownership. 
e) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class B retail alcohol - change in 
ownership. 
f) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class B retail alcohol - change in ownership. 
g) Kwik Spirits, 4116 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - change in 
ownership. 
h) Patton, 317 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - new. 
i) Casey’s, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - new. 

 Motion carried unanimously.   

54666 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Latta that the following resolutions be 
introduced and adopted: 

Resolution #23,508, approving local match for Housing Trust Fund program in 
the amount of $2,620.00. 

Resolution #23,509, in support of a grant application to the Iowa Arts Council 
relative to Hearst Center cultural programs. 

Resolution #23,510, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Brad Jacobson relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

Resolution #23,511, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Brent Dahlstrom relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for 
the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,512, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Cedar Valley Arboretum at Hawkeye Community College relative 
to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade 
Project. 

Resolution #23,513, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Cedar Valley Dental Associates relative to Panthers on Parade 
Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,514, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with College Hill Partnership relative to Panthers on Parade 
Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,515, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Community Bank & Trust relative to Panthers on Parade 
Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

Resolution #23,516, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with First Bank relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the 
TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

Resolution #23,517, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with GreenState Credit Union relative to Panthers on Parade 
Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

Resolution #23,518, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Hansen’s Dairy relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for 
the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

Resolution #23,519, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Hy-Vee relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC 
mascots Panthers on Parade Project 

Resolution #23,520, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with JCAM Properties LLC, relative to Panthers on Parade 
Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,521, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with John Deere relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the 
TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

Resolution #23,522, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Martin Bros. relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the 
TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Resolution #23,523, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Peters Construction Corp. relative to Panthers on Parade 
Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,524, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with SCHEELS relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the 
TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

Resolution #23,525, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Soifer Family McDonald's relative to Panthers on Parade 
Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,526, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Structure Real Estate relative to Panthers on Parade 
Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,527, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with The Brass Tap relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for 
the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,528, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with the University of Northern Iowa relative to relative to TC mascots 
for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,529, approving and authorizing execution of a sponsorship 
agreement with UNITE Credit Union relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship 
for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,530, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Urban Pie relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the 
TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

Resolution #23,531, approving and authorizing execution of a sponsorship 
agreement with Veridian Credit Union relative to relative to TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,532, approving and authorizing execution of a sponsorship 
agreement with Western Home Communities relative to TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,533, approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship 
Agreement with Witham Auto relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the 
TC mascots Panthers on Parade Community Pride Project. 

Resolution #23,534, approving and authorizing execution of a Temporary 
Encroachment Agreement with the College Hill Neighborhood Association d/b/a 
College Hill Partnership relative to TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade 
Project. 

Resolution #23,535, approving and authorizing execution of a Temporary 
Encroachment Agreement with Community Bank & Trust relative to TC mascots 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,536, approving and authorizing execution of a Temporary 
Encroachment Agreement with Structure Real Estate relative to TC mascots for 
the Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,537, approving and authorizing execution of a Temporary 
Encroachment Agreement with Burtis Core, Inc., d/b/a The Brass Tap relative to 
TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

Resolution #23,538, approving and authorizing execution of a Planned 
Residential (RP) Zoning District Development Procedures Agreement for Panther 
West with Panther Farms, LLC relative to 54.79 Acres of land located North of 
Aldrich Elementary School and South of West Greenhill Road. 

Resolution #23,539, approving and authorizing submission of a Swift Current 
Mitigation Grant application to Iowa Department of Homeland Security and 
Emergency Management (IDHSEM) for hazard mitigation relative to purchasing 
repetitive loss (RL) and severe repetitive loss (SRL) properties in northern Cedar 
Falls. 

Resolution #23,540, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Boulder Contracting, LLC for the 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project, 
Zone 1. 

Resolution #23,541, approving the Final Statement of Expenditures for the 2023 
Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 1. 

Resolution #23,542, setting March 18, 2024 as the date of public hearing to 
consider entering into an Agreement for Private Development, and to consider 
conveyance of city-owned real estate to Blackhawk Properties, LLC. 

Resolution #23,543, setting March 18, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to the City’s floodplain regulations. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,508 through #23,543 duly 
passed and adopted. 

54667 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the bills and claims of 
March 4, 2024 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. 

          
54668 -  It was moved by Schultz and seconded by Kruse to refer to a City Council 

Meeting, an ordinance to change the speed limit on Center Street between Lone 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

Tree Road and Clair Street to be a continuous 25 mph. Following comments and 
questions by Councilmembers Schultz, Kruse, Latta, Ganfield, and Dunn, and 
responses by Director of Public Works Schrage, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to refer to Committee of the 

Whole discussion on regular Council Meetings be held on Tuesdays. Following 
comments by Councilmembers Kruse, Dunn and Latta, and Mayor Laudick, the 
motion carried 4-2, with Schultz and Dunn voting Nay. 

     
54669 - It was moved by Latta and seconded by Ganfield that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:33 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
                                                           __________________________________ 
                                                           Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

10

Item 1.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: March 7, 2024 

SUBJECT:      Blackhawk Properties, LLC Economic Development Project 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
For the past several months, staff has been working with representatives of Blackhawk 
Properties, LLC on an industrial park project which will result in the construction of a 
new 78,000 square foot industrial building. A portion of this building would be for the 
new home of Rice Companies, who recently located in Cedar Falls, and the building 
would also include a number of individual industrial lease spaces as well. The proposed 
project will occur on Lot 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, which is a 7.57-
acre lot located at the corner of Technology Parkway and Innovation Drive within the 
new expansion area of the West Viking Road Industrial Park. This new facility, when 
fully completed, will have a minimum building valuation of $6,267,360 and a total project 
minimum assessed valuation of $6,873,360 (including land). 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
 

As noted above, the proposed building will be 78,000 square feet in size and will be 
located along Innovation Drive and Technology Parkway within the West Viking Road 
Industrial Park (see attached map for location). The proposed building will be 
constructed in three separate phases, with the initial phase I portion of the building 
being 29,222 square feet in size. This first phase of the building project will be for the 
new home of Rice Companies, which is a company that recently located in Cedar Falls 
and is currently located in a temporary lease space within the Cedar Falls Industrial and 
Technology Park. Phase II of the project would include the construction of a 24,561 
square foot addition to the building, and phase III of the project would include another 
24,561 square foot addition, for a total building size of just over 78,000 square feet. The 
phase II and phase III building additions will be made available for lease, with each unit 
having its own entry door, overhead door and dock door. The timing of the construction 
of the phase II and phase III additions is spelled out within the development agreement, 
however the developer is hopeful that the additions will be constructed on a faster 
timeline based on tenant interest in the lease spaces. 
 

11

Item 2.



As indicated above, the proposed project will have a total minimum building valuation of 
$6,267,360, and a total project valuation including land of $6,873,360. This is broken 
down into a phase I valuation of $2,943,760, a phase II valuation of $1,964,800, and a 
phase III valuation of $1,964,800. The developer plans to commence construction of the 
phase I project this year with completion anticipated within 12-18 months.  

 

COMPANY PROFILE 
 

Blackhawk Properties, LLC (“Blackhawk”) is an entity owned and controlled by the 
owners of Rice Companies, Inc. Blackhawk Properties, LLC was formed for the 
exclusive purpose of developing and owning the real estate for Rice Companies’ new 
office in the Cedar Falls market.  Rice Companies is a full service, integrated design, 
construction and real estate firm that offers a seamless delivery of construction services 
to its clients. Founded in 1953, Rice Companies is on its 3rd generation of Rice family 
leadership.  Rice Companies is headquartered in Sauk Rapids, MN with additional 
offices in Glencoe, MN, Mankato, MN, Fargo, ND, Sioux Falls, SD and most recently, 
Cedar Falls, IA.  Rice Companies is one of few firms in the Midwest that offers true 
single source construction services, which include in-house licensed Architects & 
Engineers, Construction Management, Self-Performing Field Crews, Real Estate 
Brokerage, Dedicated Service/Maintenance and Commercial Development 
Services.  Built on a foundation of family forward values, the determination to be 
passionately innovative, continuously accountable, collaborative and relationship driven. 
Rice Companies’ 150+ team members are active in the communities they serve and 
committed to building long-standing partnerships.  With over 80% of Rice Companies’ 
business being repeat clients, they pride themselves on earning the next project for their 
clients. Rice Companies is very thankful for the opportunity that the City of Cedar Falls 
has presented and looks forward to expanding its footprint with new relationships in the 
Cedar Valley market. 
 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES 

Land Incentive 

 

For this proposed project, Blackhawk Properties, LLC would receive at no cost, Lot 11, 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, which is 7.57 acres in size. As you can see 
on the initial building renderings below, the building will be located in the center of the 
lot, with employee and customer parking on the east side of the building, and 
overhead/dock doors and delivery areas located along the west side of the building. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12

Item 2.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For a total building size of 78,000 square feet, the requested lot of 7.57 acres falls within 
the policy guidelines of what the City would typically offer for a land incentive. However, 
if the developer does not complete the phase II or phase III additions, the development 
agreement does include a clause that requires that the developer pay a certain sum of 
money to the City for the additional amount of land that would not be needed if the 
building additions are not constructed. The development agreement spells out the 
specific payment amounts and timing of the payments if the phase II and phase III 
additions are not constructed. 

Industrial Partial Property Tax Exemption 

 
Consistent with our ongoing local economic development incentive guidelines, the City 
of Cedar Falls typically will consider a Five-Year Partial Property Tax Exemption on 
projects having a minimum assessed valuation of $1,200,000+.  Section 8.15 of the 
Agreement for Private Development references sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the 
Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances and Chapter 427B of the Iowa Code with respect to the 
provisions of the applicable partial property tax exemption. For this proposed phase I, 
the following exemption schedule is estimated using the existing industrial tax 
rate/valuation and projecting annual building property taxes of $71,073: 
 

Year  % Exemption  $ Abated  $ Amount Paid  $ Total Taxes  
         

1  75%  $53,304  $17,768  $71,073 
2  60%  $42,644  $28,429  $71,073 
3  45%  $31,983  $39,090  $71,073 
4  30%  $21,322  $49,751  $71,073 
5  15%       $10,661   $60,412  $71,073 

    $159,913  $195,449    $355,363 
 
For phase II and phase III, based on the valuation amounts listed within the agreement, 
it is anticipated that the total abatement amount over the 5-year abatement period for 
each phase would be $134,401, with a taxes paid amount of $164,268. 
 
It should be noted that following City Council consideration of the Agreement for Private 
Development, an actual Ordinance will be drafted and adopted implementing the 
proposed exemption schedule noted above. The Ordinance granting the applicable 
partial property tax exemption will be presented to City Council once construction of the 
new facility has commenced. 

13

Item 2.



Conclusion 

 
As this memorandum indicates, Blackhawk Properties, LLC is proposing to construct a 
new 78,000 square foot industrial facility in the West Viking Road Industrial Park over 
three phases. The proposed new construction project will have a minimum building 
permit valuation of $6,267,360, and a total Minimum Assessed Valuation of $6,873,360 
including land.  Construction on phase I is anticipated to commence this year with 
completion anticipated within approximately 12-18 months. 
 
The Agreement for Private Development by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
and Blackhawk Properties, LLC has been reviewed by both parties, and is attached for 
your review and approval. 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt and approve the following: 
 
1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private 

Development and a Minimum Assessment Agreement by and between the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and Blackhawk Properties, LLC, and approving and 
authorizing execution of a Deed Without Warranty conveying title to certain real 
estate to Blackhawk Properties, LLC. 

 
If you have any questions regarding this proposed economic development project, 
please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 
         
        
 
 

14

Item 2.



Hawkeye
Corrugated

Box

¨
1 " = 600 '

Bossard

S. 
Un

ion
 R

d

Air KingD. LaPorte

Project Location

W. Viking Rd

Inn
ov

ati
on

 D
r

Capital Way

Technology Pkwy

Venture Way

Blackhawk Properties, LLC
78,000 SF Industrial
Warehouse Facility

15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



22

Item 2.



23

Item 2.



24

Item 2.



25

Item 2.



26

Item 2.



27

Item 2.



28

Item 2.



29

Item 2.



30

Item 2.



31

Item 2.



32

Item 2.



33

Item 2.



34

Item 2.



35

Item 2.



36

Item 2.



37

Item 2.



38

Item 2.



39

Item 2.



40

Item 2.



41

Item 2.



42

Item 2.



43

Item 2.



44

Item 2.



45

Item 2.



46

Item 2.



47

Item 2.



48

Item 2.



49

Item 2.



50

Item 2.



51

Item 2.



52

Item 2.



53

Item 2.



54

Item 2.



55

Item 2.



56

Item 2.



57

Item 2.



58

Item 2.



59

Item 2.



60

Item 2.



61

Item 2.



62

Item 2.



63

Item 2.



64

Item 2.



65

Item 2.



66

Item 2.



67

Item 2.



68

Item 2.



69

Item 2.



70

Item 2.



71

Item 2.



72

Item 2.



     

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

DEED WITHOUT WARRANTY 

Recorder’s Cover Sheet 

 

 

 

Preparer Information: Kevin Rogers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 

Taxpayer Information: Blackhawk Properties, LLC, P.O. Box 128, Sauk Rapids, MN 56379 

Return Document To: City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Grantors: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

Grantees: Blackhawk Properties, LLC 

Legal Description: See Page 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73

Item 2.

GrahamS
Text Box
Exhibit G

GrahamS
Text Box
58



 

                                              DEED WITHOUT WARRANTY 

 

 For the consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of Iowa (“Grantor”), does 

hereby convey to Blackhawk Properties, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (“Grantee”), the 

following described real estate in Black Hawk County, Iowa: 

This transfer is exempt according to Iowa Code § 428A.2(6). 
 
Lot 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa; subject 
to the conditions, covenants and restrictions contained in the Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Plan approved by Cedar Falls City Council Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on November 12, 
1990 (Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 
(Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 2003 
(Ordinance No. 2461), amended a third time by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 2012 (Ordinance 
No. 2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution No. 19,263 on November 3, 2014, amended a fifth time 
by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, amended a sixth time by Resolution No. 21,079 on May 7, 
2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), amended a seventh time by Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 
(Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth time by Resolution No. 22,205 on December 21, 2020, 
and further subject to restrictive covenants, ordinances andlimited access provisions of record, if any, and 
to existing easements of record. 
 
There is no known burial site, well, solid waste disposal site, underground storage tank, hazardous waste, 

or private sewage disposal system on the property as described in Iowa Code Section 558.69, and 

therefore the transaction is exempt from the requirement to submit a groundwater hazard statement.  

 
            Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall be construed as in the 
singular or plural number, and as masculine or feminine gender, according to the context. 

 

Dated: ___________________________. 

 

GRANTOR: 

 

By: ______________________________  By: _____________________________ 

         Daniel Laudick, Mayor                                                                Kim Kerr, City Clerk 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: 

          This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _________________, 2024, 

by Daniel Laudick, as Mayor, and Kim Kerr, as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

___________________________________                      My Commission Expires: __________                                                                                            

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR IOWA    

 

74

Item 2.

GrahamS
Text Box
59



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5160 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN 
AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT AND A MINIMUM ASSESSMENT 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND 
BLACKHAWK PROPERTIES, LLC, AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION OF A DEED WITHOUT WARRANTY CONVEYING TITLE TO 
CERTAIN REAL ESTATE TO BLACKHAWK PROPERTIES, LLC. 

 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on November 12, 1990 
(Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 
(Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 2003 
(Ordinance No. 2461), amended a third time by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 2012 
(Ordinance No. 2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution 19,263 on November 3, 2014, 
amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, amended a sixth time by 
Resolution No. 21,279 on May 7, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), amended a seventh time by 
Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth 
time by Resolution No. 22,205 on December 21, 2020, the City Council has approved and adopted 
an urban renewal plan designated as the “Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Plan” (the “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable that properties within the Urban Renewal Plan be developed as 
part of the overall development area covered by said Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from Blackhawk Properties, LLC. 
("Developer"), in the form of a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") 
by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") and the Developer, a copy of which 
Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, pursuant to which Agreement, 
among other things, the Developer would agree to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as 
defined in the Agreement) on certain real property located within the Urban Renewal Plan as 
legally described in the Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
(defined in the Agreement as the "Development Property"), consisting of the construction of an 
Industrial Use Warehouse Facility totaling at least 78,000 square feet of space, together with all 
related site improvements, as outlined in the proposed Development Agreement; and 
 

75

Item 2.



 2 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City provide certain financial 
incentives for the urban renewal project under the terms and following satisfaction of the 
conditions set forth in the Agreement, consisting of conveyance of title to the Development 
Property to the Developer, the Development Property being legally described as follows: 
 

Lot 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, 
Iowa (Contains 7.57 acres more or less); and 

 
 WHEREAS, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 403 (the "Urban Renewal Law") authorize cities 
to convey real property to developers for economic development purposes in furtherance of the 
objectives of an urban renewal project and to appropriate such funds, make such expenditures 
and convey such real property as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of said Chapters, 
and to levy taxes and assessments for such purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City, the Developer and the 
Assessor of Black Hawk County, Iowa, enter into a Minimum Assessment Agreement (the 
"Minimum Assessment Agreement"), whereby the minimum actual taxable value of the Minimum 
Improvements and the Development Property would be established at an amount not less than 
$6,873,360 for a period through December 31, 2038; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the Agreement is in the best 
interests of the City and the residents thereof, and that the performance by the City of its 
obligations thereunder is a public undertaking and purpose and in furtherance of the Urban 
Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the Agreement and the City's 
performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic development activities and 
objectives of the City within the meaning of Chapters 403 and 15A of the Iowa Code, taking into 
account the factors set forth in Chapter 15A, to-wit: 
 

a) Businesses that add diversity to or generate new opportunities for the Iowa 
economy should be favored over those that do not. 

 
b) Development policies in the dispensing of the funds should attract, retain, or 

expand businesses that produce exports or import substitutes or which generate 
tourism-related activities. 

 
c) Development policies in the dispensing or use of the funds should be targeted 

toward businesses that generate public gains and benefits, which gains and 
benefits are warranted in comparison to the amount of the funds dispensed. 

 
d) Development policies in dispensing the funds should not be used to attract a 

business presently located within the state to relocate to another portion of the 
state unless the business is considering in good faith to relocate outside the state 
or unless the relocation is related to an expansion which will generate significant 
new job creation.  Jobs created as a result of other jobs in similar Iowa businesses 
being displaced shall not be considered direct jobs for the purpose of dispensing 
funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the requirements of Iowa Code 

Section 403.8 with respect to the transfer of property in an urban renewal area are satisfied insofar 
as the Development Property is being disposed of for the purpose of development of an industrial 

76

Item 2.



 3 

building (see Iowa Code Section 403.8(2)(b)), and because the terms of the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement satisfy the safe harbor contained in Iowa Code Section 403.8(3); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by law, this Council has held a public 

meeting and hearing upon the proposal to approve and authorize execution of the Agreement, 
and has considered the extent of objections received from residents or property owners as to said 
proposed Agreement; and, accordingly the following action is now considered to be in the best 
interests of the City and residents thereof. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  That the performance by the City of its obligations under the Agreement, 
including but not limited to conveyance of the Development Property to the Developer in 
consideration of Developer’s proposed development of the Development Property under the 
terms set forth in the Agreement, be and is hereby declared to be a public undertaking and 
purpose and in furtherance of the Urban Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, 
that the Agreement and the City's performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate 
economic development activities and objectives of the City within the meaning of chapters 403 
and 15A of the Iowa Code, taking into account the factors set forth therein. 
 
 Section 2.  That the form and content of the Agreement, the provisions of which are 
incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby are in all respects authorized, 
approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Agreement for and on behalf of 
the City in substantially the form and content now before this meeting, and that from and after the 
execution and delivery of the Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as 
may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Agreement as executed, 
including but not limited to execution and delivery of a deed conveying title to the Development 
Property to the Developer consistent with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 
 
 Section 3.  That the form and content of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, the 
provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same are hereby in all 
respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content now 
before this meeting, and that from and after the execution and delivery of the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and 
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary 
to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, as executed. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

77

Item 2.



 4 

PASSED AND APPROVED this _____ day of ________________, 2024. 
 
 

     
 ______________________________ 

      Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

78

Item 2.



 5 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 
 
 

I, Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _____ duly 

and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of 

____________________, 2024. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official 

seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2024. 

  
 
 

  
Kim Kerr, CMC 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 

79

Item 2.



     

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

DEED WITHOUT WARRANTY 

Recorder’s Cover Sheet 

 

 

 

Preparer Information: Kevin Rogers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 

Taxpayer Information: Blackhawk Properties, LLC, P.O. Box 128, Sauk Rapids, MN 56379 

Return Document To: City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Grantors: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

Grantees: Blackhawk Properties, LLC 

Legal Description: See Page 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

80

Item 2.

GrahamS
Text Box
Exhibit G

GrahamS
Text Box
58



 

                                              DEED WITHOUT WARRANTY 

 

 For the consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of Iowa (“Grantor”), does 

hereby convey to Blackhawk Properties, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (“Grantee”), the 

following described real estate in Black Hawk County, Iowa: 

This transfer is exempt according to Iowa Code § 428A.2(6). 
 
Lot 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa; subject 
to the conditions, covenants and restrictions contained in the Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Plan approved by Cedar Falls City Council Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on November 12, 
1990 (Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 
(Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 2003 
(Ordinance No. 2461), amended a third time by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 2012 (Ordinance 
No. 2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution No. 19,263 on November 3, 2014, amended a fifth time 
by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, amended a sixth time by Resolution No. 21,079 on May 7, 
2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), amended a seventh time by Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 
(Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth time by Resolution No. 22,205 on December 21, 2020, 
and further subject to restrictive covenants, ordinances andlimited access provisions of record, if any, and 
to existing easements of record. 
 
There is no known burial site, well, solid waste disposal site, underground storage tank, hazardous waste, 

or private sewage disposal system on the property as described in Iowa Code Section 558.69, and 

therefore the transaction is exempt from the requirement to submit a groundwater hazard statement.  

 
            Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall be construed as in the 
singular or plural number, and as masculine or feminine gender, according to the context. 

 

Dated: ___________________________. 

 

GRANTOR: 

 

By: ______________________________  By: _____________________________ 

         Daniel Laudick, Mayor                                                                Kim Kerr, City Clerk 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: 

          This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _________________, 2024, 

by Daniel Laudick, as Mayor, and Kim Kerr, as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

___________________________________                      My Commission Expires: __________                                                                                            

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR IOWA    

 

81

Item 2.

GrahamS
Text Box
59



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: March 18, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Adoption of new Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) and Text Amendments to 
Sections 26-2, 26-30, 26-31, 26-32, 26-33, 26-119, 26-176, 26-177, and 26.178 as 
part of the adoption of the new FIRMs (TA24-001) 

 

 
On November 8, 2023, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) issued a letter of 
final determination setting an effective date of May 8, 2024, for the revised Flood Insurance 
Rate Maps (FIRMs) for the City of Cedar Falls. In order to continue participation in the National 
Flood Insurance Program, the City is required to update the Zoning Code to meet FEMA 
requirements before the adoption date of the maps.  
 
Background 
In 2010, the Iowa Department of Natural Resources began obtaining new LIDAR (3D laser 
scanning) data. The Black Hawk County stream reaches were delineated on top of the LIDAR 
images as a basis for updates to the Flood Insurance Rate Maps for Black Hawk County. Flood 
Insurance Maps updates are usually performed as better data becomes available; these new 
maps will replace maps which were last updated in 2011. In March and May 2019, the Iowa 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and FEMA hosted an open house to present 
preliminary Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) to the residents of Cedar Falls and Black Hawk 
County. In February 2020, the City filed an appeal for the University Branch of Dry Run Creek 
based on a study completed by Snyder and Associates and new data collected for the bridge 
constructed as part of the Greenhill Road extension. The appeal was granted, and it resulted in 
the removal of 18 properties from the floodplain in the area between Main and Campus Streets.  
 
In August 2020 property owners east of Main Street between Orchard Drive and Greenhill Road 
were notified by DNR that there was a mapping error to the floodplain which affected 69 
properties in the area. To correct this error, new preliminary maps were released in January 
2021, for a comment period that extended the review and required a new appeal process 
through September 2021. A letter of final determination (LFD) was issued with the intent for the 
new maps to go into effect in October 2022; however, there were additional mapping errors 
identified on three (3) FIRM Panels and an excluded flood profile, data used to create the maps, 
for a tributary to Dry Run Creek. These errors reset the process for another review and appeal 
pushing out the adoption date to December 1, 2023. 
 

82

Item 3.



 
 

Due to an error by FEMA in the publication date of the LFD, the final adoption date of the maps 
was pushed out to May 8, 2024. 
 
Analysis 
In a comparison of our current FIRMs with the revised FIRMs, 195 new parcels were added to 
the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA); however, 64 parcels currently shown in the SFHA have 
been removed, thereby showing a net increase of 131 parcels in the SFHA.  These numbers do 
not include any State or City owned properties.   
 
Attached is a document with the FEMA required changes to each section of the Zoning Code 
showing the additional language in red and the deleted language struck-out and in red. Below is 
a summary of the changes to each section of the code.  
 
In Sec. 26-2 General Floodplain Definitions, there are several changes to definitions which 
provide additional language and clarifications to the current definitions; Flood, Flood Insurance 
Study, Floodway, Lowest Floor, Substantial Damage, and Substantial Improvement.   
 
Other changes involve the addition of definitions commonly included in the National Flood 
Insurance Program; Enclosed Area Below Lowest Floor, Factory Built Home and Home Park, 
Five Hundred Year Flood, Historic Structure, Maximum Damage Potential, Recreational Vehicle, 
Variance, and Violation. A few of these terms are defined in other sections of the zoning code, 
such as Historic Structure, Recreation Vehicle, Variance, and Violation; however, at FEMA 
direction, these specific definitions as they apply to floodplain regulations should also be 
included with the floodplain definitions, as they may be different in this context.   
 
Changes to Sec. 26-30, Floodplain Development Permit, include adding a requirement when 
requesting a floodplain development permit to include the location and dimensions of all 
structures and additions. This is currently required by staff as part of the application process, so 
the addition will codify our current practice. Other minor changes include replacing the term 
“building(s)” with “structure(s)” and replacing the term “uses” with “development.” 
 
Changes to Sec. 26-31, Variance and Special Exception Permits and 26-32, Development 
Requiring Approval by the State Department of Natural Resources are the replacement of 
the terms “building(s)” and “uses” with the terms “structure(s)” and “development,” as noted 
above. 
 
Sec. 26-33, Duties of Zoning Administrator Relative to Development in Flood Hazard Areas, 
added three additional duties to the zoning administrator, or designee; these include maintaining 
the accuracy of the community’s FIRMs, performing site inspections, and forwarding all variance 
requests to the Board of Adjustment. These are duties currently being performed by the 
designated staff.  

Changes to Sec. 26-35, Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), are updates to reflect the new FIRM 
panels that are to be adopted. 
 
The changes to Sec. 26-119, Establishment of Floodplain Districts, are the addition of the 
definition for the Floodway Overlay District, the Floodway Fringe Overlay District, and the General 
Floodplain District. 
 

83

Item 3.



 
 

The changes to Sec. 26-176, F-W Floodway Overlay District, are minor and include the 
replacement of the terms “building(s)” and “uses” with “structure(s)” and “development” and 
adding recreational vehicles to a list of items that if permitted shall meet the applicable 
performance standards of the floodway fringe district. 
 
Changes to Sec. 26-177, F-F Floodway Fringe Overlay District, include the replacement of the 
building and use terminology. In addition, the list of required flood protection for equipment and 
utilities, subsection 7(c) has been divided into two sections, one paragraph for equipment and 
another paragraph for utilities. Subsection 8(d) added additional requirements for filling under an 
elevated structure and clarifies the requirement regarding the minimum elevation and to extend 
placement of any fill. There is additional language added to subsection (11) regarding 
requirements for subdivisions, adding public utilities to the standards of the ordinance and 
requiring proposals for subdivisions greater than five (5) acres or fifty (50) lots to include flood 
elevation data for those areas located within the Floodway Fringe Overlay District. The City 
currently requires this information during the subdivision process, but it is not spelled out in the 
Floodway Fringe Overlay District. There is also correction for a code subsection reference, the 
correct reference is subsection (e)(7)(a)(1) through (4). And finally, a new subsection (19) has 
been added providing detail for the requirements of flood protection for new, substantially 
improved, or substantially damaged buildings.  
 
The only change to Sec. 26-178, General Floodplain Overlay District, is the replacement of the 
term “use(s)” with the term “development.”   
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  
At their meeting on February 28, 2024, on a vote of 7-0, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended approval of the zoning code text amendment. 
Minutes from the meeting are attached below. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
& 
Discussion 
2/28/2024 

Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Planner Weintraut provided 
background information. He explained that most of the amendments are just 
clarifications or additional definitions that need to be updated to current FEMA 
standards. There are approximately eight sections that will need to be updated 
prior to the effective date of the new floodplain maps on May 8, 2024. Weintraut 
discussed the background of the map updating process that started in 2019. He 
noted that the DNR reviewed the City’s ordinance and recommended changes 
to bring the City’s ordinance into compliance with FEMA requirements. He went 
on to discuss each proposed text amendment.  
 
Sorensen inquired whether the Commission needed to review and approve the 
new floodplain maps.  Howard clarified that FEMA adopts the maps and then 
requires local jurisdictions to acknowledge the new maps and make any 
necessary amendments to floodplain ordinances prior to the effective date of the 
new maps, which is May 8, 2024. Leeper made a motion to approve the item. 
Henderson seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 
ayes (Alberhasky, Hartley, Henderson, Johnson, Leeper, Sorensen and 
Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 
 

 

84

Item 3.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 1 of 7 

Sec. 26-2. Definitions. 

(2) General floodplain definitions.  

Base flood means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year (See 100-
year (one percent) flood). This is the regulatory standard also referred to as the "100-year flood." 100 year flood. 
The base flood is the national standard used by the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and all federal 
agencies for the purpose of requiring the purchase of flood insurance and regulating new development. Base flood 
elevations (BFEs) are typically shown on the flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs).  

Basement means any enclosed area of a building which has its floor or lowest level below ground level (subgrade) 
on all sides. Any basement situated with less than one-half of its height below grade shall be counted as a story for 
the purpose of height regulations. A basement having more than one-half of its height below grade is not included 
in computing the number of stories for the purpose of height measurement. Also see “Lowest floor.” Lowest Floor. 

Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not limited to 
constructing or installing buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, clearing, grading, paving, 
excavation, drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials. Development does not include minor projects 
or routine maintenance of existing buildings and facilities as defined in this section. It also does not include 
gardening, plowing, or similar practices that do not involve filling or grading.  

Enclosed area below lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building when all the following 
criteria are met:  

(1) The enclosed area is designed to flood to equalize hydrostatic pressure during flood events with walls or 
openings that satisfy the provisions of Sec. 26-177(e)(7)(a).1 through 4, and  

(2) The enclosed area is unfinished (not carpeted, drywalled, etc.) and used solely for low damage potential uses 
such as building access, parking or storage, and  

(3) Machinery and service facilities (e.g., hot water heater, HVAC, electrical service, and all components thereof) 
contained in the enclosed area are located at least one (1) foot above the base flood elevation, and  

(4) The enclosed area is not a basement as defined in this section.   

Factory-built home means any structure designed for residential use which is wholly or in substantial part made, 
fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for installation or assembly and installation, on a 
building site. For the purpose of this section, a factory-built home includes a mobile home, manufactured home, 
and modular homes; and also includes recreational vehicles which are placed on a site for greater than 180 
consecutive days and not fully licensed for and ready for highway use.  

Existing construction is any structure for which the "start of construction" start of construction commenced before 
the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community. May also be referred 
to as "existing structure." existing structure.  

Factory-built home park or subdivision means a parcel or contiguous parcels of land divided into two or more 
factory-built home lots for sale or lease. 

Five hundred year flood (500-year flood) means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths percent chance 
of being equaled or exceeded in any given year or which the magnitude, on average, will be equaled or exceeded 
at least once every five hundred years. 

Flood means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land areas 
resulting from the overflow of streams or rivers or from the unusual and rapid runoff of surface waters from any 
source.a temporary rise in the channel flow or stage, resulting from the overflow of streams or rivers or from the 
unusual and rapid runoff of surface waters from any source, that results in water overflowing and inundating 
normally dry lands adjacent to the channel.  

Flood elevation means the elevation flood-waters would reach at a particular site during the occurrence of a 
specific flood. For instance, the "100-year flood" 100-year flood or the "100-year (one percent) flood" 100-year 

85

Item 3.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 2 of 7 

(one percent) is that flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent (one percent) chance of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. The "500-year flood" 500-year flood or the "500-year (0.2 percent) flood" 500-year 
(0.2 percent) flood is that flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths of one percent (0.2 percent) chance of 
being equaled or exceeded in any given year.  

Flood insurance study means a report published by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) issued 
along with a community’s Flood Insurance Rate Maps. The study contains such background data as the base flood 
discharge and water surface elevations that were used to prepare the FIRMs.n examination, evaluation and 
determination of flood hazards and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations.  

Floodproofing means a combination of structural and non-structural provisions, changes or adjustments 
incorporated in the design or construction and alteration of individual buildings, structures or properties, and 
including utilities, water treatment and sanitary facilities, which will reduce or eliminate flood damages.  

Floodway means the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain adjoining the channel which 
are reasonably required to carry and discharge floodwaters or flood flows associated with the regulatory flood, so 
that confinement of flood flows to the floodway area will not result in substantially higher flood levels and flow 
velocities cumulatively increase the water surface elevation of the base flood by more than one foot. 

Historic structure means any structure that is:  

(1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places, maintained by the Department of Interior, or 
preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing in 
the National Register; 

(2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the historical 
significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the Secretary to qualify as 
a registered historic district; 

(3) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic preservation programs which 
have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or, 

(4) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in The City of Cedar Falls that have been certified by 
either i) an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior or ii) directly by the 
Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.  

Lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building, including a basement, except when all the 
following criteria are met: the criteria listed in the definition of “enclosed area below lowest floor” enclosed area 
below lowest floor are met. 

Maximum damage potential development means hospitals and like institutions; buildings or building complexes 
containing documents, data, or instruments of great public value; buildings or building complexes containing 
materials dangerous to the public or fuel storage facilities; power installations needed in emergency or other 
buildings or building complexes similar in nature or use.  

New construction (new buildings, new mobile factory-built homes or parks) means those structures or 
development for which the start of construction commenced on or after February 1, 1985.  

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle which is: 

(1) Built on a single chassis; 
(2) Four hundred (400) square feet or less in size when measured at the largest horizontal projection; 
(3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and 

(4) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as a temporary living quarters for recreational, 
camping, travel, or seasonal use.  

Regulatory flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths (0.2 percent) of one percent chance of 
being equaled or exceeded in any given year. Regulatory flood is also referred to in this chapter as the "500-year 
flood” 500-year flood and the "500-year (0.2 percent) flood." 500-year (0.2 percent) flood. 

86

Item 3.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 3 of 7 

Routine maintenance of existing buildings and facilities means repairs necessary to keep a structure in a safe and 
habitable condition. Such routine maintenance and repair activities include:  

(1) Normal maintenance of structures such as re-roofing, replacing roofing tiles and replacing siding; 
(2) Exterior and interior painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar finish work; 
(3) Basement sealing; 
(4) Repairing or replacing damaged or broken window panes; 
(5) Repairing plumbing systems, electrical systems, heating or air conditioning systems and repairing wells or 

septic systems. 
(6) Other routine maintenance and repair activities that do not trigger a building permit.  

 

Special flood hazard area (SFHA) is the land within a community the City of Cedar Falls subject to the regulatory 
base flood. This land is identified on the community's the City of Cedar Falls’ flood insurance rate maps as Zone A, 
A1—30, AE, AH, AO, AR, A99, X Shaded and X Unshaded.  

Structure means anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground, including but not 
limited to buildings, factories, sheds, cabins, factory-built housing, storage tanks, grain storage facilities and other 
similar uses. For zoning purposes anything, excluding fences, judged to be permanently affixed to the site and 
measuring at least 30 inches in height, as measured from natural grade, shall be considered a structure.  

Substantial damage means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the 
structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the fair market value of the 
structure before the damage occurred. Volunteer labor and donated materials shall be included in the cost of 
restoration. 

Substantial improvement means any improvement to a structure which satisfies either of the following criteria:  

(1) Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or improvement of a structure, the cost of which 
equals or exceeds fifty (50) percent of the fair market value, before the start of construction of the 
improvement. This term included structures which have incurred repetitive loss or substantial damage, 
regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, however, inc lude either:   

a. before the start of construction of the improvement, or. This term includes structures which have 
incurred repetitive loss or substantial damage, regardless of the actual repair work performed. The 
term does not, however, include either: 

b. if the structure has been substantially damaged and is being restored, before the damage occurred.  

a.  Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local health, 
sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement 
officer and which are the minimum necessary to ensure safe living conditions; or 

b. Any alteration to an historic structure, provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's 
continued designation as a historic structure. 

(2) Any addition which increases the original floor area of a building by 25 percent or more. All additions 
constructed after February 1, 1985, the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations 
adopted by the City of Cedar Falls, shall be added to any proposed addition in determining whether the 
total increase in original floor space would exceed 25 percent. 

a. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local health, 
sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement 
officer and which are the minimum necessary to ensure safe living conditions; or 

c. Any alteration to an historic structure, provided that the alteration will not preclude the 
structure's continued designation as a historic structure.  

87

Item 3.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 4 of 7 

The term does not, however, include any improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local 
health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement official 
and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions. The term also does not include any 
alteration of an historic structure, provided the alteration will not preclude the structure’s designation as an 
historic structure.  

Variance means a grant of relief by the City of Cedar Falls from the terms of the floodplain management 
regulations.  

Violation means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the City of Cedar Falls’ 
floodplain management regulations.  

 

Sec. 26-30. Floodplain development permit. 

(a)  A floodplain development permit issued by the zoning administrator shall be secured prior to initiation of 
any floodplain development. Application for a floodplain development permit shall be made on forms 
supplied by the zoning administrator and shall include the following information:  

(3) Location and dimensions of all structures and additions.  

(6) The elevation, in relation to the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD), of the lowest floor, 
including basement, of buildings structures or of the level to which a building structure is to be 
floodproofed.  

(7) For buildings structures being improved or rebuilt, the estimated cost of improvements and fair market 
value of the building structure prior to the improvements.  

(c) All uses development or structures in the floodway, floodway fringe and general floodplain districts requiring 
special exception permits shall be allowed only upon application to the zoning administrator with issuance of 
the special exception permit by the board of adjustment. Petitioners shall include information ordinarily 
submitted with applications, as well as any additional information deemed necessary by the board of 
adjustment. Where required, approval of the state department of natural resources shall precede issuance of 
the special exception permit by the board of adjustment.  

Sec. 26-31. Variances and special exception permits. 

(a) The board of adjustment may authorize, upon request, in specific cases, such variances from the terms of 
this chapter as will not be contrary to the public interest, where owing to special conditions a literal 
enforcement of the provisions of this chapter will result in unnecessary hardship. Variances granted must 
meet the following applicable standards:  

(4) In cases where the variance involves a lower level of flood protection for buildings structures than what 
is ordinarily required by this chapter, the applicant shall be notified in writing over the signature of the 
zoning administrator that:  

Sec. 26-32. Development requiring approval by state department of natural resources. 

For those uses development requiring state department of natural resources approval, such approval shall be 
obtained in writing and provided to the board of adjustment prior to issuance of a special exception permit.  

Sec. 26-33. Duties of zoning administrator relative to development in flood hazard areas. 

It shall be the responsibility of the zoning administrator or their his official designee to:  

(10) Maintain the accuracy of Cedar Falls’ Flood Insurance Rate Maps when: 

a. Development placed within the Floodway (Overlay) District results in any of the following: 

88

Item 3.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 5 of 7 

(i) An increase in the Base Flood Elevations, or 

(ii) Alteration to the floodway boundary 

b. Development placed in Zones A, AE, AH, and A1-30 that does not include a designated floodway 
that will cause a rise of more than one foot in the base elevation; or 

c. Development relocates or alters the channel. 

Within 6 months of the completion of the development, the applicant shall submit to FEMA all 
scientific and technical data necessary for a Letter of Map Revision.  

(11) Perform site inspections to ensure compliance with the standards of this section. 

(12) Forward all requests for variances to the Board of Adjustment for consideration and ensure all requests 
include the information ordinarily submitted with applications as well as any additional information 
deemed necessary. 

Sec. 26-35. Flood insurance rate map (FIRM). 

The flood insurance rate map (FIRM) for the county Black Hawk County and incorporated areas, City of Cedar 
Falls and the city, panels 19013C0145F 19013C0145G, 0153F 19013C0153G, 0154F 19013C0154G, 0158F 
19013C0158G, 0161F 19013C0161G, 0162F 19013C0162G, 0163F19013C0163G, 0164F19013C0164G, 0166F 
19013C0166G, 0168F 19013C0168G, 19013C0260G, 0276F 19013C0276G, 0277F 19013C0277G, 0278F 
19013C0278G, 0279F 19013C0279G, 0281F 19013C0281G, 0282F 19013C0282G, and 0283F 19013C0283G, 
effective dated July 18, 2011 May 8, 2024, which were prepared as part of the flood insurance study for the county 
Black Hawk County, are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be the official floodplain zoning map. The 
flood profiles and all explanatory material contained within the flood insurance study are also declared to be a part 
of this chapter.  

Sec. 26-119. Establishment of floodplain districts. 

(c) Classes of districts. In order to classify, regulate and restrict the location of trades and industries and the 
location of buildings designed for specific uses, to regulate and limit the height and bulk of buildings erected 
or altered, to regulate and limit the intensity of the use of lot areas and to regulate and determine the area 
of yards, courts and other open spaces within and surrounding such buildings within established floodprone 
areas, the city is hereby divided into three classes of floodplain districts. The use, height and area regulations 
are uniform in each class of district, and the districts shall be known as the F-W floodway district, the F-F 
floodway fringe district and the F-P general floodplain district. divided into the following:  

(1)  Floodway (Overlay) District (F-W) - those areas identified as Floodway on the Official Floodplain Zoning 
Map;  

(2) Floodway Fringe (Overlay) District (F-F) - those areas identified as Zone AE and the adjoining shaded 
Zone X on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map but excluding those areas identified as Floodway; and; 

(3)  General Floodplain (Overlay) District (F-P) - those areas identified as Zone A and the adjoining shaded 
Zone X on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map.  

Sec. 26-176. F-W Floodway Overlay District. 

(c) Performance standards. All floodway district uses development allowed as a principal permitted or 
conditional use shall meet the following standards:  

(1) No use development shall be permitted in the floodway district that would result in any increase in the 
100-year (one percent) flood level. Consideration of the effects of any development on flood levels 
shall be based upon the assumption that an equal degree of development would be allowed for 
similarly situated lands.  

89

Item 3.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 6 of 7 

(2) All uses development within the floodway district shall:  

a. Be consistent with the need to limit flood damage.  

b. Use construction methods and practices that will limit flood damage.  

c. Use construction materials and utility equipment that are resistant to flood damage.  

(3) No use development shall affect the capacity or conveyance of the channel or floodway or any tributary 
to the main stream, drainage ditch or any other drainage facility or system.  

(4) Structures, buildings, recreational vehicles, and sanitary and utility systems, if permitted, shall meet the 
applicable performance standards of the floodway fringe district and shall be constructed or aligned to 
present the minimum possible resistance to flood flows.  

(8) Buildings Structures, if permitted, shall have a low flood damage potential and shall not be utilized for 
human habitation.  

Sec. 26-177. F-F Floodway Fringe Overlay District. 

(e) Performance standards. All uses development must be consistent with the need to limit flood damage to the 
maximum extent practicable, and shall meet the following applicable performance standards:  

(4) All structures development shall be:  

a. Designed and A adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the 
structure.  

(7) c. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being established or 
reconstructed must be constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning 
equipment and other service facilities that are designed and located so as to prevent water from 
entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding. All such facilities 
including heating, cooling and ventilating systems or ducts shall be located or installed at least one 
foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level.  

c. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being established or 
reconstructed shall be constructed with electric meter, electrical service panel box, hot water 
heater, heating, air conditioning, ventilation equipment (including ductwork), and other similar 
machinery and equipment elevated (or in the case of non-residential structures, optionally 
floodproofed) to a minimum of one foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level. 

d. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being established or 
reconstructed shall be constructed with plumbing, gas lines, water/gas meters and other similar 
service utilities either elevated (or in the case of non-residential structures, optionally 
floodproofed) to a minimum of one foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level or designed 
to be watertight and withstand inundation to such a level. 

(8) Filling in the floodway fringe.  

d. The only portion of the property that may be filled is the area underneath the elevated structure, 
together with driveway access to the structure. In no case shall the maximum lot area of the 
property filled exceed 33.33 percent of the total area of the lot. , and shall extend at least 18 feet 
from the outer foundation of the structure. Construction shall be upon compacted fill, which 
shall, at all points, be no lower than 1.0 ft. above the 500-year (0.2%) flood elevation and extend 
at such elevation at least 18 feet beyond the limits of any structure erected thereon. 

(11) Subdivisions, including factory-built home parks and subdivisions, shall meet the following requirements. 
Subdivisions shall be consistent with the need to limit flood damage to the maximum practicable extent, 
and shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood damage. Development 
associated with subdivision proposals, including the installation of public utilities, shall meet the 

90

Item 3.



Redline copy of changes 

 

  

 
Page 7 of 7 

applicable performance standards of this section. Subdivision proposals intended for residential 
development shall provide all lots with a means of vehicular access that is above the 500-year (0.2 
percent) flood level. Proposals for subdivisions greater than five (5) acres or fifty (50) lots (whichever is 
less) shall include 500-year (0.2%) flood elevation data for those areas located within the Floodway 
Fringe (Overlay) District. 

(15) No use development shall affect the capacity or conveyance of the channel or any tributary to the main 
stream, drainage ditch or other drainage facility or system.  

(16) Detached garages, storage sheds, appurtenant structure and other similar detached accessory structures 
that are incidental to a residential use shall be allowed in the floodway fringe district with no minimum 
elevation requirement provided that all the following criteria are satisfied. Exemption from the elevation 
requirement for such structures may result in increased premium rates for flood insurance coverage of 
the structure and its contents:  

d. The structures will comply with minimum required permanent openings as specified in 
subsections (e)(7)(d)(4)a.1. through 4.  

(19) Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged maximum damage potential development, 
that is to be established or reconstructed as authorized in this chapter shall have the lowest floor 
(including basement) elevated a minimum of one (1) foot above the elevation of the 500-year flood, or 
together with attendant utility and sanitary systems, be floodproofed to such a level. When 
floodproofing is utilized, a professional engineer registered in the State of Iowa shall certify that the 
floodproofing methods used are adequate to withstand the flood depths, pressures, velocities, impact 
and uplift forces and other factors associated with the 500-year (0.2%) annual chance flood; and that the 
structure, below the 500-year (0.2%) annual chance flood elevation is watertight with walls substantially 
impermeable to the passage of water. A record of the certification indicating the specific elevation (in 
relation to North American Vertical Datum 1988) to which any structures are floodproofed shall be 
maintained by the zoning administrator. Where 500-year (0.2%) chance flood elevation data has not 
been provided in the Flood Insurance Study, the Iowa Department of Natural Resources shall be 
contacted to compute such data. The applicant shall be responsible for submitting an application to the 
Department of Natural Resources with sufficient technical information to make such determinations. 

Sec. 26-178. F-P General Floodplain Overlay District. 

(b) Conditional uses. Any development use which involves placement of structures, factory-built homes, fill or 
other obstructions, the storage of materials or equipment, excavation or alteration of a watercourse may be 
allowed only upon issuance of a special exception permit by the board of adjustment. All such uses 
development shall be reviewed by the state department of natural resources to determine:  

 

 

 
 

91

Item 3.



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Thomas Weintraut, Planner III, City of Cedar Falls. 220 Clay Street,  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (319) 268-5184 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA,  

ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, SUBSECTION 26-2(2), GENERAL 

FLOODPLAIN DEFINITIONS; ARTICLE II, ADMINISTRATION 

AND ENFORCEMENT, DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, SEC. 26-30, 

FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, SEC. 26-31, VARIANCES 

AND SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMITS; SEC. 26-32, DEVELOPMENT 

REQUIRING APPROVAL BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF 

NATURAL RESOURCES, SEC. 26-33, DUTIES OF ZONING 

ADMINISTRATOR RELATIVE TO DEVELOPMENT IN FLOOD 

HAZARD AREAS, SEC. 26-35, FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP 

(FIRM); ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, 

DIVISION 1, GENERALLY,  SEC. 26-119, ESTABLISHMENT OF 

FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS; ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND 

DISTRICT REGULATIONS, DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, 

SEC. 26-176, FLOODWAY OVERLAY DISTRICT, SEC. 26-177, 

FLOODWAY FRINGE OVERLAY DISTRICT, SEC 26-178, GENERAL 

FLOODPLAIN OVERLAY DISTRICT.   

 
WHEREAS, on January 14, 1985, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls adopted 

Ordinance No. 1764, amending the Zoning Code to adopt floodplain regulations and Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps in order to participate in the National Flood Insurance Program: and, 

 
WHEREAS, on July 11, 2011, the City Council of Cedar Falls adopted Ordinance No. 

2750, amending the Zoning Code to adopt new Flood Insurance Rate Maps as part of the City’s 
continued participation in the National Flood Insurance Program; and,   

 
WHEREAS, on November 8, 2023, the City received a letter from FEMA advising a new 

set of Flood Insurance Rate Maps would become effective for Black Hawk County on May 8, 
2023; and, 

 
WHEREAS, to continue participation in the National Flood Insurance Program 

amendments to the Zoning Code are necessary to acknowledge and adopted the new Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps and update certain provision within the City’s floodplain regulations as 
required by FEMA; and 

 

92

Item 3.



 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning and Commission has reviewed the proposed amendments to 
Chapter 26, Zoning, under Case # TA24-001 and recommends approval; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls City Council has determined that said amendments to 

Chapter 26, Zoning are in the best interests of the community; and now, therefore:  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 
THAT: 

 

 
Section 1: Subsection 26-2(2), General Floodplain Definitions, is hereby repealed in its 
entirety and the following Subsection 26-2(2), is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

(2) General floodplain definitions. 

Appurtenant structure is a structure which is on the same parcel of the property as the principal 
structure to be insured and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure.  

Base flood means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any 
given year (See 100-year (one percent) flood). This is the regulatory standard also referred to 
as the 100 year flood. The base flood is the national standard used by the National Flood 
Insurance Program (NFIP) and all federal agencies for the purpose of requiring the purchase of 
flood insurance and regulating new development. Base flood elevations (BFEs) are typically 
shown on the flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs).  

Base flood elevation is the elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site during the 
occurrence of a base flood event.  

Basement means any enclosed area of a building which has its floor or lowest level below 
ground level (subgrade) on all sides. Any basement situated with less than one-half of its height 
below grade shall be counted as a story for the purpose of height regulations. A basement 
having more than one-half of its height below grade is not included in computing the number of 
stories for the purpose of height measurement. Also see Lowest Floor. 

Channel means a natural or artificial watercourse having definite banks and beds with visible 
evidence of flow or occurrence of water.  

Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, 
but not limited to constructing or installing buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, 
clearing, grading, paving, excavation, drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials. 
Development does not include minor projects or routine maintenance of existing buildings and 
facilities. It also does not include gardening, plowing, and similar practices that do not involve 
filling or grading.  

Elevating means raising a structure or property by fill or other means to or above the minimum 
flood protection level.  

Enclosed area below lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building when 
all the following criteria are met:  

(1) The enclosed area is designed to flood to equalize hydrostatic pressure during flood events 
with walls or openings that satisfy the provisions of Sec. 26-177(e)(7)(a).1 through 4; and  

(2) The enclosed area is unfinished (not carpeted, drywalled, etc.) and used solely for low 
damage potential uses such as building access, parking, or storage; and  

93

Item 3.



 
 

(3) Machinery and service facilities (e.g., hot water heater, HVAC, electrical service, and all 
components thereof) contained in the enclosed area are located at least one (1) foot above 
the base flood elevation; and  

(4) The enclosed area is not a basement as defined in this section.   

Encroachment limits means a set of lines which delineate the boundaries of the floodway 
established in the floodplains as the designated width of channel and overbank areas through 
which the regulatory flood must pass.  

Existing construction is any structure for which the start of construction commenced before the 
effective date of the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community. May 
also be referred to as existing structure.  

Factory-built home means any structure designed for residential use which is wholly or in 
substantial part made, fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for installation 
or assembly and installation, on a building site. For the purpose of this section, a factory-built 
home includes a mobile home, manufactured home, and modular homes; and also includes 
recreational vehicles which are placed on a site for greater than 180 consecutive days and not 
fully licensed for and ready for highway use.  

Factory-built home park or subdivision means a parcel or contiguous parcels of land divided into 
two or more factory-built home lots for sale or lease. 

Factory-built home park or subdivision, existing is a factory-built home park or subdivision for 
which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to 
be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and 
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of 
the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community.  

Factory-built home park or subdivision, expansion of existing is the preparation of additional 
sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to 
be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and 
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads).  

Factory-built home park or subdivision, new is a factory-built home park or subdivision for which 
the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to be 
affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either 
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of 
the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community.  

Five hundred year flood (500-year flood) means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-
tenths percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year or which the magnitude, 
on average, will be equaled or exceeded at least once every five hundred years. 

Flood means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally 
dry land areas resulting from the overflow of streams or rivers or from the unusual and rapid 
runoff of surface waters from any source.  

Flood elevation means the elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site during the 
occurrence of a specific flood. For instance, the 100-year flood or the 100-year (one percent) is 
that flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent (one percent) chance of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. The 500-year flood or the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood is that flood, 
the magnitude of which has a two-tenths of one percent (0.2 percent) chance of being equaled 
or exceeded in any given year.  

94

Item 3.



 
 

Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) means the official map prepared as part of, but published 
separately from, the flood insurance study, which delineates both the flood hazard areas and 
the risk premium zones applicable to the community.  

Flood insurance study means a report published by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) issued along with a community’s Flood Insurance Rate Maps. The study 
contains such background data as the base flood discharge and water surface elevations that 
were used to prepare the FIRMs.  

Floodplain means any land susceptible to being inundated by water as a result of a flood.  

Floodplain buildable area means that portion of the lot remaining after the minimum yard area 
requirements (i.e., setbacks) of this chapter have been met, and shall not include that portion of 
the property within the 500-year floodplain.  

Floodplain management is an overall program of corrective and preventive measures for 
reducing flood damages and promoting the wise use of floodplain, including but not limited to 
emergency preparedness plans, flood control works, floodproofing and floodplain management 
regulations.  

Flood profile means a graph or a longitudinal profile showing the relationship of the water 
surface elevation of a flood event to a location along a stream or river.  

Floodproofing means a combination of structural and non-structural provisions, changes or 
adjustments incorporated in the design or construction and alteration of individual buildings, 
structures, or properties, including utilities, water treatment and sanitary facilities, which will 
reduce or eliminate flood damages.  

Floodway means the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain adjoining 
the channel which are reasonably required to carry and discharge floodwaters or flood flows so 
that confinement of flood flows to the floodway area will not cumulatively increase the water 
surface elevation of the base flood by more than one foot. 

Floodway fringe means the land adjacent to a body of water between the floodway and the 
outer (landward) limits of the special flood hazard area, as defined by the regulatory flood as 
delineated on the official floodplain zoning map.  

Habitable space for flood protection purposes means any floor or level, including a basement, 
which is suitable for human habitation. It excludes a garage, a detached accessory structure, or 
an area for housing electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating and other utility systems 
underneath a structure elevated to comply with flood protection requirements.  

Highest adjacent grade is the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.  

Historic structure means any structure that is: 

(1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places, maintained by the Department 
of Interior, or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the 
requirements for individual listing of the National Register; 

(2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the 
historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by 
the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district; 

(3) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic preservation 
programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or, 

95

Item 3.



 
 

(4) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic 
preservation programs that have been certified by either i) an approved state program as 
determined by the Secretary of the Interior or ii) directly by the Secretary of the Interior in 
states without approved programs. 

Lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building, including a basement, 
except when the criteria listed in the definition of enclosed area below lowest floor are met. 

Maximum damage potential development means hospitals and like institutions; buildings or 
building complexes containing documents, data, or instruments of great public value; buildings 
or building complexes containing materials dangerous to the public or fuel storage facilities; 
power installations needed in emergency or other buildings or building complexes similar in 
nature or use.  

New construction (new buildings, new factory-built homes or parks) means those structures or 
development for which the start of construction commenced on or after February 1, 1985.  

Obstruction means any dam, wall, wharf, embankment, levee, dike, pile, abutment, projection, 
excavation, channel rectification, bridge, conduit, culvert, building, wire, fence, rock, gravel, 
refuse, fill, structure or matter in, along, across or projecting into any watercourse or floodplain 
area which may impede, retard or change the direction of the flow of water, either in itself or by 
catching or collecting debris carried by such water, or that is placed where the flow of water 
might carry material or structure downstream to the damage of other properties.  

Official floodplain zoning map means the maps on file with the city that indicate those portions of 
land known as the floodway, floodway fringe and general floodplain, which are subject to the 
regulations of this chapter.  

One hundred year flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent chance of 
being equaled or exceeded in any given year or which, on average, will be equaled or exceeded 
at least once every 100 years.  

Program means the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).  

Public damages shall consist of but not necessarily be limited to the following:  

Public sewer system means a municipally owned, operated, and maintained sanitary sewer 
system.  

Reach is a hydraulic engineering term used to describe longitudinal segments of a stream or 
river. A reach will generally include the segment of the flood hazard area where flood heights 
are primarily controlled by manmade or natural obstructions or constrictions. In an urban area, 
an example of a reach would be the segment of a stream or river between two consecutive 
bridge crossings.  

Regulatory flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths (0.2 percent) of one 
percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. Regulatory flood is also 
referred to in this chapter as the 500-year flood and the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood." 

Repetitive loss includes flood-related damage sustained by a structure on two separate 
occasions during a 10-year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such flood 
event, on the average, equals or exceeds 25 percent of the market value of the structure before 
the damage occurred.  

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle that is: 

(1) Built on a single chassis; 

(2) Four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection; 

96

Item 3.



 
 

(3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and 

(4) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as a temporary living quarters 
for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

Regulatory flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths (0.2 percent) of one 
percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. Regulatory flood is also 
referred to in this chapter as the 500-year flood and the  500-year (0.2 percent) flood. 

Routine maintenance of existing buildings and facilities means repairs necessary to keep a 
structure in a safe and habitable condition. Such routine maintenance and repair activities 
include:  

(1) Normal maintenance of structures such as re-roofing, replacing roofing tiles and replacing 
siding; 

(2) Exterior and interior painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar 
finish work; 

(3) Basement sealing; 

(4) Repairing or replacing damaged or broken windowpanes; 

(5) Repairing plumbing systems, electrical systems, heating or air conditioning systems, and 
repairing wells or septic systems. 

(6) Other routine maintenance and repair activities that do not trigger a building permit.  

Special exception permit means an authorization by the city board of adjustment to allow 
building improvements or other development when such project conforms with specified rules, 
regulations and/or performance standards required for said improvements or development in 
special areas of the city as identified by the zoning ordinance.  

Special flood hazard area (SFHA) is the land within the City of Cedar Falls subject to the base 
flood. This land is identified on the City of Cedar Falls’ flood insurance rate maps as Zone A, 
A1—30, AE, AH, AO, AR, A99.  

Start of construction includes substantial improvement and new construction, means the date 
the development permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement, was within 180 days of 
the permit date.  

The actual start means either the first placement or permanent construction of a structure on a 
site, such as pouring of a slab or footings, the installation of pile, the construction of columns, or 
any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a factory-built home on a 
foundation.  

Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; 
nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for 
a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it 
include the installation on the property of accessory buildings such as garages or sheds not 
occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure.  

For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any 
wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building, whether or not that alteration affects 
the external dimensions of the building.  

Structure means anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground, 
including but not limited to buildings, factories, sheds, cabins, factory-built housing, storage 
tanks, grain storage facilities, and other similar uses. For zoning purposes anything, excluding 

97

Item 3.



 
 

fences, judged to be permanently affixed to the site and measuring at least 30 inches in height, 
as measured from natural grade, shall be considered a structure.  

Substantial damage means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of 
restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the 
fair market value of the structure before the damage occurred. Volunteer labor and donated 
materials shall be included in the estimated cost of repair. 

Substantial improvement means any improvement to a structure which satisfies either of the 
following criteria:  

(1) Any repair, reconstruction,  or improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or 
exceeds fifty (50) percent of the fair market value either;   

a. before the start of construction of the improvement, or 

b. if the structure has been substantially damaged and is being restored, before the 
damage occurred.  

(2) Any addition which increases the original floor area of a building by 25 percent or more. 
All additions constructed after February 1, 1985, the effective date of the first floodplain 
management regulations adopted by the City of Cedar Falls, shall be added to any 
proposed addition in determining whether the total increase in original floor space would 
exceed 25 percent. 

The term does not, however, include any improvement of a structure to correct existing 
violations of state or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been 
identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure 
safe living conditions. The term also does not include any alteration of an historic structure, 
provided the alteration will not preclude the structure’s designation as an historic structure.  

Temporary storage means a volume of water which may be stored upstream from a dam or in 
an impoundment above the level of the principal outlet works, usually expressed in acre-feet.  

Variance means a grant of relief by a community from the terms of the floodplain management 
regulations.  

Violation means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 
community’s floodplain management regulations.  

 

Section 2:  Sec. 26-30, Floodplain Development Permit, is hereby repealed in its entirety 
and the following Sec. 26-30, is enacted in lieu thereof:  

Sec. 26-30. Floodplain development permit. 

(a) A floodplain development permit issued by the zoning administrator shall be secured prior 
to initiation of any floodplain development. Application for a floodplain development permit 
shall be made on forms supplied by the zoning administrator and shall include the following 
information:  

(1) A description of the work to be covered by the permit for which application is to be 
made.  

(2) A description of the land on which the proposed work is to be done, i.e., lot, block, 
tract, street address or similar description that will readily identify and locate the work 
to be done. 

98

Item 3.



 
 

(3) Location and dimensions of all structures and additions  

(4) An indication of the use or occupancy for which the proposed work is intended.  

(5) The elevations of the 100-year (one percent) and 500-year (0.2 percent) flood.  

(6) The elevation, in relation to the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD), of the 
lowest floor, including basement, of structures or of the level to which a structure is to 
be floodproofed.  

(7) For structures being improved or rebuilt, the estimated cost of improvements and fair 
market value of the structure prior to the improvements.  

(8) Such other information as the administrator deems reasonably necessary for the 
purpose of this chapter.  

(b) Floodplain development permits issued on the basis of approved plans and applications 
authorize only the use, arrangement and construction set forth in such approved plans and 
applications and no other use, arrangement or construction. Any use, arrangement, or 
construction at variance with that authorized shall be deemed a violation of this chapter 
and shall be punishable as provided in this chapter. The applicant shall be required to 
submit certification by a professional engineer or land surveyor, as appropriate, registered 
in the state, that the finished fill, building floor elevations, floodproofing or other flood 
protection measures were accomplished in compliance with the provisions of this chapter 
prior to the use or occupancy of any structure.  

(c) All development or structures in the floodway, floodway fringe and general floodplain 
districts requiring special exception permits shall be allowed only upon application to the 
zoning administrator with issuance of the special exception permit by the board of 
adjustment. Petitioners shall include information ordinarily submitted with applications, as 
well as any additional information deemed necessary by the board of adjustment. Where 
required, approval of the state department of natural resources shall precede issuance of 
the special exception permit by the board of adjustment.  

(d) The zoning administrator shall, within a reasonable time, make a determination as to 
whether the proposed floodplain development meets the applicable provisions and 
standards of this chapter, and shall approve or disapprove the application. In case of 
disapproval, the applicant shall be informed, in writing, of a specific reason therefor. The 
zoning administrator shall not issue permits for special exception permits or variances 
except as directed by the board of adjustment.  

 
 
Section 3:  Sec. 26-31, Variances and Special Exception Permits, is hereby repealed in its 
entirety and the following Sec. 26-31 is enacted in lieu thereof: 

Sec. 26-31. Variances and Special Exception Permits. 

(a) The board of adjustment may authorize, upon request, in specific cases, such variances 
from the terms of this chapter as will not be contrary to the public interest, where owing to 
special conditions a literal enforcement of the provisions of this chapter will result in 
unnecessary hardship. Variances granted must meet the following applicable standards:  

(1) No variance shall be granted for any development within the floodway district which 
would result in any increase in floods during the occurrence of the 500-year flood. 
Consideration of the effects of any development on flood levels shall be based upon 

99

Item 3.



 
 

the assumption that an equal degree of development would be allowed for similarly 
situated lands.  

(2) Variances shall only be granted upon:  

a. A showing of good and sufficient cause;  

b. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional 
hardship to the applicant; and  

c. A determination that the granting of the variance will not result in increased flood 
heights, additional threats to public safety or extraordinary public expense, create 
nuisances, or cause fraud on or victimization of the public.  

(3) Variances shall only be granted upon a determination that the variance is the 
minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.  

(4) In cases where the variance involves a lower level of flood protection for structures 
than what is ordinarily required by this chapter, the applicant shall be notified in writing 
over the signature of the zoning administrator that:  

a. The issuance of a variance will result in increased premium rates for flood 
insurance up to amounts as high as $25.00 for $100.00 of insurance coverage; 
and  

b. Such construction increases risk to life and property.  

(5) All variances granted shall have the concurrence or approval of the state department 
of natural resources.  

(b) In passing upon applications for special exception permits or requests for variances, the 
board shall consider all relevant factors specified in other sections of this chapter and:  

(1) The danger to life and property due to increased flood heights or velocities caused by 
encroachments.  

(2) The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands or downstream to the injury 
of others.  

(3) The proposed water supply and sanitation systems and the ability of these systems to 
prevent disease, contamination, and unsanitary conditions.  

(4) The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the 
effect of such damage on the individual owner.  

(5) The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community.  

(6) The requirements of the facility for a floodplain location.  

(7) The availability of alternative locations not subject to flooding for the proposed use.  

(8) The compatibility of the proposed use with existing development and development 
anticipated in the foreseeable future.  

(9) The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain 
management program for the area.  

(10) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency 
vehicles.  

(11) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and sediment transport of the 
floodwater expected at the site.  

100

Item 3.



 
 

(12) Such other factors which are relevant to the purpose of this chapter.  

(c) Upon consideration of the factors listed in subsection (b) of this section, the board may 
attach such conditions to the granting of special exception permits or variances as it deems 
necessary to further the purpose of this chapter. Such conditions may include, but not 
necessarily be limited to:  

(1) Modification of waste disposal and water supply facilities.  

(2) Limitation on periods of use and operation.  

(3) Imposition of operational controls, sureties, and deed restrictions.  

(4) Requirements for construction of channel modifications, dikes, levees, and other 
protective measures, provided such are approved by the state department of natural 
resources and are deemed the only practical alternative for achieving the purposes of 
this chapter.  

(5) Floodproofing measures shall be designed consistent with the flood protection 
elevation for the particular area, flood velocities, durations, rate of rise, hydrostatic and 
hydrodynamic forces, and other factors associated with the regulatory flood. The 
board of adjustment shall require that the applicant submit a plan or document 
certified by a registered professional engineer that the floodproofing measures are 
consistent with the regulatory flood protection elevation and associated flood factors 
for the particular area. Such floodproofing measures may include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, the following:  

a. Anchorage to resist flotation and lateral movement.  

b. Installation of watertight doors, bulkheads and shutters, or similar methods of 
construction.  

c. Reinforcement of walls to resist water pressures.  

d. Use of paints, membranes, or mortars to reduce seepage of water through walls.  

e. Addition of mass or weight structures to resist flotation.  

f. Installation of pumps to lower water levels in structures.  

g. Construction of water supply and waste treatment systems so as to prevent the 
entrance of floodwaters.  

(6) Pumping facilities or comparable practices for subsurface drainage systems for 
structures to relieve external foundation wall and basement flood pressures.  

(7) Construction to resist rupture or collapse caused by water pressure or floating debris.  

(8) Installation of valves or controls on sanitary and storm drains which will permit the 
drains to be closed to prevent backup of sewage and stormwaters into the buildings or 
structures.  

(9) Location of all electrical equipment, circuits and installed electrical appliances in a 
manner which will ensure that they are not subject to flooding.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

101

Item 3.



 
 

Section 4:  Sec. 26-32, Development Requiring Approval by State Department of Natural 
Resources, is hereby repealed in its entirety and the following Sec. 26-32, is enacted in lieu 
thereof:  
 

Sec. 26-32. Development requiring approval by state department of natural resources. 

For development requiring state department of natural resources approval, such approval 
shall be obtained in writing and provided to the board of adjustment prior to issuance of a 
special exception permit.  

 
Section 5:  Sec. 26-33, Duties of Zoning Administrator Relative to Development in Flood 
Hazard Areas, is hereby amended to add subparagraphs (10), (11), and (12), as follows: 

 

(10) Maintain the accuracy of the community’s Flood Insurance Rate Maps when; 

a. Development placed within the Floodway (Overlay) District results in any of the 
following: 

(i) An increase in the Base Flood Elevations, or 

(ii) Alteration to the floodway boundary 

b. Development placed in Zones A, AE, AH, and A1-30 that does not include a 
designated floodway that will cause a rise of more than one foot in the base 
elevation; or 

c. Development relocates or alters the channel. 

Within 6 months of the completion of the development, the applicant shall submit to 
FEMA all scientific and technical data necessary for a Letter of Map Revision. 

(11) Perform site inspections to ensure compliance with the standards of this Ordinance. 

(12) Forward all requests for Variances to the Board of Adjustment for consideration. 
Ensure all requests include the information ordinarily submitted with applications as 
well as any additional information deemed necessary to the Board of Adjustment 

 

Section 6:  Sec. 26-35, Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), is hereby repealed in its entirety 
and the following Sec. 26-35, is enacted in lieu thereof:  

 

Sec. 26-35. Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 

The flood insurance rate map (FIRM) for Black Hawk County and incorporated areas, City 
of Cedar Falls, panels 19013C0145G, 19013C0153G, 19013C0154G, 19013C0158G, 
19013C0161G, 19013C0162G, 19013C0163G, 19013C0164G, 19013C0166G, 19013C0168G, 
19013C0260G, 19013C0276G, 19013C0277G, 19013C0278G, 19013C0279G, 19013C0281G, 
19013C0282G, and 19013C0283G, effective dated May 8, 2024, which were prepared as part 
of the flood insurance study for Black Hawk County, are hereby adopted by reference and 
declared to be the official floodplain zoning map. The flood profiles and all explanatory material 
contained within the flood insurance study are also declared to be a part of this chapter.  

 
 
 

102

Item 3.



 
 

Section 7:  Subsection 26-119(c), Classes of Districts, within Sec 26-119, Establishment of 
Floodplain Districts, is hereby repealed in its entirety and the following Subsection 26-
119(c), is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

(c) Classes of districts. In order to classify, regulate and restrict the location of trades and 
industries and the location of buildings designed for specific uses, to regulate and limit the 
height and bulk of buildings erected or altered, to regulate and limit the intensity of the use 
of lot areas and to regulate and determine the area of yards, courts and other open spaces 
within and surrounding such buildings within established floodprone areas, the city is 
hereby divided into three classes of floodplain districts. The use, height and area 
regulations are uniform in each class of district, and the districts shall be divided into the 
following:  

(1)  Floodway (Overlay) District (F-W) - those areas identified as Floodway on the Official 
Floodplain Zoning Map;  

(2) Floodway Fringe (Overlay) District (F-F) - those areas identified as Zone AE and the 
adjoining shaded Zone X on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map but excluding those 
areas identified as Floodway; and; 

(3)  General Floodplain (Overlay) District (F-P) - those areas identified as Zone A and the 
adjoining shaded Zone X on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map.  

 
Section 8:  Sec. 26-176, F-W Floodway Overlay District, is hereby repealed in its entirety 
and the following Sec. 26-176 is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

Sec. 26-176. F-W Floodway Overlay District. 

(a) Principal permitted uses. The following uses shall be permitted within the F-W floodway 
district to the extent they are not prohibited by other provisions of this chapter or of this 
Code, or the underlying zoning district, and provided they do not require placement of 
structures, factory-built homes, fill or other obstruction, the storage of materials or other 
equipment, excavation or alteration of a watercourse:  

(1) Agricultural uses such as general farming, pasture, grazing, outdoor plant nurseries, 
horticulture, viticulture, truck farming, forestry, sod farming and wild crop harvesting.  

(2) Industrial-commercial uses such as loading areas, parking areas and airport landing 
strips.  

(3) Private and public recreational uses such as golf courses, tennis courts, driving 
ranges, archery ranges, picnic grounds, boat launching ramps, swimming areas, 
parks, wildlife and nature preserves, game farms, fish hatcheries, shooting preserves, 
target ranges, trap and skeet ranges, hunting and fishing areas and hiking and horse 
riding trails.  

(4) Residential uses such as lawns, gardens, parking areas and play areas.  

(5) Other open space uses similar in nature to the uses listed in this subsection.  

(b) Conditional uses. The following uses, which involve structures (temporary or permanent), 
fill, storage of materials or other equipment, may be permitted only upon issuance of a 
special exception permit by the board of adjustment, and then only to the extent they are 
not prohibited by other provisions of this section or of this Code or the underlying zoning 

103

Item 3.



 
 

district. Such uses must also meet the applicable provisions of the floodway district 
performance standards:  

(1) Uses or structures accessory to open space uses.  

(2) Circuses, carnivals and similar transient amusement enterprises.  

(3) Drive-in theaters, new and used car lots, roadside stands, signs and billboards.  

(4) Extraction of sand, gravel and other material.  

(5) Marinas, boat rentals, docks, piers and wharves.  

(6) Utility transmission lines and underground pipelines.  

(7) Other uses similar in nature to the principal permitted and conditional uses described 
in this section which are consistent with the floodway district performance standards 
and the general spirit and purpose of this division.  

(c) Performance standards. All floodway district development shall meet the following 
standards:  

(1) No development shall be permitted in the floodway district that would result in any 
increase in the 100-year (one percent) flood level. Consideration of the effects of any 
development on flood levels shall be based upon the assumption that an equal degree 
of development would be allowed for similarly situated lands.  

(2) All development within the floodway district shall:  

a. Be consistent with the need to limit flood damage.  
b. Use construction methods and practices that will limit flood damage.  
c. Use construction materials and utility equipment that are resistant to flood 

damage.  

(3) No development shall affect the capacity or conveyance of the channel or floodway or 
any tributary to the main stream, drainage ditch or any other drainage facility or 
system.  

(4) Structures, buildings, recreational vehicles, and sanitary and utility systems, if 
permitted, shall meet the applicable performance standards of the floodway fringe 
district, and shall be constructed or aligned to present the minimum possible 
resistance to flood flows.  

(5) From and after January 1, 2010, there shall be no construction of any new building or 
structure (temporary or permanent) of any type whatsoever, anywhere within the 
floodway overlay district in the city, including, but not limited to, new detached 
garages, storage buildings, or other accessory structures.  

(6) From and after January 1, 2010, there shall be no restoration or reconstruction of any 
previously existing nonconforming building or structure located in the floodway overlay 
district that suffers damage to the extent of 50 percent or more of its fair market value 
at the time of damage of any origin, including, but not limited to, fire, flood, tornado, 
storm, explosion, war, riot or act of God, unless permitted upon issuance of a variance 
and a special exception permit by the board of adjustment, in accordance with the 
provisions of sections 26-30 and 26-31.  

(7) Any restoration or reconstruction of any building or structure located in the floodway 
overlay district that suffers damage to the extent of less than 50 percent of its fair 
market value at the time of damage of any origin, including, but not limited to, fire, 
flood, tornado, storm, explosion, war, riot or act of God, may be restored or 

104

Item 3.



 
 

reconstructed without issuance of a variance or a special exception permit by the 
board of adjustment, and then only as follows:  

a. May commence only upon issuance of a valid building permit issued by the city;  
b. Must not allow any fill material to be used or placed on the lot in connection with 

the elevation and reconstruction of such building or structure;  
c. Must comply in all other respects with all applicable city building codes in effect at 

the time of reconstruction;  
d. Such restoration, rebuilding or reconstruction shall not allow any building addition 

or expansion without obtaining a variance or special exception permit from the 
board of adjustment; and  

e. Any addition or expansion to an existing building or structure located in the 
floodway shall not be allowed, unless permitted upon issuance of a variance and 
special exception permit by the board of adjustment, in accordance with sections 
26-30 and 26-31.  

(8) Structures, if permitted, shall have a low flood damage potential, and shall not be 
utilized for human habitation.  

(9) Storage of materials or equipment that is buoyant, flammable, explosive or injurious to 
human, animal or plant life is prohibited. Storage of other material may be allowed if 
readily removable from the floodway district within the time available after flood 
warning.  

(10) Stream, watercourse, drainage channel or other water channel embankment 
stabilization, filling, alterations or relocations, including removal of vegetation, must be 
designed to maintain the flood-carrying capacity within the altered area, and shall not 
be allowed or undertaken without all required permits from and approvals by the state 
department of natural resources, and shall not proceed without approval of the city 
planner and oversight by the city engineer.  

(11) Any fill allowed in the floodway must be shown to have some beneficial purpose and 
shall be limited to the minimum amount necessary.  

(12) Pipeline river or stream crossings shall be buried in the streambed and banks or 
otherwise sufficiently protected to prevent rupture due to channel degradation and 
meandering or due to the action of flood flows.  

(13) Recreational vehicles placed on sites within the floodway district shall either:  

a. Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days.  
b. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use.  

A recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, 
is attached to the site only by disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has 
no permanent attached additions.  

 
Section 9:  Subsection 26-177 (e), Performance Standards, of Section 26-177, F-F 
Floodway Fringe Overlay District, is hereby repealed in its entirety and the following 
Subsection 26-177(e) is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

(e) Performance standards. All development must be consistent with the need to limit flood 
damage to the maximum extent practicable, and shall meet the following applicable 
performance standards:  

105

Item 3.



 
 

1) All new development on lots of record in existence prior to January 1, 2010, must 
comply with all required standard flood protection measures, and must meet the 
following requirements:  

a. May commence only upon issuance of a valid building permit issued by the city;  

b. Any open areas underneath the lowest floor shall be floodable in order to allow 
the unimpeded free flow of floodwaters, in conformity with the requirements of 
subsections (e)(7)a.1 through 4 of this section, inclusive; and  

c. Must comply in all other respects with all applicable city building codes in effect at 
the time of reconstruction.  

(2) Any existing building or structure located in the floodway fringe that suffers damage to 
the extent of less than 50 percent of its fair market value from any origin including, but 
not limited to, fire, flood, tornado, storm, explosion, war, or act of God, may be 
reconstructed at its existing elevation, without issuance of a variance or special 
exception permit, if the reconstructed structure meets the following requirements:  

a. May commence only upon issuance of a valid building permit issued by the city; 
and  

b. Must comply in all other respects with all applicable city building codes in effect at 
the time of reconstruction.  

(3) Any existing building or structure that is substantially damaged, may be reconstructed 
if the reconstructed structure meets all required standard flood protection measures, 
including, but not limited to, elevating the structure to a level such that the lowest floor 
is established one foot above the 500-year flood level, and is constructed either on 
elevated foundations, piers or similar elevated techniques that are in compliance with 
then applicable city building code requirements, or using fill which meets the 
requirements of this section, and which meets the following requirements:  

a. May commence only upon issuance of a valid building permit issued by the city;  

b. Any enclosed building areas underneath the lowest floor shall be floodable in 
order to allow the unimpeded free flow of floodwaters, in conformity with the 
requirements of subsections (e)(7)a.1 through 4 of this section; and  

c. Must comply in all other respects with all applicable city building codes in effect at 
the time of reconstruction.  

(4) All development shall be:  

a. Designed and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement of the structure.  

b. Constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage to the 
maximum practicable extent.  

c. Constructed by methods and practices that limit flood damage to the maximum 
practicable extent.  

(5) Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged residential structure, that is 
to be established or reconstructed as authorized in this chapter, shall have the lowest 
floor, including basement, elevated a minimum of one foot above the 500-year flood 
level. Construction may be upon limited amounts of compacted fill which shall, at all 
points, be no lower than one foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level unless 
the necessary amount of fill to satisfy this requirement exceeds allowable fill heights 

106

Item 3.



 
 

specified in subsection (e)(8)b of this section, and shall extend at such elevation at 
least 18 feet beyond the limits of any structure erected thereon. Alternate methods of 
elevating, such as piers or elevated foundations, may be allowed where existing 
topography, street grades or other compelling factors preclude elevating by the use of 
compacted fill material. In all such cases, the methods used for structural elevation 
must be adequate to support the structure as well as withstand the various forces and 
hazards associated with flooding as verified by a structural engineer.  

(6) Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged nonresidential structure, 
that is to be established or reconstructed as authorized in this chapter, shall have the 
lowest floor, including basement, elevated a minimum of one foot above the 500-year 
flood level. Construction may be upon limited amounts of compacted fill which shall, at 
all points, be no lower than one foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level or, 
together with attendance utility and sanitary sewerage systems, be floodproofed to 
such a level. When utilizing fill material, the amount placed on the site shall be in 
conformance with subsection (e)(8)b of this section. When floodproofing is utilized, a 
professional engineer registered in the state shall certify that the floodproofing 
methods used are adequate to withstand the flood depths, pressures, velocities, 
impact and uplift forces and other factors associated with the 100-year and 500-year 
flood event, and that the structure established below the 500-year flood elevation 
level, is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water. A 
record of certification, indicating the specific elevation, in relation to the North 
American Vertical Datum of 1988, to which any structures are floodproofed, shall be 
maintained by the zoning/floodplain administrator.  

(7) Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is to be 
established or reconstructed as authorized in this chapter shall meet the following 
requirements:  

a. Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor, not including basements that are 
subject to flooding shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood 
forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. All said 
areas below the lowest floor shall be designed for low damage potential and shall 
not be habitable space. Such areas shall be used solely for parking of vehicles, 
building access and low damage potential storage. Machinery and service 
facilities (e.g., hot water heater, furnace, electrical service) contained in the 
enclosed area are located at least one foot above the 500-year flood level. 
Designs for meeting this requirement must either be certified by a registered 
professional engineer or meet or exceed the following minimum criteria:  

1. A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one 
square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall 
be provided.  

2. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above natural 
grade.  

3. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings 
or devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of 
floodwaters.  

4. Openings must be designed and installed so as to allow the natural entry 
and exit of floodwaters without the aid of any manual, mechanical or 
electrical systems either for operating the openings or assisting in the 
discharge of water from the lower area.  

107

Item 3.



 
 

b. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being 
established or reconstructed as authorized in this chapter, must be designed or 
modified and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, 
including the effects of buoyancy.  

 c. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being 
established or reconstructed shall be constructed with electric meter, electrical 
service panel box, hot water heater, heating, air conditioning, ventilation 
equipment (including ductwork), and other similar machinery and equipment 
elevated (or in the case of non-residential structures, optionally floodproofed) to a 
minimum of one foot above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level. 

d. Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged structure that is being 
established or reconstructed shall be constructed with plumbing, gas lines, 
water/gas meters and other similar service utilities either elevated (or in the case 
of non-residential structures, optionally floodproofed) to a minimum of one foot 
above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level or designed to be watertight and 
withstand inundation to such a level. 

(8) Filling in the floodway fringe.  

a. Fill activities may be permitted in the floodway fringe overlay district upon 
approval by the city planner and city engineer. All fill application permits shall be 
valid for a period of six months from date of issuance, may be renewed only upon 
filing of an application for renewal with the city planner, and then may only be 
renewed upon a showing of demonstrated progress towards completion of the fill 
activity. All fill application permits must be accompanied by a detailed plan 
describing the area to be filled, the estimated amount of fill to be used and the 
purpose of the fill project. Elevation and topographic data must also be submitted 
by a professional engineer registered in the state that illustrates changes in the 
topography and estimated impacts upon local flood flows. No fill project shall fill 
in or obstruct any local drainage channels without an alternative drainage plan 
design, and shall limit soil erosion and water runoff onto adjacent properties to 
the maximum practicable extent, and in compliance with the NPDES standards 
contained in chapter 27. Except as provided in subsections (e)(8)f and g of this 
section, adjacent property owners shall be identified and notified of the fill project 
by the applicant with proof of notification provided to the city planner. Any fill 
project must be designed to limit negative impacts upon adjacent property 
owners during flood events to the maximum practicable extent.  

b. The amount of allowable fill must not increase the existing natural grade of the 
property by more than three vertical feet at any point, and shall be placed on no 
more than 33.33 percent of the total three vertical feet lot area.  

c. Where fill is authorized under this chapter, any fill placed on a lot of record must 
be mitigated by removal of an equal volume of fill material from a comparable 
elevation within the 500-year floodplain, in order to provide the hydraulic 
equivalent volume of fill removal as compared to the placement of fill on any 
single property located in the floodplain.  

d. The only portion of the property that may be filled is the area underneath the 
elevated structure, together with driveway access to the structure. In no case 
shall the maximum lot area of the property filled exceed 33.33 percent of the total 
area of the lot. Construction shall be upon compacted fill, which shall, at all 

108

Item 3.



 
 

points, be no lower than 1.0 ft. above the 500-year (0.2%) flood elevation and 
extend at such elevation at least 18 feet beyond the limits of any structure 
erected thereon. 

e. If a new or reconstructed structure is to be elevated utilizing fill material, any 
required building elevation standard exceeding the three-foot fill limitation as 
referenced in subsection (e)(8)b of this section must be achieved through the use 
of elevated foundations, piers or similar structural elevation techniques that are in 
compliance with then-applicable city building code requirements as certified by a 
structural engineer.  

f. Fill is allowed for property maintenance purposes in the floodway fringe area 
upon approval of the city planner. For purposes of this subsection, the term 
"property maintenance purposes" means landscaping, gardening or farming 
activities, erosion control, and filling in of washed-out sections of land. Property 
maintenance purposes shall only include the placement of such quantities of fill 
not to exceed the limitations specified herein and that do not inhibit the free flow 
of water. Said limited amounts of fill for property maintenance purposes need not 
be compensated by an equivalent amount of excavation area as specified in 
subsection (e)(8)c of this section.  

g. Filling on public property is prohibited in the floodway fringe district with the 
exception of property maintenance purposes of public facilities, upon approval of 
the city planner. Limited quantities of asphalt, concrete and yard waste may be 
temporarily stored in the floodway fringe district when said materials are being 
staged for further processing. Raw materials may be stockpiled in the floodway 
fringe district when said materials are mined or excavated from a site in the 
floodway or floodway fringe.  

(9) No floodplain map revisions (letter of map revision-fill or LOMR-f) involving placement 
of fill or involving land alterations in the floodway fringe overlay district, even if 
otherwise approved by FEMA, shall be allowed after January 1, 2010; provided, 
however, that owners of properties in the floodway fringe who have applied for a 
LOMR and which were in the process of being approved as of January 1, 2010, shall 
be exempt from this prohibition.  

(10) Factory-built housing and factory-built structures shall meet the following 
requirements:  

a. Factory-built homes, including those placed in existing factory-built home parks 
or subdivisions, shall be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement.  

b. Factory-built housing and factory-built structures, including those placed in 
existing factory-built home parks or subdivisions, shall be elevated on a 
permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the structure is a minimum of 
one foot above the 500-year flood level.  

c. Openings shall be established in the lower area to allow the natural entry and exit 
of floodwaters in compliance with subsections (e)(7)a.1 through 4 of this section.  

(11) Subdivisions, including factory-built home parks and subdivisions, shall meet the 
following requirements. Subdivisions shall be consistent with the need to limit flood 
damage to the maximum practicable extent, and shall have adequate drainage 
provided to reduce exposure to flood damage. Development associated with 
subdivision proposals, including the installation of public utilities, shall meet the 

109

Item 3.



 
 

applicable performance standards of this ordinance. Subdivision proposals intended 
for residential development shall provide all lots with a means of vehicular access that 
is above the 500-year (0.2 percent) flood level. Proposals for subdivisions greater than 
five (5) acres or fifty (50) lots (whichever is less) shall include 500-year (0.2%) flood 
elevation data for those areas located within the Floodway Fringe (Overlay) District. 

(12) Utility and sanitary systems shall meet the following requirements:  

a. All new and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize 
or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system as well as the discharge of 
effluent into floodwaters. Wastewater treatment facilities shall be provided with a 
level of flood protection equal to or greater than one foot above the 500-year 
flood elevation.  

b. On site waste disposal systems shall be located or designed to avoid impairment 
to the system or contamination from the system during flooding.  

c. New or replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or 
eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system. Water supply treatment 
facilities shall be provided with a level of protection equal to or greater than one 
foot above the 500-year flood elevation.  

d. Utilities such as gas and electrical systems shall be located and constructed to 
minimize or eliminate flood damage to the system and the risk associated with 
such flood damaged or impaired systems.  

(13) Storage of materials and equipment that are flammable, explosive or injurious to 
human, animal or plant life is prohibited unless elevated a minimum of one foot above 
the 500-year flood level. Other material and equipment must either be similarly 
elevated or:  

a. Not be subject to major flood damage and be anchored to prevent movement due 
to floodwaters; or  

b. Be readily removable from the area within the time available after flood warning.  

(14) Flood control structural works such as levees and floodwalls, shall provide, at 
minimum, protection from a 100-year (one percent) flood with a minimum of three feet 
of design freeboard and shall provide for adequate interior drainage, or at such higher 
elevation as may be mandated by the state or federal government. In addition, 
structural flood control works shall be approved by the state department of natural 
resources.  

(15) No development shall affect the capacity or conveyance of the channel or any 
tributary to the main stream, drainage ditch or other drainage facility or system.  

(16) Detached garages, storage sheds, appurtenant structure and other similar detached 
accessory structures that are incidental to a residential use shall be allowed in the 
floodway fringe district with no minimum elevation requirement provided that all the 
following criteria are satisfied. Exemption from the elevation requirement for such 
structures may result in increased premium rates for flood insurance coverage of the 
structure and its contents:  

a. The total combined floor areas of all such structures located on the lot does not 
exceed a total of 576 square feet in area. Those portions of structures located 
less than one foot above the (0.2 percent) 500-year flood level must be 
constructed of flood resistant materials.  

110

Item 3.



 
 

b. The structures are not suitable for and shall not be used for human habitation.  

c. The structures will be designed to have low flood damage potential and shall be 
used solely for low damage potential purposes such as vehicle parking and 
limited storage.  

d. The structures will comply with minimum required permanent openings as 
specified in subsections (e)(7) a.1. through 4.  

e. The structures will be constructed and placed on the building site so as to limit 
resistance to the greatest practicable extent to the flow of floodwaters.  

f. Structures shall be firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and lateral 
movement.  

g. The structure's service facilities such as electrical, heating and ventilating 
equipment shall be elevated or floodproofed to at least one foot above the (.2 
percent) 500-year flood level.  

(17) Recreational vehicles, if permitted in the underlying zoning district, are exempt from 
the requirements of this chapter regarding anchoring and elevation of factory built 
homes when the following criteria are satisfied:  

a. Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days.  

b. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use.  

A recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, 
is attached to the site only by disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has 
no permanent attached additions.  

(18) Pipeline river or stream crossings shall be buried in the streambed and banks or 
otherwise sufficiently protected to prevent rupture due to channel degradation or due 
to action of flood flows.  

(19) Any new, substantially improved or substantially damaged maximum damage 
potential development, that is to be established or reconstructed as authorized in this 
chapter shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated a minimum of one 
(1) foot above the elevation of the 500-year flood, or together with attendant utility and 
sanitary systems, be floodproofed to such a level. When floodproofing is utilized, a 
professional engineer registered in the State of Iowa shall certify that the floodproofing 
methods used are adequate to withstand the flood depths, pressures, velocities, 
impact and uplift forces and other factors associated with the 500-year (0.2%) annual 
chance flood; and that the structure, below the 500-year (0.2%) annual chance flood 
elevation is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water. A 
record of the certification indicating the specific elevation (in relation to North 
American Vertical Datum 1988) to which any structures are floodproofed shall be 
maintained by the Zoning Administrator. Where 500-year (0.2%) chance flood 
elevation data has not been provided in the Flood Insurance Study, the Iowa 
Department of Natural Resources shall be contacted to compute such data. The 
applicant shall be responsible for submitting an application to the Department of 
Natural Resources with sufficient technical information to make such determinations. 

 

Section 10:  Section 26-178 F-P General Floodplain Overlay District, is hereby repealed in 
its entirety and the following Sec. 26-178 is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

111

Item 3.



 
 

Sec. 26-178. F-P General Floodplain Overlay District. 

(a) Principal permitted uses. The following uses shall be permitted within the F-P general 
floodplain district to the extent they are not prohibited by any other ordinance or underlying 
zoning district and provided they do not require placement of structures, factory-built 
homes, fill or other obstruction, the storage of materials or equipment, excavation or 
alteration of a watercourse:  

(1) Agricultural uses such as general farming, pasture, grazing, outdoor plant nurseries, 
horticulture, viticulture, truck farming, forestry, sod farming and wild crop harvesting. 

(2) Industrial-commercial uses such as loading areas, parking area and airport landing 
strips. 

(3) Private and public recreation uses such as golf courses, tennis courts, driving ranges, 
archery ranges, picnic grounds, boat launching ramps, swimming areas, parking, 
wildlife and nature preserves, game farms, fish hatcheries, shooting preserves, target 
ranges, trap and skeet ranges, hunting and fishing areas, and hiking and horseback 
riding trails.  

(4) Residential uses such as lawns, gardens, parking areas, and play areas.  

(b) Conditional uses. Any development which involves placement of structures, factory-built 
homes, fill or other obstructions, the storage of materials or equipment, excavation or 
alteration of a watercourse may be allowed only upon issuance of a special exception 
permit by the board of adjustment. All such development shall be reviewed by the state 
department of natural resources to determine:  

 (1) Whether the land involved is either wholly or partly within the floodway or floodway 
fringe; and  

 (2) The 100-year or 500-year flood level.  

 The applicant shall be responsible for providing the State Department of Natural Resources 
with sufficient technical information to make the determination.  

(c) Performance standards. 

(1) All conditional uses or portions thereof to be located in the floodway, as determined by 
the state department of natural resources, shall meet the applicable provisions and 
standards of the floodway district.  

(2) All conditional uses or portions thereof to be located in the floodway fringe, as 
determined by the state department of natural resources, shall meet the applicable 
standards of the floodway fringe district.  

(d) Prohibited uses. No structure located within the designated floodplain district may be 
subdivided or converted for the purpose of establishing a separate dwelling unit either 
wholly or partially below the 500-year flood elevation.  

 

 
 
INTRODUCED:                                            

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:                              

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:                                         

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:                              

112

Item 3.



 
 

ADOPTED:                                   

 

 
____________________________ 

       Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
 

113

Item 3.



MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street  

March 4, 2024  
  
The meeting of the Committee of the Whole met at City Hall at 5:45 p.m. on March 4, 2024, with the 
following Committee persons in attendance: Mayor Daniel Laudick, Councilmembers Gil Schultz, Chris 
Latta, Daryl Kruse, Aaron Hawbaker, Dustin Ganfield, and Kelly Dunn. Hannah Crisman absent. Staff 
members from various City Departments, a representative from the Waterloo Courier, and members 
of the community attended in person.    
  
Committee of the Whole:  
Mayor Laudick called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the Committee of the Whole 
Agenda, Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) update with Chelsie Luhring, DEI Specialist. Luhring 
provided an overview of her position and the strides made within the city and community to progress 
DEI. Discussion included implementation of staff training, county statistics, recruitment strategies, 
formation of a city staff DEI Committee, and future goals. Dunn stated the Racial Equity Task Force 
pushed for this position and is grateful for the work that has been implemented so far. Noah Hackbart, 
Student Liaison questioned any current or future collaboration with University of Northern Iowa. 
 
Mayor Laudick introduced the second item on the Committee of the Whole Agenda, automated refuse 
collection rates. Brian Heath, Operations and Maintenance Division Manager provided an historical 
overview of refuse collection and presented recurring issues related to the current collection; carts 
being overloaded or not put out on time. Heath recommended implementing a $15.00 penalty per 
occurrence for overloaded or not out on time carts, as well as adding landlord penalty points if it is a 
rental property. Schultz asked for clarification on the photographic capabilities of the refuse trucks, 
and notifications to residents prior to issuing a citation. Heath verified that staff had previously sent out 
letters warning residents about overloaded carts. Kruse asked about exemption status for remodel or 
empty properties and landlord versus tenant responsibility in terms of refuse. Dunn voiced her support 
for implementing fees, referencing the additional staff hours, mileage, and gas consumption needed 
to return to properties. Ganfield motioned to approve as presented with legal clarification on legacy in 
leases (receiving the treatment of prior laws or rules)., seconded by Dunn. Kruse moved to amend the 
motion adding a warning process for landlords, the motion failed due to lack of second. The original 
motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
Mayor Laudick introduced the final item on the Committee of the Whole Agenda, Cease Fire Update 
and Discussion. Mayor Laudick voiced that the council does not view the resolution as an appropriate 
City action and that additional actions can be taken outside of a resolution. Councilmembers and 
Student Liaison Hackbart discussed local government roles. 
  
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:51 p.m.  
  
 
Minutes by Shianne Bellinger, Administrative Assistant 

 

114

Item 4.



115

Item 5.



 MAYOR DANIEL LAUDICK  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 
 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 FROM: Mayor Daniel Laudick  

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: March 11, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Appointment of Paul Lee as Civil Service Commissioner 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-306: Civil Service Commission 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a), I hereby nominate Paul Lee for re-appointment to the Civil 
Service Commission for a four-year term ending 4/1/2028.  

2. Please contact me with any questions about this reappointment. 
 

Xc:   City Administrator 
  Director, Finance and Business Operations 
  Staff Liaison 
  

### 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

116

Item 6.



117

Item 7.



118

Item 7.



119

Item 7.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Laudick and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  March 11, 2024 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Barn Happy, 11310 University Avenue, Special Class B retail native wine - renewal. 

b) Chilitos Mexican Bar and Grill, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

c) Social House, 2208 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

d) Second State Brewing, 203 State Street, Class C retail alcohol - temporary outdoor 
service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – November 15, 2024) 

e) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol, Special Class A beer - 
temporary outdoor service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – November 15, 2024) 

f) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - temporary outdoor 
service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – November 15, 2024) 

g) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
temporary additional outdoor service/sidewalk café. (April 1 – November 15, 2024) 

h) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - temporary outdoor service/sidewalk café. (April 1 
– November 15, 2024) 

i) Trigger Time Sims, 4302 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol – new. 

 

120

Item 8.



121

Item 10.



122

Item 10.



123

Item 10.



124

Item 10.



125

Item 10.



126

Item 10.



127

Item 10.



128

Item 11.



129

Item 11.



130

Item 11.



131

Item 11.



132

Item 11.



133

Item 11.



134

Item 11.



135

Item 11.



136

Item 11.



137

Item 11.



138

Item 11.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 M E M O R A N D U M     
 

Human Resources Division 
 

TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members  

FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

DATE: March 11, 2024              

SUBJECT: 2024 City Volunteer Initiative Day of Service Contract 
 
 

Attached for your approval is a 2024 City Volunteer Initiative Day of Service contract. 
The Volunteer Center of the Cedar Valley (VCCV) reached out to Mayor Laudick to see 
if the City of Cedar Falls would like to participate in the Volunteer Iowa city volunteer 
engagement training cohort.  The program would provide four training sessions to a 
team of at least three City officials and support monies to support city staff to develop, 
implement, and enhance volunteer engagement along with a city staff created 9/11 day 
of service activity that the VCCV will support with implementation at no cost to the City 
funded by the VCCV with recent donations. 

If you have questions regarding the attached, feel free to contact me at 319-268-5531. 

Attachment 

     

139

Item 12.



140

Item 12.



141

Item 12.



142

Item 12.



143

Item 12.



144

Item 12.



145

Item 12.



146

Item 12.



147

Item 12.



148

Item 12.



149

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 1 of 21  

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
SECTION 2. GENERAL TERMS FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS 

August 1, 2023 
 
 
2.0 Contractor Registration. The Contractor shall register with the Iowa Secretary of State prior to 
execution of the Contract. Only properly registered contractors will be entitled to payment. 
Registration can be performed electronically at the Iowa Secretary of State’s website at 
https://sos.iowa.gov/. Contractors are responsible for maintaining current and accurate registration 
information during the term of the Contract. 
 
2.1 Definitions. When appearing as capitalized terms in this Contract (including any attachments) the 
following quoted terms (and the plural thereof, when appropriate) have the meanings set forth in this 
section. 
 
“Acceptance” means that the Agency has determined that one or more Deliverables satisfy the 
Agency’s Acceptance Tests. Final Acceptance means that the Agency has determined that all 
Deliverables satisfy the Agency’s Acceptance Tests. Non-acceptance means that the Agency has 
determined that one or more Deliverables have not satisfied the Agency’s Acceptance Tests. 
“Acceptance Criteria” means the Specifications, goals, performance measures, testing results or 
other criteria designated by the Agency and against which the Deliverables may be evaluated for 
purposes of Acceptance or Non-acceptance thereof. 
“Acceptance Tests” or “Acceptance Testing” mean the tests, reviews, and other activities that are 
performed by or on behalf of the Agency to determine whether the Deliverables meet the Acceptance 
Criteria or otherwise satisfy the Agency, as determined by the Agency in its sole discretion. 
“Applicable Law” means all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, ordinances, regulations, 
orders, guidance, and policies in place at Contract execution as well as all future amendments, 
changes, and additions to such laws as of the effective date of such change. Applicable Law includes, 
without limitation, all laws that pertain to the prevention of discrimination in employment and in the 
provision of services (e.g., Iowa Code Chapter 216 and Iowa Code § 19B.7). For employment, this 
would include equal employment opportunity and affirmative action, and the use of targeted small 
businesses as subcontractors of suppliers. The term Applicable Law also encompasses the applicable 
provisions of Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and all standards and 
requirements established by the Architectural and Transportation Barriers Access Board and the Iowa 
Office of the Chief Information Officer. 
“Bid Proposal” or “Proposal” or “Application” means the Contractor’s proposal submitted in 
response to the Solicitation, if this Contract arises out of a competitive process. 
“Business Days” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or State holiday as specified by 
Iowa Code §1C.2. 
“Confidential Information” means, subject to any applicable State and federal laws and regulations, 
including, but not limited to, Iowa Code Chapter 22, any confidential or proprietary information or trade 
secrets disclosed by either party (a “Disclosing Party”) to the other party (a “Receiving Party”) that, at 
the time of disclosure, is designated as confidential (or like designation), is disclosed in circumstances 
of confidence, or would be understood by the parties, exercising reasonable business judgment, to be 
confidential. Regardless of whether or not the following information is designated as confidential, the 
term Confidential Information includes information that could be used to identify recipients, subjects, 
or applicants of Agency services and recipients of Contract services including, but not limited to 
protected health information (45 C.F.R. § 160.103), personal information (Iowa Code § 715C.1(11)), 
reportable disease information (Iowa Code § 139A.3, 641 IAC chapter 1), medical records (Iowa Code 
§ 22.7(2)), immunization information (641 IAC 7.11), public health information (Code of Iowa, Title IV), 
substance use treatment information (42 CFR Part 2), Agency security protocols and procedures, 
Agency system architecture, information that could compromise the security of the Agency network or 

150

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 2 of 21  

systems, and information about the Agency’s current or future competitive procurements, including 
the evaluation process prior to the formal announcement of results. 
 
Confidential Information does not include any information that: (1) was rightfully in the possession of 
the Receiving Party from a source other than the Disclosing Party prior to the time of disclosure of the 
information by the Disclosing Party to the Receiving Party; (2) was known to the Receiving Party prior 
to the disclosure of the information by the Disclosing Party; (3) was disclosed to the Receiving Party 
without restriction by an independent third party having a legal right to disclose the information; (4) is 
in the public domain or shall have become publicly available other than as a result of disclosure by the 
Receiving Party in violation of this Agreement or in breach of any other agreement with the Disclosing 
Party; (5) is independently developed by the Receiving Party without any reliance on Confidential 
Information disclosed by the Disclosing Party; or (6) is disclosed by the Receiving Party with the 
written consent of the Disclosing Party. 
“Contract” means the collective documentation memorializing the terms of the agreement between 
the Agency and the Contractor identified in the Contract Declarations and Execution Section.  
“Deficiency” means a defect, flaw, anomaly, failure, omission, interruption of service, or other 
problem of any nature whatsoever with respect to a Deliverable, including, without limitation, any 
failure of a Deliverable to conform to or meet an applicable specification. Deficiency also includes the 
lack of something essential or necessary for completeness or proper functioning of a Deliverable. 
“Deliverables” means all the services, goods, products, work, work product, data, items, materials 
and property to be created, developed, produced, delivered, performed, or provided by or on behalf 
of, or made available through, the Contractor (or any agent, contractor or subcontractor of the 
Contractor) in connection with this Contract. This includes data that is collected on behalf of the 
Agency. 
“Documentation” means all technical information, commentary, explanations, design documents, 
system architecture documents, database layouts, test materials, training materials, guides, manuals, 
worksheets, notes, work papers, and all other information, documentation and materials related to or 
used in conjunction with the Deliverables, in any medium, including hard copy, electronic, digital, and 
magnetically or optically encoded media. 
“Equipment” means any item costing $5,000 or more and having an anticipated life of one year or 
more. 
“Invoice” means a Contractor’s claim for payment. At the Agency’s discretion, claims may be 
submitted on an original invoice from the Contractor or may be submitted on a claim form acceptable 
to the Agency, such as a General Accounting Expenditure (GAX) form. 
“Solicitation” means the formal or informal procurement (and any addenda thereto) identified in the 
Contracts Declarations and Execution Section that was issued to solicit the Bid Proposal leading to 
this Contract.  
“Special Contract Attachments” means any attachment to this Contract. 
“Special Terms” means the Section of the Contract entitled “Special Terms” that contains terms 
specific to this Contract, including but not limited to the Scope of Work and contract payment terms.  
“Specifications” means all specifications, requirements, technical standards, performance 
standards, representations, and other criteria related to the Deliverables stated or expressed in this 
Contract, the Documentation, the Solicitation, and the Bid Proposal. Specifications shall include the 
Acceptance Criteria and any specifications, standards, or criteria stated or set forth in any applicable 
state, federal, foreign, and local laws, rules and regulations. The Specifications are incorporated into 
this Contract by reference as if fully set forth in this Contract. 
“State” means the State of Iowa, the Agency, and all State of Iowa agencies, boards, and 
commissions, and when this Contract is available to political subdivisions, any political subdivisions of 
the State of Iowa. 
  

151

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 3 of 21  

2.2 Duration of Contract. The term of the Contract shall begin and end on the dates specified in the 
Contract Declarations and Execution Section, unless extended or terminated earlier in accordance 
with the termination provisions of this Contract. The Agency may, in its sole discretion, amend the end 
date of this Contract by exercising any applicable extension by giving the Contractor a written 
extension at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the initial term or renewal term. 
 
2.3 Scope of Work. The Contractor shall provide the necessary facilities, materials, services, and 
qualified personnel to satisfactorily perform and provide all work and services set forth in this 
Contract. The Contractor shall provide Deliverables that comply with and conform to the 
Specifications. Deliverables shall be performed within the boundaries of the United States. 
 
2.4 Compensation. 

2.4.1 Withholding Payments. In addition to pursuing any other remedy provided herein or by law, 
the Agency may withhold compensation or payments to the Contractor, in whole or in part, without 
penalty to the Agency or work stoppage by the Contractor, in the event the Agency determines 
that: (1) the Contractor has failed to perform any of its duties or obligations as set forth in this 
Contract; (2) any Deliverable has failed to meet or conform to any applicable Specifications or 
contains or is experiencing a Deficiency; or (3) the Contractor has failed to perform Close-Out 
Event(s). No interest shall accrue or be paid to the Contractor on any compensation or other 
amounts withheld or retained by the Agency under this Contract. 
 
2.4.2 Erroneous Payments and Credits. The Contractor shall promptly repay or refund the full 
amount of any overpayment or erroneous payment within thirty (30) Business Days after either 
discovery by the Contractor or notification by the Agency of the overpayment or erroneous 
payment. 
 
2.4.3 Offset Against Sums Owed by the Contractor. In the event that the Contractor owes the 
State any sum under the terms of this Contract, any other contract or agreement, pursuant to a 
judgment, or pursuant to any law, the State may, in its sole discretion, offset any such sum 
against: (1) any sum Invoiced by, or owed to, the Contractor under this Contract, or (2) any sum or 
amount owed by the State to the Contractor, unless otherwise required by law. The Contractor 
agrees that this provision constitutes proper and timely notice under any applicable laws 
governing offset. 
 

2.5 Termination or Suspension. 
2.5.1 Termination for Cause by the Agency. The Agency may terminate this Contract upon 
written notice for the breach by the Contractor or any subcontractor of any material term, 
condition, or provision of this Contract, if such breach is not cured within the time specified in the 
Agency’s notice of breach or any subsequent notice or correspondence delivered by the Agency 
to the Contractor, provided that cure is feasible. In addition, the Agency may terminate this 
Contract effective immediately without penalty and without advance notice or opportunity to cure 
for any of the following reasons: 

 
2.5.1.1 The Contractor or any of the Contractor’s officers, directors, employees, agents, 
subsidiaries, affiliates, contractors, or subcontractors furnished any statement, representation, 
warranty, or certification in connection with this Contract, the Solicitation, or the Bid Proposal 
that is false, deceptive, or materially incorrect or incomplete; 
 
2.5.1.2 The Contractor or any of the Contractor’s officers, directors, employees, agents, 
subsidiaries, affiliates, contractors or subcontractors has committed or engaged in fraud, 
misappropriation, embezzlement, malfeasance, misfeasance, or bad faith; 
 
2.5.1.3 The Contractor or any parent or affiliate of the Contractor owning a controlling interest 
in the Contractor dissolves; 

152

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 4 of 21  

 
2.5.1.4 The Contractor terminates or suspends its business; 
 
2.5.1.5 The Contractor’s corporate existence or good standing in Iowa is suspended, 
terminated, revoked or forfeited, or any license or certification held by the Contractor or any of 
the Contractor’s officers, directors, employees, agents, subsidiaries, affiliates, contractors, or 
subcontractors related to the Contractor’s performance under this Contract is suspended, 
terminated, revoked, or forfeited; 
 
2.5.1.6 The Contractor or any of the Contractor’s officers, directors, employees, agents, 
subsidiaries, affiliates, contractors, or subcontractors has failed to comply with any applicable 
international, federal, state (including, but not limited to Iowa Code Chapter 8F), or local laws, 
rules, ordinances, regulations, or orders when performing within the scope of this Contract; 
 
2.5.1.7 The Agency determines or believes the Contractor or any of the Contractor’s officers, 
directors, employees, agents, subsidiaries, affiliates, contractors, or subcontractors has 
engaged in conduct that: (1) has or may expose the Agency or the State to material liability; or 
(2) has caused or may cause a person’s life, health, or safety to be jeopardized; 
 
2.5.1.8 The Contractor or any of the Contractor’s officers, directors, employees, agents, 
subsidiaries, affiliates, contractors, or subcontractors infringes or allegedly infringes or violates 
any patent, trademark, copyright, trade dress, or any other intellectual property right or 
proprietary right, or the Contractor misappropriates or allegedly misappropriates a trade secret 
related to work under this Contract; 
 
2.5.1.9 The Contractor or any of the Contractor’s officers, directors, employees, agents, 
subsidiaries, affiliates, contractors, or subcontractors fails to comply with any applicable 
confidentiality laws, privacy laws, or any provisions of this Contract pertaining to confidentiality 
or privacy; or 
 
2.5.1.10 Any of the following has been engaged in by or occurred with respect to the 
Contractor or any corporation, shareholder or entity having or owning a controlling interest in 
the Contractor: 
Commencing or permitting a filing against it which is not discharged within ninety (90) days, of 
a case or other proceeding seeking liquidation, reorganization, or other relief with respect to 
itself or its debts under any bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar law now or hereafter in 
effect; or filing an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it in any 
involuntary case or other proceeding commenced against it seeking liquidation, reorganization, 
or other relief under any bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar law now or hereafter in effect 
with respect to it or its debts; or consenting to any such relief or to the appointment of or taking 
possession by any such official in any voluntary case or other proceeding commenced against 
it seeking liquidation, reorganization, or other relief under any bankruptcy, insolvency, or other 
similar law now or hereafter in effect with respect to it or its debts; 
• Seeking or suffering the appointment of a trustee, receiver, liquidator, custodian or other 

similar official of it or any substantial part of its assets; 
• Making an assignment for the benefit of creditors; 
• Failing, being unable, or admitting in writing the inability generally to pay its debts or 

obligations as they become due or failing to maintain a positive net worth and such 
additional capital and liquidity as is reasonably adequate or necessary in connection with the 
Contractor’s performance of its obligations under this Contract; or 

• Taking any action to authorize any of the foregoing. 
 
 

153

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 5 of 21  

2.5.2 Termination Upon Notice. Following a thirty (30) day written notice, the Agency may 
terminate this Contract in whole or in part without penalty and without incurring any further 
obligation to the Contractor. Termination can be for any reason or no reason at all. 
 
2.5.3 Termination Due to Lack of Funds or Change in Law. Notwithstanding anything in this 
Contract to the contrary, and subject to the limitations set forth below, the Agency shall have the 
right to terminate this Contract without penalty and without any advance notice as a result of any 
of the following: 
 

2.5.3.1 The legislature or governor fail in the sole opinion of the Agency to appropriate funds 
sufficient to allow the Agency to either meet its obligations under this Contract or to operate as 
required and to fulfill its obligations under this Contract; 
 
2.5.3.2 If funds are de-appropriated, reduced, not allocated, or receipt of funds is delayed, or if 
any funds or revenues needed by the Agency to make any payment hereunder are insufficient 
or unavailable for any other reason as determined by the Agency in its sole discretion; 
 
2.5.3.3 If the Agency’s authorization to conduct its business or engage in activities or 
operations related to the subject matter of this Contract is withdrawn or materially altered or 
modified; 
 
2.5.3.4 If the Agency’s duties, programs or responsibilities are modified or materially altered; 
or 
 
2.5.3.5 If there is a decision of any court, administrative law judge or an arbitration panel or 
any law, rule, regulation, or order is enacted, promulgated, or issued that materially or 
adversely affects the Agency’s ability to fulfill any of its obligations under this Contract. 
 

2.5.4 Other Remedies. The Agency’s right to terminate this Contract shall be in addition to and 
not exclusive of other remedies available to the Agency, and the Agency shall be entitled to 
exercise any other rights and pursue any remedies, in law, at equity, or otherwise. 
 
2.5.5 Limitation of the State’s Payment Obligations. In the event of termination of this Contract 
for any reason by either party (except for termination by the Agency pursuant to Section 2.5.1, 
Termination for Cause by the Agency) the Agency shall pay only those amounts, if any, due and 
owing to the Contractor hereunder for Deliverables actually and satisfactorily provided in 
accordance with the provisions of this Contract up to and including the date of termination of this 
Contract and for which the Agency is obligated to pay pursuant to this Contract; provided however, 
that in the event the Agency terminates this Contract pursuant to Section 2.5.3, Termination Due 
to Lack of Funds or Change in Law, the Agency’s obligation to pay the Contractor such amounts 
and other compensation shall be limited by, and subject to, legally available funds. Payment will 
be made only upon submission of Invoices and proper proof of the Contractor’s claim. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this section in no way limits the rights or remedies available to the 
Agency and shall not be construed to require the Agency to pay any compensation or other 
amounts hereunder in the event of the Contractor’s breach of this Contract or any amounts 
withheld by the Agency in accordance with the terms of this Contract. The Agency shall not be 
liable, under any circumstances, for any of the following: 
 

2.5.5.1 The payment of unemployment compensation to the Contractor’s employees; 
 
2.5.5.2 The payment of workers’ compensation claims, which occur during the Contract or 
extend beyond the date on which the Contract terminates; 
 
2.5.5.3 Any costs incurred by the Contractor in its performance of the Contract, including, but 

154

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 6 of 21  

not limited to, startup costs, overhead, or other costs associated with the performance of the 
Contract; 
 
2.5.5.4 Any damages or other amounts associated with the loss of prospective profits, 
anticipated sales, goodwill, or for expenditures, investments, or commitments made in 
connection with this Contract;  
 
2.5.5.5 Any amount or form of payment that would violate State or federal law; or 
 
2.5.5.6 Any taxes the Contractor may owe in connection with the performance of this Contract, 
including, but not limited to, sales taxes, excise taxes, use taxes, income taxes, or property 
taxes. 
 

2.5.6 Contractor’s Contract Close-Out Duties. Upon receipt of notice of termination, at 
expiration of the Contract, or upon request of the Agency (hereafter, “Close-Out Event”), the 
Contractor shall: 

 
2.5.6.1 Cease work under this Contract and take all necessary or appropriate steps to limit 
disbursements and minimize costs, and furnish a report within thirty (30) days of the Close-Out 
Event, describing the status of all work performed under the Contract and such other matters 
as the Agency may require. 
 
2.5.6.2 Immediately cease using and return to the Agency or otherwise maintain or provide 
any property or data, records, or materials, whether tangible or intangible, provided by the 
Agency to the Contractor, as directed by the Agency. 
 
2.5.6.3 Cooperate in good faith with the Agency and its employees, agents, and independent 
contractors during the transition period between the Close-Out Event and the substitution of 
any replacement service provider. The Contractor shall ensure a smooth transition of services 
to clients, regardless of whether this Contract terminates prior to or upon the expiration date of 
the Contract. If the Contractor fails to ensure a smooth transition of services to clients, the 
Agency may, at its sole discretion, place the Contractor on a publicly available list of 
contractors barred from entering into any contract with the Agency. 
 
2.5.6.4 Immediately return to the Agency any payments made by the Agency for Deliverables 
that were not rendered or provided by the Contractor or that the Agency determines do not 
satisfy its Acceptance Tests. 
 
2.5.6.5 Immediately deliver to the Agency any and all Deliverables for which the Agency has 
made payment (in whole or in part) that are in the possession or under the control of the 
Contractor or its agents or subcontractors in whatever stage of development and form of 
recordation such property is expressed or embodied at that time. 
 
2.5.6.6 Address any equipment purchased with Agency funds with the Agency. Title to any 
Equipment purchased in whole or in part with Agency funds through this Contract resides with 
the Agency. Upon Contract expiration or termination the Agency reserves the right to transfer 
title to the Equipment to the State, the Contractor, or another contractor. 

 
2.5.7 Termination for Cause by the Contractor. The Contractor may only terminate this 
Contract for the breach by the Agency of any material term of this Contract, if such breach is not 
cured within sixty (60) days of the Agency’s receipt of the Contractor’s written notice of breach. 
 
2.5.8 Suspension. When, as determined by the Agency, a Contractor has materially failed to 
comply with the terms and conditions of the Contract, the Agency may suspend the Contract, in 

155

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 7 of 21  

whole or in part, upon written notice. The notice of suspension will state the reason(s) for the 
suspension, any corrective action required, and the effective date. 
 

2.5.8.1 The Agency shall have the right to suspend the contract without penalty by providing 
ten (10) days written notice to the Contractor if any of the following conditions exist: 
• The legislature or governor fail in the sole opinion of the Department to appropriate funds 

sufficient to allow the Department to either meet its obligations under this Contract or to 
operate as required and to fulfill its obligations under this Contract; 

• Adequate funds are de-appropriated, reduced, or not allocated or available or if funds 
needed by the Department, at the Department’s sole discretion, are insufficient for any 
reason; 

• The Department’s authorization to operate is withdrawn or there is a material alteration in the 
programs administered by the Department; or 

• The Department’s duties are substantially modified. 
 
2.5.8.2 A suspension shall be in effect until the Contractor has provided evidence satisfactory 
to the Agency that corrective action has been or will be taken, until the contract is terminated; 
or until sufficient funding is reallocated to the Agency, as determined by the Agency in its sole 
discretion. 
 
2.5.8.3 Obligations incurred by the Contractor during the suspension period shall not be 
allowed unless expressly authorized in the notice of suspension or otherwise expressly 
approved by the Agency.  
 

2.6 Indemnification. 
2.6.1 By the Contractor. The Contractor and its successors and assignees agree to indemnify 
and hold harmless the State, the Agency, and its officers, appointed and elected officials, board 
and commission members, employees, volunteers, and agents (collectively the “Indemnified 
Parties”), from any and all costs, expenses, losses, claims, damages, liabilities, settlements, and 
judgments (including, without limitation, the reasonable value of the time spent by the Attorney 
General’s Office,) and the costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees of other counsel retained by the 
Indemnified Parties directly or indirectly related to, resulting from, or arising out of this Contract, 
including but not limited to any claims related to, resulting from, or arising out of: 
 

2.6.1.1 Any breach of this Contract; 
 
2.6.1.2 Any negligent, intentional, or wrongful act or omission of the Contractor or any agent or 
subcontractor utilized or employed by the Contractor; 
 
2.6.1.3 The Contractor’s performance or attempted performance of this Contract, including any 
agent or subcontractor utilized or employed by the Contractor; 
 
2.6.1.4 Any failure by the Contractor to make all reports, payments, and withholdings required 
by federal and state law with respect to social security, employee income and other taxes, 
fees, or costs required by the Contractor to conduct business in the State of Iowa; 
 
2.6.1.5 Any failure by the Contractor to comply with all federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations applicable to this Contract; or 
 
2.6.1.6 Any claim of misappropriation of a trade secret or infringement or violation of any 
intellectual property rights, proprietary rights, or personal rights of any third party, including any 
claim that any Deliverable or any use thereof (or the exercise of any rights with respect 
thereto) infringes, violates, or misappropriates any patent, copyright, trade secret, trademark, 

156

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 8 of 21  

trade dress, mask work, utility design, or other intellectual property right or proprietary right of 
any third party. 

 
2.7 Insurance. 

2.7.1 Insurance Requirements. The Contractor, and any subcontractor, shall maintain in full 
force and effect, with insurance companies licensed by the State of Iowa, at the Contractor’s 
expense, insurance covering its work during the entire term of this Contract, which includes any 
extensions or renewals thereof. The Contractor’s insurance shall, among other things: 
 

2.7.1.1 Be occurrence based and shall insure against any loss or damage resulting from or 
related to the Contractor’s performance of this Contract regardless of the date the claim is filed 
or expiration of the policy; 
 
2.7.1.2. Name the State of Iowa and the Agency as additional insureds or loss payees on the 
policies for all coverages required by this Contract, with the exception of Workers’ 
Compensation, or the Contractor shall obtain an endorsement to the same effect; and 
 
2.7.1.3 Provide a waiver of any subrogation rights that any of its insurance carriers might have 
against the State on the policies for all coverages required by this Contract, with the exception 
of Workers’ Compensation. 
 
The requirements set forth in this section shall be indicated on the certificates of insurance 
coverage supplied to the Agency. 
 

2.7.2 Types and Amounts of Insurance Required. Unless otherwise requested by the Agency in 
writing, the Contractor shall cause to be issued insurance coverages insuring the Contractor and 
subcontractors against all general liabilities, product liability, personal injury, property damage, 
and (where applicable) professional liability in the amount specified in the Special Terms for each 
occurrence. In addition, the Contractor shall ensure it has any necessary workers’ compensation 
and employer liability insurance as required by Iowa law. 
 
2.7.3 Certificates of Coverage. The Contractor shall submit certificates of the insurance, which 
indicate coverage and notice provisions as required by this Contract, to the Agency upon 
execution of this Contract. The Contractor shall maintain all insurance policies required by this 
Contract in full force and effect during the entire term of this Contract, which includes any 
extensions or renewals thereof, and shall not permit such policies to be canceled or amended 
except with the advance written approval of the Agency. The insurer shall state in the certificate 
that no cancellation of the insurance will be made without at least a thirty (30) day prior written 
notice to the Agency. The certificates shall be subject to approval by the Agency. Approval of the 
insurance certificates by the Agency shall not relieve the Contractor of any obligation under this 
Contract. 
 
2.7.4 Notice of Claim. Contractor shall provide prompt notice to the Agency of any claim related 
to the contracted services made by a third party. If the claim matures to litigation, the Contractor 
shall keep the Agency regularly informed of the status of the lawsuit, including any substantive 
rulings. The Contractor shall confer directly with the Agency about and before any substantive 
settlement negotiations. 

 
2.8 Ownership and Security of Agency Information. 

2.8.1 Ownership and Disposition of Agency Information. Any information, records, or data 
either supplied by the Agency to the Contractor, or collected by the Contractor, in the course of the 
performance of this Contract shall be considered the property of the Agency (“Agency 
Information”). The Contractor shall not use Agency Information for any purpose other than 
providing services under the Contract. The Contractor shall not disclose, sell, assign, lease, or 

157

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 9 of 21  

otherwise provide Agency Information to third parties, except as expressly authorized through this 
Contract, and the Contractor shall not allow commercial exploitation of Agency Information by or 
on behalf of the Contractor. The Agency shall own all Agency Information that may reside within 
the Contractor’s hosting environment or equipment/media. 
 
2.8.2 Foreign Hosting and Storage Prohibited. Confidential Information shall be hosted and 
stored within the continental United States only. 
 
2.8.3 Access to Agency Information that is Confidential Information. The Contractor and its 
employees, agents, and subcontractors may have access to Agency Information that is 
Confidential Information only to the extent necessary to carry out responsibilities under the 
Contract. Access to such Confidential Information shall comply with the State’s policies, 
procedures, and standards, and all restrictions, obligations, and responsibilities of the Contractor 
with regard to Confidential Information under this Contract shall also apply to the subcontractors, 
and the Contractor shall include in all of its subcontracts a clause that so states. The Contractor 
shall maintain written documentation of all agents and subcontractors with access to Agency 
Information that is also Confidential Information and provide this documentation to the Agency 
upon request. In all instances, access to Confidential Information from outside of the continental 
United States, either by the Contractor, including a foreign office or division of the Contractor or its 
affiliates or associates, or any subcontractor, is prohibited. 
 
2.8.4 No Disclosure of Confidential Information. The Contractor shall maintain the 
confidentiality of and protect from unauthorized disclosure all Agency Information that is 
Confidential Information. The Contractor shall not disclose any Confidential Information collected, 
maintained, or used in the course of performance of the Contract only except as expressly 
permitted herein or required by law and this Contract. The Contractor shall not link any data 
provided by the Agency with any other data systems or data sets without prior written permission 
from the Agency. The Contractor may be held civilly or criminally liable for improper use or 
disclosure of Confidential Information. 
 
2.8.5 Contractor Breach Notification Obligations. The Contractor shall immediately report to 
the Agency Contract Manager any unauthorized access or disclosure of Confidential Information. 
The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable laws that require the notification of individuals 
in the event of unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information or other event(s) 
requiring notification in accordance with applicable law. In the event of a breach of the 
Contractor's security obligations or other event requiring notification under applicable law, the 
Contractor agrees to follow Agency directives, which may include assuming responsibility for 
informing all such individuals in accordance with applicable laws, and to indemnify, hold harmless, 
and defend the State of Iowa against any claims, damages, or other harm related to such breach. 
 
2.8.6 Compliance of Contractor Personnel. The Contractor and the Contractor’s personnel shall 
comply with the State’s security and personnel policies, procedures, and rules, including any 
procedure which the Agency’s personnel, contractors, and consultants are normally asked to 
follow. The Contractor agrees to cooperate fully and to provide any assistance necessary to the 
Agency in the investigation of any security incidents and breaches that may involve the Contractor 
or the Contractor’s personnel. All services shall be performed in accordance with State Information 
Technology security standards and policies. By way of example only, see Iowa Code 8B.23, and 
https://ocio.iowa.gov/home/standards. 
 
2.8.7 Subpoena. In the event that a subpoena or other legal process is served upon the 
Contractor for records containing Confidential Information, the Contractor shall promptly notify the 
Agency and cooperate with the Agency in any lawful effort to protect the Confidential Information. 
 
2.8.8 Return and/or Destruction of Information. Notwithstanding Contractor's obligations for 

158

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 10 of 21  

maintaining records expressly contained herein, including 2.12.25.2, upon expiration or 
termination of the Contract for any reason, the Contractor agrees to comply with all Agency 
directives regarding the return or destruction of all Agency Information and any derivative work. 
The Contractor shall comply with these directives within thirty (30) days unless another timeframe 
is mutually agreed upon by the parties. Delivery of returned Agency Information must be through a 
secured electronic transmission or by parcel service that utilizes tracking numbers. Such 
information must be provided in a format useable by the Agency. Following the Agency’s verified 
receipt of the Agency Information and any derivative work, the Contractor agrees to physically 
and/or electronically destroy or erase all residual Agency Information regardless of format from the 
entire Contractor’s technology resources and any other storage media. This includes, but is not 
limited to, all production copies, test copies, backup copies and /or printed copies of information 
created on any other servers or media and at all other Contractor sites. Any permitted destruction 
of Agency Information must occur in such a manner as to render the information incapable of 
being reconstructed or recovered. The Contractor will provide a record of information destruction 
to the Agency for inspection and records retention no later than thirty (30) days after destruction. 

 
2.9 Intellectual Property. 

2.9.1 Ownership and Assignment of Other Deliverables. The Contractor agrees that the State 
and the Agency shall become the sole and exclusive owners of all Deliverables. The Contractor 
hereby irrevocably assigns, transfers and conveys to the State and the Agency all right, title, and 
interest in and to all Deliverables and all intellectual property and proprietary rights arising out of, 
embodied in, or related to such Deliverables, including copyrights, patents, trademarks, trade 
secrets, trade dress, mask work, utility design, derivative works, and all other rights and interests 
therein or related thereto. The Contractor represents and warrants that the State and the Agency 
shall acquire good and clear title to all Deliverables, free from any claims, liens, security interests, 
encumbrances, intellectual property rights, proprietary rights, or other rights or interests of the 
Contractor or of any third party, including any employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor, 
subsidiary, or affiliate of the Contractor. The Contractor (and Contractor’s employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors, subsidiaries and affiliates) shall not retain any property interests or 
other rights in and to the Deliverables and shall not use any Deliverables, in whole or in part, for 
any purpose, without the prior written consent of the Agency and the payment of such royalties or 
other compensation as the Agency deems appropriate. Unless otherwise requested by the 
Agency, upon completion or termination of this Contract, the Contractor will immediately turn over 
to the Agency all Deliverables not previously delivered to the Agency, and no copies thereof shall 
be retained by the Contractor or its employees, agents, subcontractors, or affiliates, without the 
prior written consent of the Agency. 
 
2.9.2 Waiver. To the extent any of the Contractor’s rights in any Deliverables are not subject to 
assignment or transfer hereunder, including any moral rights and any rights of attribution and of 
integrity, the Contractor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waives all such rights and 
enforcement thereof and agrees not to challenge the State’s rights in and to the Deliverables. 
 
2.9.3 Further Assurances. At the Agency’s request, the Contractor will execute and deliver such 
instruments and take such other action as may be requested by the Agency to establish, perfect, 
or protect the State’s rights in and to the Deliverables and to carry out the assignments, transfers 
and conveyances set forth in Section 2.9, Intellectual Property. 
 
2.9.4 Publications. Unless expressly authorized by the Contract, the Contractor shall not publish 
in any format any final or interim report, document, form, presentation, or other material developed 
as a result of this Contract without the express written consent of the Agency as requested 
through the Contract Manager. Any publication containing Agency Information shall follow all 
Agency confidentially policies and procedures. Any such publication shall contain a statement that 
the work was done pursuant to a contract with the Agency and that it does not necessarily reflect 
the opinions, findings, and conclusions of the Agency. 

159

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 11 of 21  

 
2.10 Warranties. 

2.10.1 Construction of Warranties Expressed in this Contract with Warranties Implied by 
Law. Warranties made by the Contractor in this Contract, whether: (1) this Contract specifically 
denominates the Contractor's promise as a warranty; or (2) the warranty is created by the 
Contractor's affirmation or promise, by a description of the Deliverables to be provided, or by 
provision of samples to the Agency, shall not be construed as limiting or negating any warranty 
provided by law, including without limitation, warranties that arise through the course of dealing or 
usage of trade. The warranties expressed in this Contract are intended to modify the warranties 
implied by law only to the extent that they expand the warranties applicable to the Deliverables 
provided by the Contractor. With the exception of Subsection 2.10.3, the provisions of this section 
apply during the Warranty Period as defined in the Special Terms. 

 
2.10.2 Contractor represents and warrants that: 

2.10.2.1 All Deliverables shall be wholly original with and prepared solely by the Contractor; or 
it owns, possesses, holds, and has received or secured all rights, permits, permissions, 
licenses, and authority necessary to provide the Deliverables to the Agency hereunder and to 
assign, grant and convey the rights, benefits, licenses, and other rights assigned, granted, or 
conveyed to the Agency hereunder or under any license agreement related hereto without 
violating any rights of any third party; 
 
2.10.2.2 The Contractor has not previously and will not grant any rights in any Deliverables to 
any third party that are inconsistent with the rights granted to the Agency herein; and 
 
2.10.2.3 The Agency shall peacefully and quietly have, hold, possess, use, and enjoy the 
Deliverables without suit, disruption, or interruption. 

 
2.10.3 The Contractor represents and warrants that: 

2.10.3.1 The Deliverables (and all intellectual property rights and proprietary rights arising out 
of, embodied in, or related to such Deliverables); and the Agency’s use of, and exercise of any 
rights with respect to, the Deliverables (and all intellectual property rights and proprietary rights 
arising out of, embodied in, or related to such Deliverables), do not and will not, under any 
circumstances, misappropriate a trade secret or infringe upon or violate any copyright, patent, 
trademark, trade dress or other intellectual property right, proprietary right or personal right of 
any third party. The Contractor further represents and warrants there is no pending or 
threatened claim, litigation, or action that is based on a claim of infringement or violation of an 
intellectual property right, proprietary right or personal right or misappropriation of a trade 
secret related to the Deliverables. The Contractor shall inform the Agency in writing 
immediately upon becoming aware of any actual, potential, or threatened claim of or cause of 
action for infringement or violation or an intellectual property right, proprietary right, or personal 
right or misappropriation of a trade secret. If such a claim or cause of action arises or is likely 
to arise, then the Contractor shall, at the Agency’s request and at the Contractor’s sole 
expense: 
• Procure for the Agency the right or license to continue to use the Deliverable at issue; 
• Replace such Deliverable with a functionally equivalent or superior Deliverable free of any 

such infringement, violation, or misappropriation; 
• Modify or replace the affected portion of the Deliverable with a functionally equivalent or 

superior Deliverable free of any such infringement, violation, or misappropriation; or 
• Accept the return of the Deliverable at issue and refund to the Agency all fees, charges, and 

any other amounts paid by the Agency with respect to such Deliverable. In addition, the 
Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, protect, and hold harmless the State and its officers, 
directors, employees, officials, and agents as provided in the Indemnification Section of this 
Contract, including for any breach of the representations and warranties made by the 

160

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 12 of 21  

Contractor in this section. 
The warranty provided in this Subsection 2.10.3 shall be perpetual, shall not be subject to the 
contractual Warranty Period, and shall survive termination of this Contract. The foregoing 
remedies provided in this subsection shall be in addition to and not exclusive of other 
remedies available to the Agency and shall survive termination of this Contract. 
 

2.10.4 The Contractor represents and warrants that the Deliverables shall: 
2.10.4.1 Be free from material Deficiencies; and 
 
2.10.4.2 Meet, conform to, and operate in accordance with all Specifications and in 
accordance with this Contract during the Warranty Period, as defined in the Special Terms. 
During the Warranty Period the Contractor shall—at its expense—repair, correct, or replace 
any Deliverable that contains or experiences material Deficiencies or fails to meet, conform to, 
or operate in accordance with Specifications within five (5) Business Days of receiving notice 
of such Deficiencies or failures from the Agency or within such other period as the Agency 
specifies in the notice. In the event the Contractor is unable to repair, correct, or replace such 
Deliverables to the Agency’s satisfaction, the Contractor shall refund the fees or other 
amounts paid for the Deliverables and for any services related thereto. The foregoing shall not 
constitute an exclusive remedy under this Contract, and the Agency shall be entitled to pursue 
any other available contractual, legal, or equitable remedies. The Contractor shall be available 
at all reasonable times to assist the Agency with questions, problems, and concerns about the 
Deliverables, to inform the Agency promptly of any known Deficiencies in any Deliverables, 
repair and correct any Deliverables not performing in accordance with the warranties 
contained in this Contract—notwithstanding that such Deliverables may have been accepted 
by the Agency—and provide the Agency with all necessary materials with respect to such 
repaired or corrected Deliverables. 
 

2.10.5 The Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that all services to be performed under 
this Contract shall be performed in a professional, competent, diligent, and workmanlike manner 
by knowledgeable, trained, and qualified personnel, all in accordance with the terms and 
Specifications of this Contract and the standards of performance considered generally acceptable 
in the industry for similar tasks and projects. In the absence of a Specification for the performance 
of any portion of this Contract, the parties agree that the applicable Specification shall be the 
generally accepted industry standard. So long as the Agency notifies the Contractor of any 
services performed in violation of this standard, the Contractor shall re-perform the services at no 
cost to the Agency, such that the services are rendered in the above-specified manner, or if the 
Contractor is unable to perform the services as warranted, the Contractor shall reimburse the 
Agency any fees or compensation paid to the Contractor for the unsatisfactory services. 
 
2.10.6 The Contractor represents and warrants that the Deliverables will comply with all Applicable 
Law. 
 
2.10.7 Obligations Owed to Third Parties. The Contractor represents and warrants that all 
obligations owed to third parties with respect to the activities contemplated to be undertaken by 
the Contractor pursuant to this Contract are or will be fully satisfied by the Contractor so that the 
Agency will not have any obligations with respect thereto. 
 

2.11 Acceptance of Deliverables. 
2.11.1 Acceptance of Written Deliverables. For the purposes of this section, written 
Deliverables means documents including, but not limited to project plans, planning documents, 
reports, or instructional materials (“Written Deliverables”). Although the Agency determines what 
Written Deliverables are subject to formal Acceptance, this section generally does not apply to 
routine progress or financial reports. Absent more specific Acceptance Criteria in the Special 
Terms, following delivery of any Written Deliverable pursuant to the Contract, the Agency will 

161

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 13 of 21  

notify the Contractor whether the Deliverable meets contractual specifications and requirements. 
Written Deliverables shall not be considered accepted by the Agency, nor does the Agency have 
an obligation to pay for such Deliverables, unless and until the Agency has notified the Contractor 
of the Agency’s Final Acceptance of the Written Deliverables. In all cases, any statements 
included in such Written Deliverables that alter or conflict with any contractual requirements shall 
in no way be considered as changing the contractual requirements unless and until the parties 
formally amend the Contract. 
 
2.11.2 Notice of Acceptance and Future Deficiencies. The Contractor’s receipt of any notice of 
Acceptance, including Final Acceptance, with respect to any Deliverable shall not be construed as 
a waiver of any of the Agency’s rights to enforce the terms of this Contract or require performance 
in the event the Contractor breaches this Contract or any Deficiency is later discovered with 
respect to such Deliverable. 

 
2.12 Contract Administration. 

2.12.1 Independent Contractor. The status of the Contractor shall be that of an independent 
contractor. The Contractor, its employees, agents, and any subcontractors performing under this 
Contract are not employees or agents of the State or any agency, division, or department of the 
State simply by virtue of work performed pursuant to this Contract. Neither the Contractor nor its 
employees shall be considered employees of the Agency or the State for federal or state tax 
purposes simply by virtue of work performed pursuant to this Contract. The Agency will not 
withhold taxes on behalf of the Contractor (unless required by law). 
 
2.12.2 Incorporation of Documents. To the extent this Contract arises out of a Solicitation, the 
parties acknowledge that the Contract consists of these contract terms and conditions as well as 
the Solicitation and the Bid Proposal. The Solicitation and the Bid Proposal are incorporated into 
the Contract by reference. If the Contractor proposed exceptions or modifications to the Sample 
Contract attached to the Solicitation or to the Solicitation itself, these proposed exceptions or 
modifications shall not be incorporated into this Contract unless expressly set forth herein.  
 
2.12.3 Intent of References to Bid Documents. To the extent this Contract arises out of a 
Solicitation, the references to the parties' obligations, which are contained in this Contract, are 
intended to supplement or clarify the obligations as stated in the Solicitation and the Bid Proposal. 
The failure of the parties to make reference to the terms of the Solicitation or the Bid Proposal in 
this Contract shall not be construed as creating a conflict and will not relieve the Contractor of the 
contractual obligations imposed by the terms of the Solicitation and the Contractor’s Bid Proposal. 
Terms offered in the Bid Proposal, which exceed the requirements of the Solicitation, shall not be 
construed as creating an inconsistency or conflict with the Solicitation or the Contract. The 
contractual obligations of the Agency are expressly stated in this document. The Bid Proposal 
does not create any express or implied obligations of the Agency. 
 
2.12.4 Compliance with the Law; Nondiscrimination in Employment. The Contractor, its 
employees, agents, and subcontractors shall comply with all Applicable Law. All such Applicable 
Law is incorporated into this Contract as of the effective date of the Applicable Law. The 
Contractor and Agency expressly reject any proposition that future changes to Applicable Law are 
inapplicable to this Contract and the Contractor’s provision of Deliverables or performance in 
accordance with this Contract. When providing Deliverables pursuant to this Contract the 
Contractor, its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall comply with all Applicable Law. 
 

2.12.4.1 The Contractor, its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall not engage in 
discriminatory employment practices which are forbidden by Applicable Law. Upon the State’s 
written request, the Contractor shall submit to the State a copy of its affirmative action plan, 
containing goals and time specifications, and non-discrimination and accessibility plans and 
policies regarding services to clients as required under 11 Iowa Admin. Code chapter 121. 

162

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 14 of 21  

 
2.12.4.2 The Contractor, its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall also comply with all 
Applicable Law regarding business permits and licenses that may be required to carry out the 
work performed under this Contract. 
 
2.12.4.3 In the event the Contractor contracts with third parties for the performance of any of 
the Contractor obligations under this Contract as set forth in Section 2.12.9, Use of Third 
Parties, the Contractor shall take such steps as necessary to ensure such third parties are 
bound by the terms and conditions contained in this section. 
 
2.12.4.4 Notwithstanding anything in this Contract to the contrary, the Contractor’s failure to 
fulfill any requirement set forth in this section shall be regarded as a material breach of this 
Contract and the State may cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this Contract. 
The State may further declare the Contractor ineligible for future State contracts in accordance 
with authorized procedures or the Contractor may be subject to other sanctions as provided by 
law or rule. 

 
2.12.5 Procurement. The Contractor shall use procurement procedures that comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 
 
2.12.6 Non-Exclusive Rights. This Contract is not exclusive. The Agency reserves the right to 
select other contractors to provide Deliverables similar or identical to those described in the Scope 
of Work during the entire term of this Contract, which includes any extensions or renewals thereof. 
 
2.12.7 Amendments. With the exception of the Contract end date, which may be extended in the 
Agency’s sole discretion, this Contract may only be amended by mutual written consent of the 
parties. Amendments shall be executed on a form approved by the Agency that expressly states 
the intent of the parties to amend this Contract. This Contract shall not be amended in any way by 
use of terms and conditions in an Invoice or other ancillary transactional document. To the extent 
that language in a transactional document conflicts with the terms of this Contract, the terms of 
this Contract shall control. 

 
2.12.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no third party beneficiaries to this Contract. This 
Contract is intended only to benefit the State and the Contractor. 
 
2.12.9 Use of Third Parties. The Agency acknowledges that the Contractor may contract with 
third parties for the performance of any of the Contractor’s obligations under this Contract. For 
purposes of this Contract, third parties who perform any of the Contractor’s obligations pursuant to 
this Contract are considered subcontractors. The Contractor shall notify the Agency in writing of all 
subcontracts relating to Deliverables to be provided under this Contract prior to the time the 
subcontract(s) become effective. The Agency reserves the right to review and approve all 
subcontracts. The Contractor may enter into these contracts to complete the project provided that 
the Contractor remains responsible for all Deliverables provided under this Contract. All 
restrictions, obligations, and responsibilities of the Contractor under this Contract shall also apply 
to the subcontractors and the Contractor shall include in all of its subcontracts a clause that so 
states. The Agency shall have the right to request the removal of a subcontractor from the 
Contract for good cause. 
 
2.12.10 Choice of Law and Forum. The laws of the State of Iowa shall govern and determine all 
matters arising out of or in connection with this Contract without regard to the conflict of law 
provisions of Iowa law. All litigation commenced in connection with this Contract shall be brought 
and maintained solely in Polk County District Court for the State of Iowa, Des Moines, Iowa, or in 
the United States District Court for the Southern District of Iowa, Central Division, Des Moines, 
Iowa, wherever jurisdiction is appropriate. This provision shall not be construed as waiving any 

163

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 15 of 21  

immunity to suit or liability including without limitation sovereign immunity in State or Federal court, 
which may be available to the Agency or the State of Iowa. 
 
2.12.11 Assignment and Delegation. The Contractor may not assign, transfer, or convey in 
whole or in part this Contract without the prior written consent of the Agency. The Contractor shall 
submit a written agreement with a proposed assignee or designee, as directed by the Agency. For 
the purpose of construing this clause, a transfer of a controlling interest in the Contractor shall be 
considered an assignment. The Contractor may not delegate any of its obligations or duties under 
this Contract without the prior written consent of the Agency. The Contractor may not assign, 
pledge as collateral, grant a security interest in, create a lien against, or otherwise encumber any 
payments that may or will be made to the Contractor under this Contract. 
 
2.12.12 Integration and Order of Precedence. This Contract represents the entire Contract 
between the parties. The parties shall not rely on any representation that may have been made 
which is not included in this Contract. In the event of a conflict between or among the provisions of 
the Contract, the conflict shall be resolved according to the following priority, ranked in descending 
order with the governing language from the Contract document listed first in the following list: (1) 
Written amendment mutually executed by the parties or as executed in accordance with Section 
2.2, Duration of Contract; (2) Special Terms; (3) General Terms and Conditions for Service 
Contracts; (4) Contingent Terms for Service Contracts; (5) Solicitation; (6) Bid Proposal. 
 
2.12.13 No Drafter. No party to this Contract shall be considered the drafter of this Contract for 
the purpose of any statute, case law, or rule of construction that would or might cause any 
provision to be construed against the drafter. 
 
2.12.14 Headings or Captions. The paragraph headings or captions used in this Contract are for 
identification purposes only and do not limit or construe the contents of the paragraphs. 
 
2.12.15 Not a Joint Venture. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed as creating or 
constituting the relationship of a partnership, joint venture, (or other association of any kind or 
agent and principal relationship) between the parties hereto. No party, unless otherwise 
specifically provided for herein, has the authority to enter into any contract or create an obligation 
or liability on behalf of, in the name of, or binding upon another party to this Contract. 
 
2.12.16 Joint and Several Liability. If the Contractor is a joint entity, consisting of more than one 
individual, partnership, corporation, or other business organization, all such entities shall be jointly 
and severally liable for carrying out the activities and obligations of this Contract, for any default of 
activities and obligations, and for any fiscal liabilities. 
 
2.12.17 Supersedes Former Contracts or Agreements. This Contract supersedes all prior 
contracts or agreements between the Agency and the Contractor for the Deliverables to be 
provided in connection with this Contract. 
 
2.12.18 Waiver. Except as specifically provided for in a waiver signed by duly authorized 
representatives of the Agency and the Contractor, failure by either party at any time to require 
performance by the other party or to claim a breach of any provision of the Contract shall not be 
construed as affecting any subsequent right to require performance or to claim a breach. 
 
2.12.19 Notice. Any notices required by the Contract shall be given in writing by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, by receipted hand delivery, by Federal Express, courier or 
other similar and reliable carrier which shall be addressed to each party’s Contract Manager as set 
forth in the Contract Declarations and Execution Section. From time to time, the parties may 
change the name and address of a party designated to receive notice. Such change of the 
designated person shall be in writing to the other party. Each such notice shall be deemed to have 

164

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 16 of 21  

been provided: 
• At the time it is actually received in the case of hand delivery; 
• Within one (1) day in the case of overnight delivery, courier or services such as Federal Express 

with guaranteed next-day delivery; or 
• Within five (5) days after it is deposited in the U.S. Mail. 
 
2.12.20 Cumulative Rights. The various rights, powers, options, elections, and remedies of any 
party provided in this Contract, shall be construed as cumulative and not one of them is exclusive 
of the others or exclusive of any rights, remedies or priorities allowed either party by law, and shall 
in no way affect or impair the right of any party to pursue any other equitable or legal remedy to 
which any party may be entitled. 
 
2.12.21 Severability. If any provision of this Contract is determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other part or provision of this Contract. 
 
2.12.22 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to the Contractor’s 
performance of the terms of this Contract. The Contractor shall ensure that all personnel providing 
Deliverables to the Agency are responsive to the Agency’s requirements and requests in all 
respects. 
 
2.12.23 Authorization. Each signatory to the Contract or subsequent Contract amendments and 
the Contractor represents and warrants that: 
 
2.12.23.1 The signatory has the right, power, and authority to enter into this Contract and to bind 
the party represented by the signatory to this Contract, and the Contractor has the right, power, 
and authority to perform its obligations under this Contract. 
 
2.21.23.2 It has taken all requisite action (corporate, statutory, or otherwise) to approve execution, 
delivery, and performance of this Contract and this Contract constitutes a legal, valid, and binding 
obligation upon itself in accordance with its terms. 
 
2.12.24 Successors in Interest. All the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Contract shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors, 
assigns, and legal representatives. 
 
2.12.25 Records Retention and Access. 

2.12.25.1 Financial Records. The Contractor shall maintain accurate, current, and complete 
records of the financial activity of this Contract which sufficiently and properly document and 
calculate all charges billed to the Agency during the entire term of this Contract, which 
includes any extensions or renewals thereof, and for a period of at least seven (7) years 
following the date of final payment or completion of any required audit (whichever is later). If 
any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving the records has been started 
before the expiration of the seven (7) year period, the records must be retained until 
completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the 
regular seven (7) year period, whichever is later. The Contractor shall permit the Agency, the 
Auditor of the State of Iowa or any other authorized representative of the State and where 
federal funds are involved, the Comptroller General of the United States or any other 
authorized representative of the United States government, to access and examine, audit, 
excerpt and transcribe any directly pertinent books, documents, papers, electronic or optically 
stored and created records, or other records of the Contractor relating to orders, Invoices or 
payments, or any other Documentation or materials pertaining to this Contract, wherever such 
records may be located. The Contractor shall not impose a charge for audit or examination of 

165

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 17 of 21  

the Contractor’s books and records. Based on the audit findings, the Agency reserves the right 
to address the Contractor’s board or other managing entity regarding performance and 
expenditures. When state or federal law or the terms of this Contract require compliance with 
the OMNI Circular, OMB Uniform Guidance: Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards or other similar provision addressing proper use 
of government funds, the Contractor shall comply with these additional records retention and 
access requirements: 
 

2.12.25.1.1 Records of financial activity shall include records that adequately identify the 
source and application of funds. When the terms of this Contract require matching funds, 
cash contributions made by the Contractor and third-party in-kind (property or service) 
contributions, these funds must be verifiable from the Contractor’s records. These records 
must contain information pertaining to contract amount, obligations, unobligated balances, 
assets, liabilities, expenditures, income, and third-party reimbursements. 
 
2.12.25.1.2 The Contractor shall maintain accounting records supported by source 
documentation that may include but are not limited to cancelled checks, paid bills, payroll, 
time and attendance records, and contract award documents. 
 
2.12.25.1.3 The Contractor, in maintaining project expenditure accounts, records and 
reports, shall make any necessary adjustments to reflect refunds, credits, underpayments 
or overpayments, as well as any adjustments resulting from administrative or compliance 
reviews and audits. Such adjustments shall be set forth in the financial reports filed with 
the Agency. 
 
2.12.25.1.4 The Contractor shall maintain a sufficient record keeping system to provide the 
necessary data for the purposes of planning, monitoring, and evaluating its program. 

 
2.12.25.2 Client Records. The Contractor shall retain all non-medical and medical client 
records for a period of seven (7) years from the last date of service for each patient; or in the 
case of a minor patient or client, for a period consistent with that established by Iowa Code § 
614.1(9), whichever is greater. 
 
2.12.25.3 Contractual Records.  The Contractor agrees to provide to the Agency, upon 
request, all records related to the Contract including but not limited to client records, statistical 
information, data, board and other administrative records, and financial records including 
budget, accounting activities, financial statements, and audit information. This includes records 
related to the Contract that may be in the possession of the Contractor’s agents or 
subcontractors.  
 
2.12.25.4 Equipment Records. The Contractor shall maintain inventory control records and 
maintenance procedures for all Equipment purchased in whole or in part with Agency funds or 
obtained from state surplus or the Agency.  Equipment records shall include the following for 
each item:  state tag number (or Contractor inventory number if no state tag has been 
assigned); description; physical location; name of the Contract purchased under; percentage 
of the total cost of item paid for by Agency funds; and, if available, vendor name, 
manufacturer’s serial number, purchase price, date of acquisition, date of disposition, 
disposition price, and type of disposition.  
A control system (including an annual physical inventory) shall be implemented and 
maintained to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage, or theft of Equipment. 
Any loss, damage, or theft shall be investigated, fully documented, and reported to the 
Agency. The Contractor shall also report suspected theft to local law enforcement.  Where the 
Contractor is authorized to sell the Equipment, sale procedures shall provide for competition to 
the extent practicable and result in the highest possible disposition price. 

166

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 18 of 21  

 
2.12.26 Audits. 

2.12.26.1 The Agency may require, at any time and at its sole discretion, that recipients of 
non-federal and/or federal funds have an audit performed. The Contractor shall submit one (1) 
copy of the audit report to the Agency within thirty (30) days of its issuance, unless specific 
exemption is granted in writing by the Agency. The Contractor shall submit with the audit 
report a copy of the separate letter to management addressing a deficiency in internal control 
and/or material findings, if provided by the auditor. The Contractor may be required to comply 
with other prescribed compliance and review procedures. 
 
2.12.26.2 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the cost of any required audit unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Agency. 
 
2.12.26.3 Reimbursement of Audit Costs. If the Auditor of the State of Iowa notifies the 
Agency of an issue or finding involving the Contractor’s noncompliance with laws, rules, 
regulations, and/or contractual agreements governing the funds distributed under this 
Contract, the Contractor shall bear the cost of the Auditor’s review and any subsequent 
assistance provided by the Auditor to determine compliance. The Contractor shall reimburse 
the Agency for any costs the Agency pays to the Auditor for such review or audit. 
 

2.12.27 Staff Qualifications and Background Investigation. The Contractor shall be 
responsible for assuring that all persons, whether they are employees, agents, subcontractors, or 
anyone acting for or on behalf of the Contractor, are properly licensed, certified, or accredited as 
required under applicable law and the Iowa Administrative Code. The Contractor shall provide 
standards for service providers who are not otherwise licensed, certified, or accredited under 
applicable law or the Iowa Administrative Code. 
 
The Agency reserves the right to conduct and/or request the disclosure of criminal history and 
other background investigation of the Contractor, its officers, directors, shareholders, partners, 
managerial, and supervisory personnel and the Contractor’s staff, agents, or subcontractors 
retained by the Contractor for the performance of Contract services. These background 
investigations may include, but may not be limited to: Child Abuse Registry, Dependent Adult 
Abuse Registry, Sexual Offender Registry Checks, and DCI/FBI Criminal History Record checks 
for specific categories of persons who have direct contact with the Agency’s clients or provide 
services for the Agency’s clients. By entering into this Contract, the Contractor explicitly authorizes 
the Agency to conduct background investigations. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the 
Agency in obtaining authorization(s) on Agency forms and any required waivers or releases in a 
timely manner. Based on the results of these background investigations, the Agency may 
determine, in its sole discretion, to either not enter into a Contract, not extend a Contract, or to 
terminate the Contract in accordance with the Contract’s termination provisions. 
 
2.12.28 Solicitation. The Contractor represents and warrants that no person or selling agency 
has been employed or retained to solicit and secure this Contract upon an agreement or 
understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingency excepting bona fide 
employees or selling agents maintained for the purpose of securing business. 
 
2.12.29 Obligations Beyond Contract Term. All obligations of the Agency and the Contractor 
incurred or existing under this Contract as of the date of expiration or termination will survive the 
expiration or termination of this Contract.  
 
2.12.30 Counterparts. The parties agree that this Contract has been or may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all such counterparts shall 
together constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

167

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 19 of 21  

2.12.31 Delays or Potential Delays of Performance. Whenever the Contractor encounters any 
difficulty which is delaying or threatens to delay the timely performance of this Contract, including 
but not limited to potential labor disputes, the Contractor shall immediately give notice thereof in 
writing to the Agency with all relevant information with respect thereto. Such notice shall not in any 
way constitute a basis for an extension of the delivery schedule or be construed as a waiver by the 
Agency or the State of any rights or remedies to which either is entitled by law or pursuant to 
provisions of this Contract. Failure to give such notice, however, may be grounds for denial of any 
request for an extension of the delivery schedule because of such delay. Furthermore, the 
Contractor will not be excused from failure to perform that is due to a Force Majeure unless and 
until the Contractor provides notice pursuant to this provision and the Agency agrees, in writing, to 
the Force Majeure. 
 
2.12.32 Delays or Impossibility of Performance Based on a Force Majeure. Neither party shall 
be in default under the Contract if performance is prevented, delayed, or made impossible to the 
extent that such prevention, delay, or impossibility is caused by a force majeure. The term “force 
majeure” as used in this Contract includes an event that no human foresight could anticipate or 
which if anticipated, is incapable of being avoided. Circumstances must be abnormal and 
unforeseeable, so that the consequences could not have been avoided through the exercise of all 
due care, such as acts of God, war, civil disturbance and other similar causes. The delay or 
impossibility of performance must be beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the 
parties. “Force majeure” does not include: financial difficulties of the Contractor or any parent, 
subsidiary, affiliated or associated company of the Contractor; claims or court orders that restrict 
the Contractor’s ability to deliver the Deliverables contemplated by this Contract; strikes; labor 
unrest; labor shortages; or supply chain disruptions. 
 
If a delay results from a subcontractor’s conduct, negligence or failure to perform, the Contractor 
shall not be excused from compliance with the terms and obligations of the Contract unless the 
subcontractor or supplier is prevented from timely performance by a Force Majeure as defined in 
this Contract. 
 
If a Force Majeure delays or prevents the Contractor’s performance, the Contractor shall 
immediately use its best efforts to directly provide alternate, and to the extent possible, 
comparable performance. Comparability of performance and the possibility of comparable 
performance shall be determined solely by the Agency. 
 
The party seeking to exercise this provision and not perform or delay performance pursuant to a 
Force Majeure shall immediately notify the other party of the occurrence and reason for the delay. 
The parties shall make every effort to minimize the time of nonperformance and the scope of work 
not being performed due to the unforeseen events. Dates by which performance obligations are 
scheduled to be met will be extended only for a period of time equal to the time lost due to any 
delay so caused. 
 
2.12.33 Right to Address the Board of Directors or Other Managing Entity. The Agency 
reserves the right to address the Contractor’s board of directors or other managing entity of the 
Contractor regarding performance, expenditures, and any other issue the Agency deems 
appropriate. 
 
2.12.34 Repayment Obligation. In the event that any State and/or federal funds are deferred 
and/or disallowed as a result of any audits or expended in violation of the laws applicable to the 
expenditure of such funds, the Contractor shall be liable to the Agency for the full amount of any 
claim disallowed and for all related penalties incurred. The requirements of this paragraph shall 
apply to the Contractor as well as any subcontractors. 
 
2.12.35 Immunity from Liability. Every person who is a party to the Contract is hereby notified 

168

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 20 of 21  

and agrees that the State, the Agency, and all of their employees, agents, successors, and 
assigns are immune from liability and suit for or from the Contractor’s and/or subcontractors’ 
activities involving third parties and arising from the Contract. 
 
2.12.36 Public Records. The laws of the State require procurement and contract records to be 
made public unless otherwise provided by law. 
 
2.12.37 Use of Name or Intellectual Property. The Contractor agrees it will not use the Agency 
and/or State’s name or any of their intellectual property, including but not limited to, any State, 
state agency, board or commission trademarks or logos in any manner, including commercial 
advertising or as a business reference, without the expressed prior written consent of the Agency 
and/or the State. 
 
2.12.38 Taxes. The State is exempt from Federal excise taxes, and no payment will be made for 
any taxes levied on the Contractor’s employees’ wages. The State is exempt from State and local 
sales and use taxes on the Deliverables. 
 
2.12.39 No Minimums Guaranteed. The Contract does not guarantee any minimum level of 
purchases or any minimum amount of compensation. 
 
2.12.40 Conflict of Interest. The Contractor represents, warrants, and covenants that no 
relationship exists or will exist during the Contract period between the Contractor and the Agency 
that is a conflict of interest. No employee, officer, or agent of the Contractor or subcontractor shall 
participate in the selection or in the award or administration of a subcontract if a conflict of interest, 
real or apparent, exists. The provisions of Iowa Code chapter 68B shall apply to this Contract. The 
Contractor shall establish safeguards to prevent employees, consultants, or members of 
governing bodies from using their positions for purposes that are, or give the appearance of being, 
motivated by the desire for private gain for themselves or others with whom they have family, 
business, or other ties. 
 
In the event the Contractor becomes aware of any circumstances that may create a conflict of 
interest the Contractor shall immediately take such actions to mitigate or eliminate the risk of harm 
caused by the conflict or appearance of conflict. The Contractor shall promptly, fully disclose and 
notify the Agency of any circumstances that may arise that may create a conflict of interest or an 
appearance of conflict of interest. Such notification shall be submitted to the Agency in writing 
within seven (7) Business Days after the conflict or appearance of conflict is discovered. 
 
In the event the Agency determines that a conflict or appearance of a conflict exists, the Agency 
may take any action that the Agency determines is necessary to mitigate or eliminate the conflict 
or appearance of a conflict. Such actions may include, but are not limited to: 
 

2.12.40.1 Exercising any and all rights and remedies under the Contract, up to and including 
terminating the Contract with or without cause;  
 
2.12.40.2 Directing the Contractor to implement a corrective action plan within a specified time 
frame to mitigate, remedy and/or eliminate the circumstances which constitute the conflict of 
interest or appearance of conflict of interest; or 
 
2.12.40.3 Taking any other action the Agency determines is necessary and appropriate to 
ensure the integrity of the contractual relationship and the public interest. 
 

The Contractor shall be liable for any excess costs to the Agency as a result of the conflict of 
interest. 
 

169

Item 12.



Section 2, Page 21 of 21  

2.12.41 Certification Regarding Sales and Use Tax. By executing this Contract, the Contractor 
certifies it is either (1) registered with the Iowa Department of Revenue, collects, and remits Iowa 
sales and use taxes as required by Iowa Code chapter 423; or (2) not a “retailer” or a “retailer 
maintaining a place of business in this state” as those terms are defined in Iowa Code § 423.1(42) 
and (43). The Contractor also acknowledges that the Agency may declare the Contract void if the 
above certification is false. The Contractor also understands that fraudulent certification may result 
in the Agency or its representative filing for damages for breach of contract. 
 
2.12.42 No State Funds for Lobbyists. No State appropriated funds or Other funds originating as 
State appropriated funds shall be used for the compensation of a lobbyist. For purposes of this 
section, “lobbyist” means the same as defined in Iowa Code Section 68B.2; however, “lobbyist” 
does not include a person employed by a state agency of the executive branch of state 
government who represents the agency relative to the passage, defeat, approval, or modification 
of legislation that is being considered by the general assembly. 

170

Item 12.



Section 3, Page 1 of 9 
 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
(HHS) 

SECTION 3: CONTINGENT TERMS FOR SERVICE 
CONTRACTS 

August 1, 2023 
 
 
3.1 Federal Funds. HHS receives federal funding. As a recipient of federal funds, HHS and its 
subrecipients, contracting partners, and subcontractors must adhere to federal legislation passed by 
Congress, as well as codified regulations implemented through administrative requirements, executive 
orders, and other federal law when executing the funding and contract scope of work. Any revisions to 
applicable provisions of federal or state law and implementing regulations, and policy issuances and 
instructions, except as otherwise specified in this Contract, apply as of their effective date. If any 
terms of this Contract are determined to be inconsistent with rule or law, the applicable rule or law 
provision shall govern. 
 

3.1.1 Federal Terms. 2 C.F.R. Part 200. Specific to the Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) 
Title 2 Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards, specific language must be included in agreement articles, such as this 
Contract. Detailed in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, in addition to other provisions required by 
federal law, including but not limited to 45 C.F.R. Part 75, all contracts made by a non-federal 
entity under the federal awards must contain provisions covering the following, as applicable. The 
below provisions attempt to satisfy the requirements of 2 C.F.R. Part 200. This Contract does not 
encompass every federal law, regulation, or requirement that may apply to this Contract. By 
signing this Contract, the Contractor agrees to all applicable terms contained within 2 C.F.R. Part 
200 and any other applicable federal requirement. If the Contractor or its Subcontractors violate 
this or any law, they may be subject to civil and/or criminal penalties, etc. as stated therein. 
 

3.1.1.1 Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352). Contractors that apply or bid for 
an award exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification. By signing the Contract, the 
Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge, understanding, and belief, that: 
 

3.1.1.1.1 No Federal Funds Used. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will 
be paid in what the undersigned believes to be a violation of 31 U.S.C. 1352, by or on 
behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of 
any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the 
entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, the modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement, or in any activity designed to influence legislation or appropriations pending 
before Congress.  
 
3.1.1.1.2 Other Funds Used. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been 
paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, 

171

Item 12.



Section 3, Page 2 of 9 
 

or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, 
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.  
 
3.1.1.1.3 Certification. The undersigned will require that the language of this certification 
be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, 
subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and will 
require that all sub-recipients certify and disclose accordingly. This certification is a 
material representation of facts upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was 
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the 
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 
more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 
3.1.1.2 Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
(33 U.S.C. 1251–1387), as amended. Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of 
$150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-federal award to agree to comply with 
all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 
7401–7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251–
1387). Violations must be reported to the federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of 
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
standards, orders, or requirements issued under 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), 
508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as 
amended (33 U.S.C. 1251–1387), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection 
Agency regulations (40 C.F.R. Part 15). 
 
3.1.1.3 Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701–3708). Where 
applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve 
the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 
U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 
5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages 
of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in 
excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a 
rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess 
of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to 
construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in 
surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. 
These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily 
available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. 
The Contractor shall comply with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Act, as applicable. 
 
3.1.1.4 Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of 
Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or 
Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The 
Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any 
means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give 
up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal 
entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. The 
Contractor shall comply with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act, as applicable. If the Contractor 
or its Subcontractors violate this law, they may be subject to criminal penalties, etc. as stated 
therein. 
 
3.1.1.5 Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141–3148). When required by federal 
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-
federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 

172

Item 12.



Section 3, Page 3 of 9 
 

3141–3144, and 3146–3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. 
Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and 
Assisted Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay 
wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a 
wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required 
to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the 
current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. 
The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of 
the wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations 
to the federal awarding agency. The Contractor shall comply with the Davis-Bacon Act, as 
applicable.  
 
3.1.1.6 Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). A contract award 
(see 2 C.F.R. 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 
C.F.R. 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 
12689 (3 C.F.R. part 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions 
contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as 
well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive 
Order 12549. By signing this Contract, the Contractor certifies that it and its principals and 
subcontractors are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency.  
 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the 
Agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the Contractor 
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available at law or 
by contract, the Agency may terminate this Contract.  
 
The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the Agency if it has been debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded by any federal 
department or agency. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarment,” “suspension,” 
“ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,” “principal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in 
this section, have the meanings set out in 2 C.F.R. part 180.  
 
The Contractor agrees that it will include this certification in all lower tier covered transactions 
and subcontracts. 
 
3.1.1.7 Domestic preferences for procurements. As appropriate and to the extent 
consistent with law, as provided in 2 C.F.R. 200.322, Domestic Preference for Procurements, 
the non-federal entity should, to the greatest extent practicable under a federal award, provide 
a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in 
the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other 
manufactured products). The requirements of this section must be included in all subawards 
including all contracts and purchase orders for work or products under this award. For 
purposes of this section: (1) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel 
products, that all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the 
application of coatings, occurred in the United States. (2) “Manufactured products” means 
items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as 
aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates 
such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. The Contractor shall comply with 2 
C.F.R. 200.322, to the extent applicable. 
 
3.1.1.8 Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. Part 
60, all contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 

173

Item 12.



Section 3, Page 4 of 9 
 

C.F.R. Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. 60-
1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 
12319, 12935, 3 C.F.R. Part, 1964–1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 
11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and 
implementing regulations at 41 C.F.R. part 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance 
Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The Contractor shall comply 
with Equal Employment Opportunity, to the extent applicable.  
 
3.1.1.9 Procurement of Recovered Materials. In the performance of this Contract, in 
accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.323, Procurement of Recovered Materials, the Contractor shall 
make maximum use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated 
items unless the product cannot be acquired (1) Competitively within a timeframe providing for 
compliance with the contract performance schedule; (2) Meeting contract performance 
requirements; or (3) At a reasonable price. Information about this requirement, along with the 
list of EPA designated items, is available at EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines 
web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program. The 
Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the 
Solid Waste Disposal Act. 
 
3.1.1.10 Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or 
Equipment.  Recipients and subrecipients, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.216, Prohibition 
on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment, are prohibited 
from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to: (1) Procure or obtain; (2) Extend or renew 
a contract to procure or obtain; or (3) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to 
procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications 
equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical 
technology as part of any system.  
 
As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is 
telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE 
Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  
 
• For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security 

surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance 
and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, 
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any 
subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). 

• Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such 
equipment. 

• Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by 
an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National 
Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be 
an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered 
foreign country.  

 
The Contractor certifies that it will comply with 2 C.F.R. 200.216, Prohibition on Certain 
Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment, to the extent applicable. 
 
3.1.1.11 Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the federal award 
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. 401.2 (a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by 

174

Item 12.

https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program


Section 3, Page 5 of 9 
 

Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and 
Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 
The Contractor certifies that it will comply with 37 C.F.R. Part 401, to the extent applicable to 
this Contract. 
 

3.1.2 Federal Financial Assistance Acknowledgment. The Contractor acknowledges that 
federal financial assistance will be used to fund all or a portion of the Contract. The Contractor will 
comply with all applicable federal law, regulations, executive orders, federal awarding policies, 
procedures, and directives.  
 
The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that pursuant to applicable federal laws, regulations, 
circulars, and bulletins, the federal awarding agency may reserve certain rights including, without 
limitation, a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise 
use, and to authorize others to use, for federal government purposes, the Deliverables developed 
under this Contract and the copyright in and to such Deliverables.  
 
In accordance with, but not limiting to, 45 C.F.R. 95.617, the Contractor shall ensure that the 
Agency has all ownership rights in software or modifications thereof and associated 
documentation designed, developed or installed pursuant to the Contract. The federal government 
reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise 
use and to authorize others to use for federal government purposes, software and associated 
documentation designed, developed or installed in whole or in part with federal funds pursuant to 
this Contract. 
 
3.1.3 Federal Law Contractor Certifications. By signing this Contract, the Contractor certifies its 
compliance, to the extent applicable, with the following: 
 
• The Constitution of the United States. 
• Medicaid Laws. Title XIX of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1396 et. seq.), applicable 

provisions of 42 C.F.R. 431.200 et. seq. and 42 C.F.R. part 438; waivers or variances approved 
by CMS; and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

• Pro-Children Act of 1994. 
• Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 67, subpart F, for 

programs, as defined at 28 C.F.R. Part 67 sections 67.615 and 67.620. 
• 2 C.F.R. 200 Subpart F—Audits of Federally-Funded Contracts: Audit of Non-Federal Entity. 
• USDA’s regulation regarding nondiscrimination (7 C.F.R. parts 15, 15b), Title VI of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law 83-352), section 11(c) of the Food Stamp Act of 1977, as 
amended, the Food Stamp Act of 1977, as amended, the Age Discrimination, Act of 1975 
(Public Law 95-135) and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Public Law 93-112, section 504) and all 
requirements imposed by regulations issued pursuant to these Acts by the Department of 
Agriculture to the effect that, no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, 
religion, age (except as provided by law), sex, marital status, sexual orientation, political 
affiliation, national origin, or handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits 
of, or be otherwise subject to discrimination under the Food Stamp Program. 

 
3.1.4 Audits of Federally-Funded Contracts: Audit of Non-Federal Entity. Non-federal entities, 
as that term is defined in 45 C.F.R. § 75.2, that expend $750,000 or more in a fiscal year in federal 
awards (from all sources) shall have a single audit conducted for that year in accordance with the 
provisions of OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements. Single audits must be completed and the data collection form and reporting 
package must be submitted electronically to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse within the earlier of 
thirty (30) calendar days after the Contractor’s receipt of the auditor’s report(s), or nine months 
after the end of the audit period. The Contractor shall submit to the Agency one (1) copy of the 
separate letter to management addressing material findings, if provided by the auditor, promptly 

175

Item 12.



Section 3, Page 6 of 9 
 

following receipt by Contractor. The Contractor shall also submit one (1) copy of the final audit 
report to the Agency within thirty (30) days after the Contractor’s receipt thereof, if either the 
schedule of findings and questioned costs or the summary schedule of prior audit findings 
includes any audit findings related to federal awards provided by the Agency. The requirements of 
this subsection shall apply to the Contractor as well as any subcontractors. 
 
When internal control over some or all of the compliance requirements for a major program are 
likely to be ineffective in preventing or detecting noncompliance, the planning and performing of 
testing are not required for those compliance requirements. However, the auditor must report a 
significant deficiency or material weakness in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.516 Audit findings, 
assess the related control risk at the maximum, and consider whether additional compliance tests 
are required because of ineffective internal control. 
 
The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the cost of any required audit unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Agency. 

3.1.5 Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections. The Contractor must comply with 41 
U.S.C. 4712 which provides “employees of a contractor, subcontractor, grantee [or subgrantee] 
may not be discharged, demoted, or otherwise discriminated against as a reprisal” for 
“whistleblowing.” In addition, whistleblowing protections cannot be waived by any agreement, 
policy, form or condition of employment. 

3.1.5.1 Whistleblowing is defined as making a disclosure “that the employee reasonably 
believes is evidence of any of the following: 
• Gross mismanagement of a federal contract or grant; 
• A gross waste of federal funds; 
• An abuse of authority relating to a federal contract or grant; 
• A substantial and specific danger to public health or safety; or 
• A violation of a law, rule, or regulation related to a federal contract or grant (including the 

competition for, or negotiation of, a contract) or grant. 
 

3.1.5.2 To qualify under the statute, the employee’s disclosure must be made to: 
• A member of Congress, or a representative of a Congressional committee; 
• An Inspector General; 
• The Government Accountability Office; 
• A federal employee responsible for contract or grant oversight or management at the 

relevant agency; 
• An official from the Department of Justice, or other law enforcement agency; 
• A court or grand jury; or 
• A management official or other employee of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, or 

subgrantee who has the responsibility to investigate, discover, or address misconduct. 
 

The requirement to comply with and inform all employees of the “Pilot Program for 
Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections” is in effect for all grants, 
contracts, subgrants, and subcontracts. 

 
3.2 Business Associate Agreement. If the Contractor performs certain services on behalf of or for a 
designated HIPAA-covered component of the Agency and meets the definition of business associate 
in 45 CFR 160.103, then the Contractor is a business associate of the Agency for purposes of the 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended, and the federal regulations 
published at 45 C.F.R. part 160 and 164. By signing this Contract, the Business Associate certifies it 
will comply with the Business Associate Agreement Addendum (“BAA”), and any amendments 
thereof, as posted to the Agency’s website: http://hhs.iowa.gov/HIPAA/baa. This BAA, and any 
amendments thereof, is incorporated into the Contract by reference. 

176

Item 12.

http://hhs.iowa.gov/HIPAA/baa


Section 3, Page 7 of 9 
 

 
By signing this Contract, the Business Associate consents to receive notice of future amendments to 
the BAA through electronic mail. The Business Associate shall file and maintain a current electronic 
mail address with the Agency for this purpose. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the 
Contract, the Agency may amend the BAA by posting an updated version of the BAA on the Agency’s 
website at: http://hhs.iowa.gov/HIPAA/baa, and providing the Business Associate electronic notice of 
the amended BAA. The Business Associate shall be deemed to have accepted the amendment 
unless the Business Associate notifies the Agency of its non-acceptance in accordance with the 
Notice provisions of the Contract within 30 days of the Agency’s notice referenced herein. Any agreed 
alteration of the then current Agency BAA shall have no force or effect until the agreed alteration is 
reduced to a Contract amendment that must be signed by the Business Associate, Agency Director, 
and the Agency Security and Privacy Officer.  
 
If there is a conflict between the BAA and provisions in Section 2.8, Ownership and Security of 
Agency Information, the provisions in the BAA shall control. 
 
3.3 Qualified Service Organization. If the Contractor is or will be receiving, storing, processing, or 
otherwise dealing with confidential patient records from programs covered by 42 C.F.R. part 2, the 
Contractor is a Qualified Service Organization and the Contractor acknowledges that it is fully bound 
by those regulations. The Contractor will resist in judicial proceedings any efforts to obtain access to 
patient records except as permitted by 42 C.F.R. part 2. “Qualified Service Organization” as used in 
this Contract has the same meaning as the definition set forth in 42 C.F.R. 2.11. 
 
3.4 Certification Regarding Iowa Code Chapter 8F. If the Contractor is or becomes subject to Iowa 
Code chapter 8F during the term of this Contract, which includes any extensions or renewals thereof, 
the Contractor shall comply with the following: 
 

3.4.1. As a condition of entering into this Contract, the Contractor shall certify that it has the 
information required by Iowa Code § 8F.3 available for inspection by the Agency and the 
Legislative Services Agency. 
 
3.4.2 The Contractor agrees that it will provide the information described in this section to the 
Agency or the Legislative Services Agency upon request. The Contractor shall not impose a 
charge for making information available for inspection or providing information to the Agency or 
the Legislative Services Agency. 
 
3.4.3 Pursuant to Iowa Code § 8F.4, the Contractor shall file an annual report with the Agency and 
the Legislative Services Agency within ten (10) months following the end of the Contractor’s fiscal 
year (unless the exceptions provided in Iowa Code § 8F.4(1)(b) apply). The annual report shall 
contain: 
 

3.4.3.1 Financial information relative to the expenditure of state and federal moneys for the 
prior year pursuant to this Contract. The financial information shall include but is not limited to 
budget and actual revenue and expenditure information for the year covered.  
 
3.4.3.2 Financial information relating to all service contracts with the Agency during the 
preceding year, including the costs by category to provide the contracted services. 
 
3.4.3.3 Reportable conditions in internal control or material noncompliance with provisions of 
laws, rules, regulations, or contractual agreements included in external audit reports of the 
Contractor covering the preceding year.  
 

177

Item 12.

http://hhs.iowa.gov/HIPAA/baa


Section 3, Page 8 of 9 
 

3.4.3.4 Corrective action taken or planned by the Contractor in response to reportable 
conditions in internal control or material noncompliance with laws, rules, regulations, or 
contractual agreements included in external audit reports covering the preceding year. 
 
3.4.3.5 Any changes in the information submitted in accordance with Iowa Code § 8F.3 
 
3.4.3.6 A certification signed by an officer and director, two directors, or the sole proprietor of 
the Contractor, whichever is applicable, stating the annual report is accurate and the recipient 
entity is in full compliance with all laws, rules, regulations, and contractual agreements 
applicable to the recipient entity and the requirements of Iowa Code chapter 8F.  
 
3.4.3.7 In addition, the Contractor shall comply with Iowa Code chapter 8F with respect to any 
subcontracts it enters into pursuant to this Contract. Any compliance documentation, including 
but not limited to certifications, received from subcontractors by the Contractor shall be 
forwarded to the Agency. 

 
3.5 Software Contracts. 

3.5.1 Software Funded with Federal Funds. All software or modifications thereof and associated 
documentation designed, developed, or installed using federal funds is subject to 45 C.F.R. § 
95.617. 
 
3.5.2 Change Order Procedure. The Agency may at any time request a modification to 
Deliverables related to software using a change order. The following procedures for a change 
order shall be followed: 
 

3.5.2.1 Written Request. The Agency shall specify in writing the desired modifications to the 
same degree of specificity as in the original Scope of Work. 
 
3.5.2.2 The Contractor’s Response. The Contractor shall submit to the Agency a firm cost 
proposal for the requested change order within five (5) Business Days of receiving the change 
order request. 
 
3.5.2.3 Acceptance of the Contractor Estimate. If the Agency accepts the cost proposal 
presented by the Contractor, the Contractor shall provide the modified Deliverable subject to 
the cost proposal included in the Contractor response. The Contractor’s provision of the 
modified Deliverables shall be governed by the terms and conditions of this Contract. 
 
3.5.2.4 Adjustment to Compensation. The parties acknowledge that a change order for this 
Contract may or may not entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment in the Contractor’s 
compensation or the performance deadlines under this Contract. 

 
3.5.3 Acceptance of Software Deliverables. Except as otherwise specified in the Scope of 
Work, all Deliverables pertaining to software and related hardware components (“Software 
Deliverables”) shall be subject to the Agency’s Acceptance Testing and Acceptance, unless 
otherwise specified in the Scope of Work. Upon completion of all work to be performed by the 
Contractor with respect to any Software Deliverable, the Contractor shall deliver a written notice to 
the Agency certifying that the Software Deliverable meets and conforms to applicable 
Specifications and is ready for the Agency to conduct Acceptance Testing; provided, however, that 
the Contractor shall pretest the Software Deliverable to determine that it meets and operates in 
accordance with applicable Specifications prior to delivering such notice to the Agency. At the 
Agency’s request, the Contractor shall assist the Agency in performing 
Acceptance Tests at no additional cost to the Agency. Within a reasonable period of time after the 
Agency has completed its Acceptance Testing, the Agency shall provide the Contractor with 
written notice of Acceptance or Non-acceptance with respect to each Software Deliverable that 

178

Item 12.



Section 3, Page 9 of 9 
 

was evaluated during such Acceptance Testing. In the event the Agency provides notice of Non-
acceptance to the Contractor with respect to any Software Deliverable, the Contractor shall correct 
and repair such Software Deliverable and submit it to the Agency within ten (10) days of the 
Contractor’s receipt of notice of Nonacceptance so that the Agency may re-conduct its 
Acceptance Tests. 
 
In the event the Agency determines, after re-conducting its Acceptance Tests with respect to any 
Software Deliverable that the Contractor has attempted to correct or repair pursuant to this 
section, that such Software Deliverable fails to satisfy its Acceptance Tests, then the Agency shall 
have the continuing right, at its sole option, to: (1) require the Contractor to correct and repair such 
Software Deliverable within such period of time as the Agency may specify in a written notice to 
the Contractor; (2) refuse to accept such Software Deliverable without penalty and without any 
obligation to pay any fees or other amounts associated with such Software Deliverable (or receive 
a refund of any fees or amounts already paid with respect to such Software Deliverable); (3) 
accept such Software Deliverable on the condition that any fees or other amounts payable with 
respect thereto shall be reduced or discounted to reflect, to the Agency’s satisfaction, the 
Deficiencies present therein and any reduced value or functionality of such Software Deliverable 
or the costs likely to be incurred by the Agency to correct such Deficiencies; or (4) terminate this 
Contract and/or seek any and all available remedies, including damages. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of Section 2.5.1, Termination for Cause by the Agency, of this Contract, the Agency 
may terminate this Contract pursuant to this section without providing the Contractor with any 
notice or opportunity to cure provided for in the termination provisions of this Contract. The 
Agency’s right to exercise the foregoing rights and remedies, including termination of this 
Contract, shall remain in effect until Acceptance Tests are successfully completed to the Agency’s 
satisfaction and the Agency has provided the Contractor with written notice of Final Acceptance. 
 
3.5.4 Notice of Acceptance and Future Deficiencies. The Contractor’s receipt of any notice of 
Acceptance, including Final Acceptance, with respect to any Deliverable shall not be construed as 
a waiver of any of the Agency’s rights to enforce the terms of this Contract or require performance 
in the event the Contractor breaches this Contract or any Deficiency is later discovered with 
respect to such Deliverable. 
 

179

Item 12.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

RECREATION CENTER 
110 E 13TH STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-273-8636 
FAX: 319-273-8656 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Brock Goos, Recreation Program Supervisor 

 DATE: February 29, 2024 

SUBJECT:  Collaborative Program Agreement – Youth Tennis Lessons 

 

 
Attached is a One-year agreement with The Black Hawk Tennis Club to provide Youth 
Tennis Lessons as Part of our Summer Program Offerings.  This partnership has been in 
place since 2022 and the continuation of this collaboration is being recommended by the 
Recreation Division staff. 
 
The contract requires the contractor to furnish staff, onsite instruction and equipment to 
deliver these lessons, in exchange for 80% of program revenue. The Recreation Division 
will provide Registration, Promotion and Program Facilities.  
 
We continue to work with The Black Hawk Tennis Club to provide our participants with 
quality recreation programming, and recommend the agreement through September 1, 
2024. 
 
 
Thank you. 
  
 
 

 

180

Item 13.



181

Item 13.



182

Item 13.



183

Item 13.



184

Item 13.



185

Item 13.



186

Item 13.



187

Item 13.



188

Item 13.



189

Item 13.



190

Item 13.



191

Item 13.



192

Item 13.



 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A 

COLLABORATIVE PROGRAM AGREEMENT WITH THE 
BLACK HAWK TENNIS CLUB RELATIVE TO  

PROVIDING YOUTH TENNIS LESSONS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has considered 

approving and authorizing execution of a Collaborative Program Agreement with the 

Black Hawk Tennis Club relative to providing Youth Tennis Lessons, in conjunction with 

the summer recreational programs, and 

   

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve and authorize execution of said 

Agreement. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that said Agreement is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 

authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 

ADOPTED this 18th day of March 2024. 

 
                                                                                                                                              

__________________________ 
                                                                                      Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
                                                                                                         
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 

193

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Melissa Denning, Community Services Supervisor 

 DATE: March 18, 2024 

   SUBJECT: 2023 Payment Standards change to SAFMR for Section 8 HCV Program  
 
INTRODUCTION: 
 
HUD has introduced another option to determine the fair market rents in a community. The new Small 
Area Fair Market Rents (SAFMRs)are based on zip codes areas where the rent is known to be higher 
than the metro area. The SAFMRs for 50613 are considerably higher than the Metro Fair Market 
Rents (FMRs), which averages rents for the Waterloo/Cedar Falls metro area.  
 
Staff have reached out to HUD to indicate we may be interested in opting into the new SAFMRs and 
they responded favorably to that request. At their February 21st meeting, the Housing Commission 
reviewed the new payment standards and recommended approval.    
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Over the last several years, it has become increasingly difficult for low-income renters to find units 
they can afford within Cedar Falls, even with the assistance provided through the Housing Choice 
Voucher Program. Once the City issues a Housing Choice Voucher to an individual or family, they 
have 120 days to find a rental unit that is within the payment standards. If a voucher holder cannot 
find a rental unit within 120 days, the voucher expires. When voucher holders cannot find housing, the 
funds allocated to the City from HUD for this program sit idle and our program is underutilized, even 
though the need is high. Adopting the new SAFMRs would assist Housing Choice Voucher holders in 
locating safe and stable housing by increasing the number of rental units that fall within the payment 
standards. It would also help any current voucher holder whose landlord has increased or will be 
increasing the rent beyond the current FMRs. When faced with higher rents, a renter must either try to 
find a different rental unit within the payment standard or pay more of their limited monthly income 
toward rent.    
 
The table below compares the current payment standards using the standard FMRs with the SAFMRs 
for 50613. HUD allows a local housing agency to set standards up to 110% of the SAFMRs based on 
local needs. Historically, the City has opted to utilize a 110% standard for one-to four-bedroom units, 
given the city’s relatively higher cost rental market within the metro area. Staff recommends 
continuing with that practice because using 100% SAFMRs would only raise the payment standards 
by a small amount. We have already received notice from several landlords who serve Housing 
Choice Voucher holder of their intent to increase rents soon beyond what the 100% standard would 
cover.  
 

194

Item 14.



 
 
 
  

HCV PROGRAM - CURRENT VERSUS PROPOSED PAYMENT STANDARDS  

 0 Bed 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed 

Current payment standard (110%)  $704 $810 $1038 $1375 $1762 

FFY2023 FMR (100%) $640 $737 $944 $1250 $1602 

Proposed 2023 SAFMR payment 
standard (110%) 

$803 $924 $1177 $1562 $2002 

FFY2023 SAFMR (100%) $730 $840 $1070 $1420 $1820 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Housing Commission recommends that the City Council approve the proposal to increase the 
FFY2023 payment standards to 110% of the recently released SAFMRs for 50613, effective May 1, 
2024.   

195

Item 14.



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Thomas Weintraut, Planner III 
 

 DATE: March 18, 2023 

SUBJECT: Approval of Asbestos Testing Letter of Agreement for the Northern Cedar 
Falls Flood Buyout Program, Project No. FL-404-3198 

 
On October 6, 2021, City Council approved a grant agreement between Iowa Homeland 
Security and Emergency Management IDHSEM) and the City of Cedar Falls for the Cedar 
Falls Property Acquisition and Demolition Project. The funding that was approved as part of 
the agreement will allow the City to purchase four (4) properties in Northern Cedar Falls.  
 
The grant agreement was amended in September 2022 to reduce the City’s matching fund 
portion to 0% because the Federal Government is assuming the City’s cost.  On October 10, 
2023, City Council approved an amended grant agreement with IDHSEM to approve funding 
to purchase two additional properties in Northern Cedar Falls. Only one of the property 
owners (1218 Cottage Row Road) chose to participate in the program.  
 
Council approved the purchase agreement for the property on February 5, 2024, and the City 
anticipates closing on the property in April 2024. Once the City acquires the properties, 
asbestos testing must occur to determine if there is a presence of asbestos and if abatement 
is needed.  
 
Quotes were requested from 12 contractors for the asbestos testing and clearance 
monitoring services, or confirming all the asbestos containing materials have removed. Only 
one quote was received that met all requirements. IDHSEM typically would like to have a 
minimum of three (3) quotes, but because of the difficulty getting quotes on the four (4) 
previously purchased properties, IDHSEM allowed the City to use one quote.    
 
1218 Cottage Row Road 

Company Bid for Testing Bid for Re-Inspection 
Total Bid 
Amount 

Hawkeye 
Environmental 

$850 $200 $1,050 

196

Item 15.



2 
 

 
 

The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Letter of Agreement    
for asbestos testing and clearance monitoring services with Hawkeye Environmental, for 
work at the above listed property.  The testing will be completed within 5 days of issuance of 
the Notice to Proceed. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact the Community Development 
Department. 
 
 
Attachments:   Contract 
   Contract exhibits 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

197

Item 15.



198

Item 15.



199

Item 15.



200

Item 15.



201

Item 15.



202

Item 15.



203

Item 15.



204

Item 15.



205

Item 15.



206

Item 15.



207

Item 15.



Exhibit A 

 Request for Bids 

The City of Cedar Falls has received Funding from FEMA through its Hazard Mitigation 

Grant Program to purchase a property located in the floodplain of the Cedar River. One 

of the requirements of the program is that the City does asbestos inspection to 

determine the presence of asbestos in the home prior to demolition of the structure. 

The City of Cedar Falls would like your firm to submit a quote for the testing of asbestos 

at the following address: 

 1218 Cottage Row Road 

Also, please include in your quote asbestos clearing monitoring services, as we will 

need to verify that the asbestos has been removed from the property after any 

abatement has been completed. A copy of the Contract and insurance requirements are 

attached. 

The firm will be selected based on the proposed fee and completion date. The 

recommended contract will be forwarded for Council approval on or about February 19, 

2024, and a Notice to Proceed will be issued shortly thereafter. 

If you wish to submit a quote for this project, please submit it to Thom Weintraut via 

email @ Thomas.Weintraut@cedarfalls.com by 4 p.m. on Friday, February 9, 2024. 

We look forward to receiving your proposal. Please contact me if you have any 

questions regarding the project. 

 

Regards, 

Thomas A. Weintraut, Jr., AICP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 

208

Item 15.



 

Exhibit B 
209

Item 15.



 

210

Item 15.



 

211

Item 15.



 

212

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council  

 FROM: Brett Armstrong, EI, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: March 18, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities - Grant Administration  
  Project Number ST-000-3306 – Contract Time Extension   
 
 
In December 2021, the City submitted a request to FEMA under the Building Resilient 
Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant program.  The program seeks to fund 
research-supported, proactive investment in community resilience.  They offer two types 
of grants: scoping (studies and planning) and mitigation projects (infrastructure).  The 
City added drainage studies to the Capital Improvements Plan in 2018.  Such studies fit 
with the BRIC “scoping” funding.   
 
The City has been awarded a grant for 85% of the total project.  $220,502.98 in federal 
and state funds, and 15% of local funds (City: $38,912.31) comprise the total project 
cost of $259,415.29. The City has been collecting storm water infrastructure data for the 
awarded project consultant, Strand Associates, Inc. Due to the data collection process 
and amount of data needing gathered, the City and consultant have requested and 
been granted a time extension for the Storm Water Planning Project funding in order to 
properly assess the city infrastructure. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends the City Council 
approve the time extension for the subaward from the Iowa Department of Homeland 
Security and authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement.  
 
 
Xc:   Stephanie Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

213

Item 16.



 

 

 

Amendment Number One 

 

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

 

Between 

 

Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEMD) 

 

And 

 

City of Cedar Falls 

 

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT NO:  EMK-2021-BR-041-0003 

PROJECT TITLE:  Stormwater Resilience Planning 

PERFORMANCE PERIOD START DATE: 09/14/2022 

PERFORMANCE PERIOD END DATE:  08/12/2024 (as amended) 

 

This is Amendment Number One to the above-referenced Subaward Agreement (AGREEMENT) between Iowa 

Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEMD) and the City of Cedar Falls 

(SUBRECIPIENT). The original AGREEMENT was executed on 12/09/2022. 

 

Page 3 of 23, III. Period of Performance, paragraph 1, of said AGREEMENT is amended to read: 
 

The approved Period of Performance for this subaward is from 09/14/2022 through 08/12/2024. All work must 

be completed prior to the end of the Period of Performance. HSEMD will not reimburse the SUBRECIPIENT 

for costs that are obligated or incurred outside of the Period of Performance. 

 

All other paragraphs in said AGREEMENT remain unchanged. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, HSEMD, the SUBRECIPIENT, and the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE have 

executed this AGREEMENT by the signatures of authorized persons of the entities and on the date indicated 

below: 

 

Iowa Department of Homeland Security and  City of Cedar Falls: 

Emergency Management: 

 

____________________________________            ____________________________________ 

Dennis Harper                 Danny Laudick, Mayor 

Division Administrator     

 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Date       Date 

  

        

 

                                                                                    ____________________________________ 

       Authorized Representative (optional) 

 

       ____________________________________  

       Date 

214

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE: March 18, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Casey’s General Store, 1620 W 1st Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal Maintenance 
and Repair Agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for Casey’s General Store, 1620 W 1st Street, 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 and finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering 
Division recommends the agreement be accepted by the City Council and recorded at 
the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer  
 

215

Item 17.



216

Item 17.



217

Item 17.



218

Item 17.



219

Item 17.



220

Item 17.



221

Item 17.



222

Item 17.



223

Item 17.



224

Item 17.



225

Item 17.



226

Item 17.



227

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Principal Engineer, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: March 11, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2024 Street Restoration Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3337 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Friday, March 08, 2024 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2024 
Street Restoration Project. A total of one (1) bid was received, with Aspro, Inc. the low 
bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $1,563,165.25 

Aspro, Inc.  $1,023,036.30 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $1,563,165.25. Aspro, Inc. of Waterloo, Iowa 
submitted the low bid in the amount of $1,023,036.30. Attached is a bid tabulation for your 
reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Aspro, Inc. in the amount of $1,023,036.30. On April 1, 2024, the 
Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer   
 
 

228

Item 18.



TABULATION OF BIDS 2024 Street Restoration Project City of Cedar Falls - Project Number RC-000-3337

BASE BID

ITEM ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. 62 $35.00 2,170.00$           $35.00 $2,170.00 $35.00 2,170.00$             
2 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. 75 $20.00 1,500.00$           $85.00 $6,375.00 85.00$             6,375.00$             
3 2121.03.B GRANULAR SHOULDER, TYPE A (HMA MILLINGS) TONS 147 $25.00 3,675.00$           $35.00 $5,145.00 35.00$             5,145.00$             
4 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE B TOP EACH 1 $3,000.00 3,000.00$           $4,500.00 $4,500.00 4,500.00$        4,500.00$             
5 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE C TOP EACH 1 $3,000.00 3,000.00$           $5,500.00 $5,500.00 5,500.00$        5,500.00$             
6 6010-108-F-0 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MAJOR (MR. MANHOLE) EACH 2 $5,000.00 10,000.00$         $3,450.00 $6,900.00 3,450.00$        6,900.00$             
7 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF STORM MANHOLES AND INTAKES EACH 2 $750.00 1,500.00$           $1,250.00 $2,500.00 1,250.00$        2,500.00$             
8 7010-108-E-0 CURB, PCC 7 IN., 2.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 178 $100.00 17,800.00$         $35.00 $6,230.00 35.00$             6,230.00$             
9 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), SURF., 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 2661 $160.00 425,760.00$       $134.25 $357,239.25 134.25$           357,239.25$         

10 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), BASE., 3/4", PG58-28S TONS 2661 $160.00 425,760.00$       $132.00 $351,252.00 132.00$           351,252.00$         
11 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 65 $30.00 1,950.00$           $28.00 $1,820.00 28.00$             1,820.00$             
12 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 37 $100.00 3,700.00$           $64.00 $2,368.00 64.00$             2,368.00$             
13 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 28 $100.00 2,800.00$           $70.00 $1,960.00 70.00$             1,960.00$             
14 7030-108-G-0 DETECTABLE WARNINGS S.F. 48 $70.00 3,360.00$           $54.00 $2,592.00 54.00$             2,592.00$             
15 7040-108-G-0 MILLING S.Y. 11345 $42.00 476,490.00$       $8.45 $95,865.25 8.45$               95,865.25$           
16 7040-108-I-0 CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL L.F. 178 $30.00 5,340.00$           $15.00 $2,670.00 15.00$             2,670.00$             
17 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA. 44.4 $90.00 3,996.00$           $85.00 $3,774.00 85.00$             3,774.00$             
18 8020-108-G-0 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS EACH 2 $80.00 160.00$              $100.00 $200.00 100.00$           200.00$                
19 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 $30,000.00 30,000.00$         $32,500.00 $32,500.00 32,500.00$      32,500.00$           
20 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. 3281 $1.25 4,101.25$           $2.50 $8,202.50 2.50$               8,202.50$             
21 9040-108-A-2 STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP), MANAGEMENT L.S. 1 $5,000.00 5,000.00$           $3,800.00 $3,800.00 3,800.00$        3,800.00$             
22 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. 20 $3.00 60.00$                $5.00 $100.00 5.00$               100.00$                
23 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. 20 $1.00 20.00$                $5.00 $100.00 5.00$               100.00$                
24 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH 1 $150.00 150.00$              $200.00 $200.00 200.00$           200.00$                
25 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH 1 $50.00 50.00$                $75.00 $75.00 75.00$             75.00$                  
26 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. 1 $70,000.00 70,000.00$         $63,000.00 $63,000.00 63,000.00$      63,000.00$           
27 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT L.S. 1 $2,000.00 2,000.00$           $750.00 $750.00 750.00$           750.00$                
28 11050-108-A-0 SAW AND SEAL JOINTS L.F. 7038 $8.50 59,823.00$         $7.85 $55,248.30 7.85$               55,248.30$           

TOTAL BASE BID: 1,563,165.25$    1,023,036.30$    1,023,036.30$      
BID SECURITY: 10%

Bid Security x

x

xNon-Collusion Affidavit

Bidder Status Form

March 8, 2024 at 2:00 

PM
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE Aspro, Inc BID AVERAGE

1

229

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: March 18, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase II Project 
  City Project Number: RC-092-3271 
  Bid Opening 
 
   

On Tuesday, February 27, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. bids were received and opened for the North 
Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase II Project. A total of four (4) bids were received, 
with Dave Schmitt Construction as the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $4,370,537.48 

Dave Schmitt Construction $3,606,866.70 

Summers’ Enterprise, Inc. $3,786,620.51 

Boomerang $3,950,001.44 

Peterson Contractors Inc. $3,974,144.58 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $4,370,537.48. Dave Schmitt Construction 
of Cedar Rapids, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $3,606,866.70. Attached is 
a bid tabulation for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Dave Schmitt Construction in the amount of $3,606,866.70. On April 
1st, 2024 the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council 
approval.  
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
   
 
 

230

Item 19.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 2010-108A CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT 200.90 $165.00 $33,148.50 $235.00 $47,211.50 $231.00 $46,407.90

2 2010-108B CLEARING AND GRUBBING ACRE 0.40 $70,000.00 $28,000.00 $50,000.00 $20,000.00 $49,000.00 $19,600.00

3 2010-108D TOPSOIL, CONTRACTOR PROVIDED CY 832 $35.00 $29,120.00 $32.50 $27,040.00 $20.00 $16,640.00

4 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, WASTE CY 3757 $20.00 $75,140.00 $17.50 $65,747.50 $15.00 $56,355.00

5 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 13 CY 10 $125.00 $1,250.00 $125.00 $1,250.00 $200.00 $2,000.00

6 2010-108G SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 IN. SY 3798.50 $2.75 $10,445.88 $2.15 $8,166.78 $10.00 $37,985.00

7 2010-108I SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID SY 100 $8.50 $850.00 $8.00 $800.00 $20.00 $2,000.00

8 2010-108J SUBBASE, MODIFIED 6 IN. SY 633.50 $23.50 $14,887.25 $20.00 $12,670.00 $12.00 $7,602.00

9 2010-108J SUBBASE, MODIFIED 12 IN. SY 3798.50 $19.00 $72,171.50 $19.30 $73,311.05 $24.00 $91,164.00

10 2010-108K REMOVALS, SIGN STRUCTURE EACH 1 $500.00 $500.00 $1,374.00 $1,374.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

11 3010-108D REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL CY 100 $37.00 $3,700.00 $48.20 $4,820.00 $35.00 $3,500.00

12 2501-8400172 TEMPOARY SHORING LS 1 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $54,179.00 $54,179.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

13 4010-108A SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC, 8 IN. LF 1923 $200.00 $384,600.00 $146.50 $281,719.50 $121.00 $232,683.00

14 4010-108C
SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), POLY 

WRAPPED, 8 IN.
LF 756 $150.00 $113,400.00 $170.50 $128,898.00 $170.00 $128,520.00

15 2501-8400172 SEWER MAIN, 2 INCH, HDPE, SDR-11, PPRESSURE RATED LF 400 $60.00 $24,000.00 $68.40 $27,360.00 $27.00 $10,800.00

16 4010-108E SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LF 533 $270.00 $143,910.00 $246.00 $131,118.00 $100.00 $53,300.00

17 4010-108E SEWER SERVICE, 1.5 INCH, HDPE, SDR-11, PRESSURE RATED LF 70 $85.00 $5,950.00 $137.50 $9,625.00 $54.00 $3,780.00

18 4010-108E FLUSHING VALVE, 2 INCH, W/ MANHOLE FRAME & LID, 10 INCH EACH 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,988.00 $2,988.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00

19 4010-108 SANITARY SEWER PIPE INSULATION LF 445 $15.00 $6,675.00 $12.60 $5,607.00 $15.00 $6,675.00

20 4010-108H REMOVAL OF SANITARY SEWER LF 1857 $28.00 $51,996.00 $15.80 $29,340.60 $25.00 $46,425.00

21 4010-108K SANITARY SEWER ABANDONMENT, PLUG, 8 IN. EACH 6 $1,900.00 $11,400.00 $665.50 $3,993.00 $800.00 $4,800.00

22 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 15 IN. LF 872 $125.00 $109,000.00 $97.10 $84,671.20 $65.00 $56,680.00

23 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 18 IN. LF 251 $135.00 $33,885.00 $104.00 $26,104.00 $74.00 $18,574.00

24 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 24 IN. LF 59 $235.00 $13,865.00 $164.00 $9,676.00 $90.00 $5,310.00

25 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 30 IN. LF 145 $245.00 $35,525.00 $176.50 $25,592.50 $135.00 $19,575.00

26 4020-108D REMOVAL OF STORM SEWER, RCP, LESS THAN 36 IN. LF 274 $27.00 $7,398.00 $73.50 $20,139.00 $20.00 $5,480.00

27 4030-108B 15" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 3 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $1,143.00 $3,429.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00

28 4030-108B 18" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,203.00 $1,203.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00

29 4030-108B 30" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 2 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $1,456.00 $2,912.00 $1,700.00 $3,400.00

30 4030-108C RCP APRON FOOTINGS 4030.221 EACH 6 $1,600.00 $9,600.00 $718.50 $4,311.00 $1,400.00 $8,400.00

31 4030-108D PIPE APRON GUARD, 18 IN. EACH 1 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,142.00 $1,142.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00

32 4030-108D PIPE APRON GUARD, 30 IN. EACH 2 $1,800.00 $3,600.00 $1,564.00 $3,128.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00

33 4040-108A SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED PLASTIC PIPE, TYPE SP, 8 IN. DIA. LF 5066.50 $20.00 $101,330.00 $14.80 $74,984.20 $28.00 $141,862.00

34 CFD.01 SUBDRAIN OUTLETS, CFD.01 EACH 27 $600.00 $16,200.00 $550.00 $14,850.00 $100.00 $2,700.00

35 4040-108E SUBDRAIN TAP, 6" EACH 34 $800.00 $27,200.00 $550.00 $18,700.00 $300.00 $10,200.00

36 5010-108A
WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, 4 IN., POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE 

GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED JOINTS
LF 56.90 $233.00 $13,257.70 $214.00 $12,176.60 $150.00 $8,535.00

37 5010-108A
WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, 8 IN., POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE 

GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTAINED JOINTS
LF 2963 $205.00 $607,415.00 $180.00 $533,340.00 $150.00 $444,450.00

38 5010 TEMPORARY WATER MAIN LS 1 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $150,007.00 $150,007.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

39 5010-108C FITTINGS BY WEIGHT, DUCTILE IRON LBS 6184 $10.00 $61,840.00 $8.65 $53,491.60 $20.00 $123,680.00

40 5010-108E WATER SERVICE, 3/4 IN. LF 12 $225.00 $2,700.00 $342.00 $4,104.00 $225.00 $2,700.00

41 5010-108E WATER SERVICE, 1 IN. LF 552 $220.00 $121,440.00 $185.00 $102,120.00 $172.62 $95,286.24

42 5010-108E WATER SERVICE, 1 1/4 IN. LF 11 $250.00 $2,750.00 $385.00 $4,235.00 $481.82 $5,300.02

43 5010-108H WATER MAIN REMOVAL LF 2204 $60.00 $132,240.00 $27.80 $61,271.20 $20.00 $44,080.00

44 5020-108A ISOLATION VALVE, 2 INCH W/ VALVE BOX EACH 4 $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,404.00 $5,616.00 $1,600.00 $6,400.00

45 5020-108A ISOLATION VALVE, 1.5 INCH W/ VALVE BOX EACH 1 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,222.00 $1,222.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00

46 5020-108A VALVE, GATE, DIP, 4 IN. EACH 1 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $1,503.00 $1,503.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00

47 5020-108A VALVE, GATE, DIP, 8 IN. EACH 10 $2,400.00 $24,000.00 $2,341.00 $23,410.00 $3,400.00 $34,000.00

48 5020-108C FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 8 $7,000.00 $56,000.00 $7,508.00 $60,064.00 $9,000.00 $72,000.00

49 5020-108J FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY REMOVAL EACH 4 $600.00 $2,400.00 $501.00 $2,004.00 $1,500.00 $6,000.00

50 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 48 IN. EACH 17 $6,000.00 $102,000.00 $5,781.00 $98,277.00 $10,000.00 $170,000.00

51 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 60 IN. EACH 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $12,879.00 $12,879.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

52 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.303, 48 IN. EACH 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $5,511.00 $5,511.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00

53 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.401, 48 IN. EACH 5 $7,800.00 $39,000.00 $5,504.00 $27,520.00 $6,500.00 $32,500.00

54 6010-108B Intake, Type 401 Each 3 $5,000.00 $15,000.00 $5,504.00 $16,512.00 $5,700.00 $17,100.00

55 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.501 EACH 2 $6,300.00 $12,600.00 $5,240.00 $10,480.00 $5,700.00 $11,400.00

56 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.502, 60 IN. EACH 1 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $9,844.00 $9,844.00 $9,400.00 $9,400.00

Engineer Estimate Dave Schmitt Construction Summers' Enterprise Inc.North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase 2 - Bid Tab

231

Item 19.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

Engineer Estimate Dave Schmitt Construction Summers' Enterprise Inc.North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase 2 - Bid Tab

57 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.502, 72 IN. EACH 1 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $12,727.00 $12,727.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00

58 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.505 EACH 13 $7,000.00 $91,000.00 $7,290.00 $94,770.00 $7,000.00 $91,000.00

59 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.509 EACH 1 $8,600.00 $8,600.00 $7,376.00 $7,376.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00

60 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.513 (4'x4') EACH 3 $8,200.00 $24,600.00 $6,304.00 $18,912.00 $7,300.00 $21,900.00

61 6010-108C DROP CONNECTION SANITARY SEWER, 8 IN., EXTERNAL EACH 1 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,892.00 $3,892.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00

62 6010-108G CONNECTION TO EXISTING MANHOLE EACH 1 $1,700.00 $1,700.00 $1,539.00 $1,539.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00

63 6010-108H REMOVALS, MANHOLE OR INTAKE EACH 16 $1,500.00 $24,000.00 $1,167.00 $18,672.00 $1,500.00 $24,000.00

64 7010-108A PCC PAVEMENT, CLASS C-4, CLASS 3 DURABILITY, 7 IN. SY 446 $75.00 $33,450.00 $61.50 $27,429.00 $100.00 $44,600.00

65 7010-108E CURB AND GUTTER, SLOPED, 4 IN. LF 3116.40 $35.00 $109,074.00 $25.00 $77,910.00 $47.00 $146,470.80

66 7010-108E CURB AND GUTTER, DROPPED, 0 IN. LF 2475.20 $30.00 $74,256.00 $26.00 $64,355.20 $45.00 $111,384.00

67 2304-0101000 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT, 6 IN. PCC SY 110.90 $100.00 $11,090.00 $56.50 $6,265.85 $75.00 $8,317.50

68 7020-108B HMA PAVEMENT, ST, 7 IN. SY 3609.10 $70.00 $252,637.00 $62.50 $225,568.75 $93.00 $335,646.30

69 7030-108A REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY SY 708 $14.00 $9,912.00 $18.00 $12,744.00 $20.00 $14,160.00

70 7030-108H DRIVEWAYS, PCC, 6 IN. SY 1010.10 $100.00 $101,010.00 $67.30 $67,979.73 $80.00 $80,808.00

71 7030-108H CLASS A ROADSTONE TON 40 $90.00 $3,600.00 $40.00 $1,600.00 $35.00 $1,400.00

72 7040-108H REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 5866.20 $12.00 $70,394.40 $10.80 $63,354.96 $20.00 $117,324.00

73 7040-108I REMOVAL OF CURB AND GUTTER LF 114 $16.50 $1,881.00 $14.00 $1,596.00 $15.00 $1,710.00

74 2505-4008120 REMOVAL OF GUARDRAIL LF 76 $17.00 $1,292.00 $18.00 $1,368.00 $15.00 $1,140.00

75 2401-6745765 LIGHT POLES, REMOVE EACH 2 $650.00 $1,300.00 $600.00 $1,200.00 $800.00 $1,600.00

76 2523-0000100
LIGHT POLES, 28' METAL POLE W/ DIRECT BURIED AND 6' MAST 

ARM
EACH 2 $5,500.00 $11,000.00 $5,500.00 $11,000.00 $6,000.00 $12,000.00

77 2523-0000200 ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS LF 30 $55.00 $1,650.00 $50.00 $1,500.00 $60.00 $1,800.00

78 8030-108A TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

79 2528-2518000 SAFETY CLOSURE EACH 14 $250.00 $3,500.00 $50.00 $700.00 $800.00 $11,200.00

80 8040 INTERSECTION MARKERS, TYPE "A" EACH 4 $7,000.00 $28,000.00 $16,500.00 $66,000.00 $8,000.00 $32,000.00

81 8040 INTERSECTION MARKERS, TYPE "B" EACH 2 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,800.00 $11,600.00 $8,000.00 $16,000.00

82 8040-108B TYPE A SIGNS, SHEET ALUMINUM SF 48.10 $45.00 $2,164.50 $24.00 $1,154.40 $100.00 $4,810.00

83 8040-108D PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POSTS LF 110 $50.00 $5,500.00 $13.00 $1,430.00 $40.00 $4,400.00

84 8040-108G PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE ANCHOR EACH 11 $160.00 $1,760.00 $40.00 $440.00 $500.00 $5,500.00

85 8040-108I REMOVE & REINSTALL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 7 $300.00 $2,100.00 $210.00 $1,470.00 $500.00 $3,500.00

86 2524-6765210 REMOVAL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 8 $275.00 $2,200.00 $80.00 $640.00 $200.00 $1,600.00

87 9010-108D WATERING MGAL 100 $160.00 $16,000.00 $61.20 $6,120.00 $20.00 $2,000.00

88 9010-108B
SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRO-SEEDING, TYPE 

4
ACRE 0.10 $5,000.00 $500.00 $10,198.00 $1,019.80 $24,000.00 $2,400.00

89 9010-108B
SEEDING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING, WILDFLOWER 

SEED
ACRE 0.30 $10,000.00 $3,000.00 $12,238.00 $3,671.40 $19,200.00 $5,760.00

90 9020-108A SOD SQ 307 $100.00 $30,700.00 $72.00 $22,104.00 $160.00 $49,120.00

91 9030 LANDSCAPING LS 1 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $57,862.00 $57,862.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00

92 9040-108E TEMPORARY RECP, TYPE 3B SY 804 $2.00 $1,608.00 $1.30 $1,045.20 $4.50 $3,618.00

93 9040-108F PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. LF 5329.50 $2.50 $13,323.75 $1.90 $10,126.05 $3.00 $15,988.50

94 9040-108F
REMOVAL OF PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE

LF 5329.50 $1.00 $5,329.50 $0.01 $53.30 $1.50 $7,994.25

95 9040-108J
REVETMENT, CLASS E RIP RAP APRON (& ENG. FABRIC) FOR PIPE 

OUTLET, 9040.111
TON 22 $65.00 $1,430.00 $58.20 $1,280.40 $90.00 $1,980.00

96 9040-108N SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, INSTALLATION LF 674 $2.50 $1,685.00 $2.05 $1,381.70 $7.00 $4,718.00

97 9040-108N SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, REMOVAL OF DEVICE LF 674 $0.75 $505.50 $0.01 $6.74 $3.00 $2,022.00

98 9040-108R TURF REINFORCEMENT MATTING (TYPE 2) SQ 1 $150.00 $150.00 $1,020.00 $1,020.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

99 9040-108T INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. EACH 24 $80.00 $1,920.00 $76.50 $1,836.00 $150.00 $3,600.00

100 9040-108T
MAINTENANCE OF INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL 

DEVICE
EACH 24 $55.00 $1,320.00 $1.00 $24.00 $100.00 $2,400.00

101 9070-108 REMOVE AND REINSTALL RETAINING WALL, AS PER PLAN SF 275 $150.00 $41,250.00 $96.00 $26,400.00 $110.00 $30,250.00

102 9070-108 REMOVAL OF EXISTING LANDSCAPING, AS PER PLAN LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $51,612.00 $51,612.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00

103 9070-108A MODULAR BLOCK RETAINING WALL SF 259 $55.00 $14,245.00 $40.00 $10,360.00 $50.00 $12,950.00

104 2602-0000500 OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER LF 18 $80.00 $1,440.00 $51.00 $918.00 $150.00 $2,700.00

105 2602-0000510
MAINTENANCE OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER

EACH 2 $55.00 $110.00 $1.00 $2.00 $400.00 $800.00

106 2602-0000520 REMOVAL OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 2 $55.00 $110.00 $1.00 $2.00 $200.00 $400.00

107 2602-0000530 GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EACH 30 $195.00 $5,850.00 $76.50 $2,295.00 $300.00 $9,000.00

108 2602-0000540 MAINTENANCE OF GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EACH 30 $55.00 $1,650.00 $1.00 $30.00 $200.00 $6,000.00

232

Item 19.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

Engineer Estimate Dave Schmitt Construction Summers' Enterprise Inc.North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase 2 - Bid Tab

109 2602-0000550 REMOVAL OR GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EACH 30 $55.00 $1,650.00 $1.00 $30.00 $100.00 $3,000.00

110 11020-108A MOBILIZATION LS 1 $350,000.00 $350,000.00 $171,000.00 $171,000.00 $200,000.00 $200,000.00

111 11030-108A MAILBOX, REMOVE AND REINSTALL EACH 31 $500.00 $15,500.00 $75.00 $2,325.00 $200.00 $6,200.00

112 11050-108A CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

Base Bid Total: $4,370,537.48 $3,606,866.70 $3,786,620.51

233

Item 19.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 2010-108A CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT 200.90 $165.00 $33,148.50 $100.00 $20,090.00 $235.00 $47,211.50

2 2010-108B CLEARING AND GRUBBING ACRE 0.40 $70,000.00 $28,000.00 $20,000.00 $8,000.00 $50,000.00 $20,000.00

3 2010-108D TOPSOIL, CONTRACTOR PROVIDED CY 832 $35.00 $29,120.00 $56.00 $46,592.00 $32.50 $27,040.00

4 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, WASTE CY 3757 $20.00 $75,140.00 $25.00 $93,925.00 $17.50 $65,747.50

5 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 13 CY 10 $125.00 $1,250.00 $44.00 $440.00 $125.00 $1,250.00

6 2010-108G SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 IN. SY 3798.50 $2.75 $10,445.88 $2.00 $7,597.00 $2.15 $8,166.78

7 2010-108I SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID SY 100 $8.50 $850.00 $2.50 $250.00 $8.00 $800.00

8 2010-108J SUBBASE, MODIFIED 6 IN. SY 633.50 $23.50 $14,887.25 $10.00 $6,335.00 $20.00 $12,670.00

9 2010-108J SUBBASE, MODIFIED 12 IN. SY 3798.50 $19.00 $72,171.50 $20.00 $75,970.00 $19.25 $73,121.13

10 2010-108K REMOVALS, SIGN STRUCTURE EACH 1 $500.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

11 3010-108D REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL CY 100 $37.00 $3,700.00 $60.00 $6,000.00 $50.00 $5,000.00

12 2501-8400172 TEMPOARY SHORING LS 1 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00

13 4010-108A SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC, 8 IN. LF 1923 $200.00 $384,600.00 $200.00 $384,600.00 $147.00 $282,681.00

14 4010-108C
SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), POLY 

WRAPPED, 8 IN.
LF 756 $150.00 $113,400.00 $220.00 $166,320.00 $171.00 $129,276.00

15 2501-8400172 SEWER MAIN, 2 INCH, HDPE, SDR-11, PPRESSURE RATED LF 400 $60.00 $24,000.00 $100.00 $40,000.00 $69.00 $27,600.00

16 4010-108E SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LF 533 $270.00 $143,910.00 $170.00 $90,610.00 $250.00 $133,250.00

17 4010-108E SEWER SERVICE, 1.5 INCH, HDPE, SDR-11, PRESSURE RATED LF 70 $85.00 $5,950.00 $100.00 $7,000.00 $138.00 $9,660.00

18 4010-108E FLUSHING VALVE, 2 INCH, W/ MANHOLE FRAME & LID, 10 INCH EACH 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $4,740.00 $4,740.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

19 4010-108 SANITARY SEWER PIPE INSULATION LF 445 $15.00 $6,675.00 $28.00 $12,460.00 $13.00 $5,785.00

20 4010-108H REMOVAL OF SANITARY SEWER LF 1857 $28.00 $51,996.00 $21.00 $38,997.00 $16.00 $29,712.00

21 4010-108K SANITARY SEWER ABANDONMENT, PLUG, 8 IN. EACH 6 $1,900.00 $11,400.00 $1,000.00 $6,000.00 $700.00 $4,200.00

22 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 15 IN. LF 872 $125.00 $109,000.00 $125.00 $109,000.00 $98.00 $85,456.00

23 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 18 IN. LF 251 $135.00 $33,885.00 $135.00 $33,885.00 $105.00 $26,355.00

24 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 24 IN. LF 59 $235.00 $13,865.00 $160.00 $9,440.00 $165.00 $9,735.00

25 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 30 IN. LF 145 $245.00 $35,525.00 $205.00 $29,725.00 $177.00 $25,665.00

26 4020-108D REMOVAL OF STORM SEWER, RCP, LESS THAN 36 IN. LF 274 $27.00 $7,398.00 $23.00 $6,302.00 $74.00 $20,276.00

27 4030-108B 15" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 3 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $1,150.00 $3,450.00

28 4030-108B 18" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00

29 4030-108B 30" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 2 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $1,475.00 $2,950.00

30 4030-108C RCP APRON FOOTINGS 4030.221 EACH 6 $1,600.00 $9,600.00 $1,000.00 $6,000.00 $725.00 $4,350.00

31 4030-108D PIPE APRON GUARD, 18 IN. EACH 1 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,150.00 $1,150.00

32 4030-108D PIPE APRON GUARD, 30 IN. EACH 2 $1,800.00 $3,600.00 $1,900.00 $3,800.00 $1,600.00 $3,200.00

33 4040-108A SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED PLASTIC PIPE, TYPE SP, 8 IN. DIA. LF 5066.50 $20.00 $101,330.00 $20.00 $101,330.00 $14.50 $73,464.25

34 CFD.01 SUBDRAIN OUTLETS, CFD.01 EACH 27 $600.00 $16,200.00 $400.00 $10,800.00 $550.00 $14,850.00

35 4040-108E SUBDRAIN TAP, 6" EACH 34 $800.00 $27,200.00 $600.00 $20,400.00 $550.00 $18,700.00

36 5010-108A
WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, 4 IN., POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE 

GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED JOINTS
LF 56.90 $233.00 $13,257.70 $155.00 $8,819.50 $215.00 $12,233.50

37 5010-108A
WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, 8 IN., POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE 

GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTAINED JOINTS
LF 2963 $205.00 $607,415.00 $160.00 $474,080.00 $181.00 $536,303.00

38 5010 TEMPORARY WATER MAIN LS 1 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $165,000.00 $165,000.00

39 5010-108C FITTINGS BY WEIGHT, DUCTILE IRON LBS 6184 $10.00 $61,840.00 $13.00 $80,392.00 $9.00 $55,656.00

40 5010-108E WATER SERVICE, 3/4 IN. LF 12 $225.00 $2,700.00 $100.00 $1,200.00 $350.00 $4,200.00

41 5010-108E WATER SERVICE, 1 IN. LF 552 $220.00 $121,440.00 $105.00 $57,960.00 $186.00 $102,672.00

42 5010-108E WATER SERVICE, 1 1/4 IN. LF 11 $250.00 $2,750.00 $285.00 $3,135.00 $400.00 $4,400.00

43 5010-108H WATER MAIN REMOVAL LF 2204 $60.00 $132,240.00 $23.00 $50,692.00 $28.00 $61,712.00

44 5020-108A ISOLATION VALVE, 2 INCH W/ VALVE BOX EACH 4 $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,400.00 $5,600.00 $1,500.00 $6,000.00

45 5020-108A ISOLATION VALVE, 1.5 INCH W/ VALVE BOX EACH 1 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00

46 5020-108A VALVE, GATE, DIP, 4 IN. EACH 1 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,550.00 $1,550.00

47 5020-108A VALVE, GATE, DIP, 8 IN. EACH 10 $2,400.00 $24,000.00 $3,000.00 $30,000.00 $2,350.00 $23,500.00

48 5020-108C FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 8 $7,000.00 $56,000.00 $10,000.00 $80,000.00 $7,550.00 $60,400.00

49 5020-108J FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY REMOVAL EACH 4 $600.00 $2,400.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $550.00 $2,200.00

50 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 48 IN. EACH 17 $6,000.00 $102,000.00 $7,000.00 $119,000.00 $5,800.00 $98,600.00

51 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 60 IN. EACH 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $12,900.00 $12,900.00

52 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.303, 48 IN. EACH 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $5,550.00 $5,550.00

53 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.401, 48 IN. EACH 5 $7,800.00 $39,000.00 $6,000.00 $30,000.00 $5,550.00 $27,750.00

54 6010-108B Intake, Type 401 Each 3 $5,000.00 $15,000.00 $6,300.00 $18,900.00 $5,550.00 $16,650.00

55 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.501 EACH 2 $6,300.00 $12,600.00 $5,400.00 $10,800.00 $5,300.00 $10,600.00

56 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.502, 60 IN. EACH 1 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00 $9,900.00 $9,900.00

North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase 2 - Bid Tab Engineer Estimate Boomerang Peterson Contractors Inc

234

Item 19.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase 2 - Bid Tab Engineer Estimate Boomerang Peterson Contractors Inc

57 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.502, 72 IN. EACH 1 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $12,800.00 $12,800.00

58 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.505 EACH 13 $7,000.00 $91,000.00 $7,500.00 $97,500.00 $7,300.00 $94,900.00

59 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.509 EACH 1 $8,600.00 $8,600.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $7,400.00 $7,400.00

60 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.513 (4'x4') EACH 3 $8,200.00 $24,600.00 $9,000.00 $27,000.00 $6,350.00 $19,050.00

61 6010-108C DROP CONNECTION SANITARY SEWER, 8 IN., EXTERNAL EACH 1 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,900.00 $3,900.00

62 6010-108G CONNECTION TO EXISTING MANHOLE EACH 1 $1,700.00 $1,700.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00

63 6010-108H REMOVALS, MANHOLE OR INTAKE EACH 16 $1,500.00 $24,000.00 $1,000.00 $16,000.00 $1,200.00 $19,200.00

64 7010-108A PCC PAVEMENT, CLASS C-4, CLASS 3 DURABILITY, 7 IN. SY 446 $75.00 $33,450.00 $82.00 $36,572.00 $62.00 $27,652.00

65 7010-108E CURB AND GUTTER, SLOPED, 4 IN. LF 3116.40 $35.00 $109,074.00 $35.00 $109,074.00 $30.00 $93,492.00

66 7010-108E CURB AND GUTTER, DROPPED, 0 IN. LF 2475.20 $30.00 $74,256.00 $32.00 $79,206.40 $30.00 $74,256.00

67 2304-0101000 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT, 6 IN. PCC SY 110.90 $100.00 $11,090.00 $65.00 $7,208.50 $57.00 $6,321.30

68 7020-108B HMA PAVEMENT, ST, 7 IN. SY 3609.10 $70.00 $252,637.00 $66.00 $238,200.60 $63.00 $227,373.30

69 7030-108A REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY SY 708 $14.00 $9,912.00 $16.00 $11,328.00 $18.00 $12,744.00

70 7030-108H DRIVEWAYS, PCC, 6 IN. SY 1010.10 $100.00 $101,010.00 $71.00 $71,717.10 $68.00 $68,686.80

71 7030-108H CLASS A ROADSTONE TON 40 $90.00 $3,600.00 $80.00 $3,200.00 $40.00 $1,600.00

72 7040-108H REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 5866.20 $12.00 $70,394.40 $11.00 $64,528.20 $10.75 $63,061.65

73 7040-108I REMOVAL OF CURB AND GUTTER LF 114 $16.50 $1,881.00 $17.00 $1,938.00 $14.00 $1,596.00

74 2505-4008120 REMOVAL OF GUARDRAIL LF 76 $17.00 $1,292.00 $25.00 $1,900.00 $18.00 $1,368.00

75 2401-6745765 LIGHT POLES, REMOVE EACH 2 $650.00 $1,300.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $650.00 $1,300.00

76 2523-0000100
LIGHT POLES, 28' METAL POLE W/ DIRECT BURIED AND 6' MAST 

ARM
EACH 2 $5,500.00 $11,000.00 $7,000.00 $14,000.00 $6,000.00 $12,000.00

77 2523-0000200 ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS LF 30 $55.00 $1,650.00 $160.00 $4,800.00 $60.00 $1,800.00

78 8030-108A TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

79 2528-2518000 SAFETY CLOSURE EACH 14 $250.00 $3,500.00 $54.00 $756.00 $100.00 $1,400.00

80 8040 INTERSECTION MARKERS, TYPE "A" EACH 4 $7,000.00 $28,000.00 $325.00 $1,300.00 $18,500.00 $74,000.00

81 8040 INTERSECTION MARKERS, TYPE "B" EACH 2 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $325.00 $650.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00

82 8040-108B TYPE A SIGNS, SHEET ALUMINUM SF 48.10 $45.00 $2,164.50 $26.00 $1,250.60 $25.00 $1,202.50

83 8040-108D PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POSTS LF 110 $50.00 $5,500.00 $14.00 $1,540.00 $15.00 $1,650.00

84 8040-108G PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE ANCHOR EACH 11 $160.00 $1,760.00 $43.00 $473.00 $45.00 $495.00

85 8040-108I REMOVE & REINSTALL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 7 $300.00 $2,100.00 $225.00 $1,575.00 $225.00 $1,575.00

86 2524-6765210 REMOVAL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 8 $275.00 $2,200.00 $270.00 $2,160.00 $100.00 $800.00

87 9010-108D WATERING MGAL 100 $160.00 $16,000.00 $30.00 $3,000.00 $75.00 $7,500.00

88 9010-108B
SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRO-SEEDING, TYPE 

4
ACRE 0.10 $5,000.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 $300.00 $12,000.00 $1,200.00

89 9010-108B
SEEDING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING, WILDFLOWER 

SEED
ACRE 0.30 $10,000.00 $3,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,500.00 $14,000.00 $4,200.00

90 9020-108A SOD SQ 307 $100.00 $30,700.00 $65.00 $19,955.00 $145.00 $44,515.00

91 9030 LANDSCAPING LS 1 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

92 9040-108E TEMPORARY RECP, TYPE 3B SY 804 $2.00 $1,608.00 $4.00 $3,216.00 $1.50 $1,206.00

93 9040-108F PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. LF 5329.50 $2.50 $13,323.75 $3.00 $15,988.50 $2.00 $10,659.00

94 9040-108F
REMOVAL OF PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE

LF 5329.50 $1.00 $5,329.50 $0.01 $53.30 $0.25 $1,332.38

95 9040-108J
REVETMENT, CLASS E RIP RAP APRON (& ENG. FABRIC) FOR PIPE 

OUTLET, 9040.111
TON 22 $65.00 $1,430.00 $100.00 $2,200.00 $60.00 $1,320.00

96 9040-108N SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, INSTALLATION LF 674 $2.50 $1,685.00 $2.50 $1,685.00 $2.25 $1,516.50

97 9040-108N SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, REMOVAL OF DEVICE LF 674 $0.75 $505.50 $0.01 $6.74 $0.25 $168.50

98 9040-108R TURF REINFORCEMENT MATTING (TYPE 2) SQ 1 $150.00 $150.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

99 9040-108T INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. EACH 24 $80.00 $1,920.00 $90.00 $2,160.00 $100.00 $2,400.00

100 9040-108T
MAINTENANCE OF INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL 

DEVICE
EACH 24 $55.00 $1,320.00 $1.00 $24.00 $25.00 $600.00

101 9070-108 REMOVE AND REINSTALL RETAINING WALL, AS PER PLAN SF 275 $150.00 $41,250.00 $100.00 $27,500.00 $100.00 $27,500.00

102 9070-108 REMOVAL OF EXISTING LANDSCAPING, AS PER PLAN LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $65,000.00 $65,000.00

103 9070-108A MODULAR BLOCK RETAINING WALL SF 259 $55.00 $14,245.00 $45.00 $11,655.00 $45.00 $11,655.00

104 2602-0000500 OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER LF 18 $80.00 $1,440.00 $60.00 $1,080.00 $75.00 $1,350.00

105 2602-0000510
MAINTENANCE OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER

EACH 2 $55.00 $110.00 $1.00 $2.00 $25.00 $50.00

106 2602-0000520 REMOVAL OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 2 $55.00 $110.00 $1.00 $2.00 $25.00 $50.00

107 2602-0000530 GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EACH 30 $195.00 $5,850.00 $100.00 $3,000.00 $100.00 $3,000.00

108 2602-0000540 MAINTENANCE OF GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EACH 30 $55.00 $1,650.00 $1.00 $30.00 $25.00 $750.00

235

Item 19.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase 2 - Bid Tab Engineer Estimate Boomerang Peterson Contractors Inc

109 2602-0000550 REMOVAL OR GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EACH 30 $55.00 $1,650.00 $1.00 $30.00 $25.00 $750.00

110 11020-108A MOBILIZATION LS 1 $350,000.00 $350,000.00 $600,000.00 $600,000.00 $350,000.00 $350,000.00

111 11030-108A MAILBOX, REMOVE AND REINSTALL EACH 31 $500.00 $15,500.00 $250.00 $7,750.00 $650.00 $20,150.00

112 11050-108A CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $500.00 $500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Base Bid Total: $4,370,537.48 $3,950,001.44 $3,974,144.58

236

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 18, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: West Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project 
  City Project Number RC-362-3212 
  Easements (Temporary and Permanent) 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning the reconstruction of the West Viking Road, primarily 
from Union Road to Hudson Road. The project requires the acquisition of temporary 
and permanent easements from seventeen (17) properties to complete construction. 
The project is in both the jurisdictional limits of Cedar Falls and Black Hawk County. All 
owners along the corridor have accepted our offer and are listed below: 
 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. Also attached are the 
individual Owner Purchase Agreements, and the documentation for each individual 
temporary or permanent easement. 
 

Parcel 
# 

Property Owner 
Street Address Jurisdiction Easement Type 

City County Permanent Temporary 

1 Johansen/Kalkhoff 6920 Viking Rd  X  X 

2 Schlotman 6910 Viking Rd  X  X 

3 Hager 6830 Viking Rd  X  X 

4 Schultes 6810 Viking Rd  X  X 

5 Zey 6728 Viking Rd  X  X 

6 Lorenzen 6716 Viking Rd  X  X 

7 Riggs 6702 Viking Rd  X X X 

8 Bullers 6616 Viking Rd  X  X 

9 KMTC Group, LLC 891427326001  X X X 

10 KMTC Group, LLC 891427401003  X X X 

11 Campbell 6314 Viking Rd  X  X 

12 Muncy 6206 Viking Rd X   X 

20 Elvain 6211 Viking Rd X   X 

21 Dickinson 6317 Viking Rd X   X 

22 Baridon 6337 Viking Rd X   X 

23 Jernigan 6415 Viking Rd X   X 

24 Nauholz 6421 Viking Rd X   X 

237

Item 20.



The City has used General Obligation Funds for the right-of-way portion of this project. 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for the West Viking Road Reconstruction Project under the original 
2019 Engineering Services Agreement on December 3rd, 2018. The City also entered 
into an agreement with Black Hawk County on August 8, 2023 for outlining the 
responsibilities between the City and the County with regards to design, right-of-way 
acquisition, financial contribution, construction, and future maintenance of West Viking 
Road from Union Road to the City Limits near Production Drive. Funds for this project 
are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in under item number 
142. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary closing documents and 
staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
approving all acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the City’s portion of the 
agreements for the West Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Lisa Roeding, City Controller/Treasurer 

238

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
1
.d

g
n

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

2
:1

0
:2

8
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

1
0

+
0
0

1
1
+
0
0

1
2

+
0
0

1
3

+
0
0

1
4

+
0
0

1
5

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.1

H
.1

2
0
'

W. VIKING ROADS
. 

U
N
IO

N
 R

O
A

D

GRADING LIMITS

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.00' LT

+69.27

33.00' LT

+67.03

33.00' LT

+33.03

45.50' LT

+04.30
45.50' LT

+74.30

R/W

PL

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1214 SF

38.00' LT

+26.50

38.00' LT

+56.50

8
.5
'

1
2
.5
'

30'

5
'1
0
'

30'

43.00' LT

+33.03

EASEMENT, 1288 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

41.50' LT

+26.50

41.50' LT

+56.50

38.00' LT

+74.30

38.00' LT

+04.30

38.00' LT

+93.00

43.00' LT

+93+00

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

2

6910 VIKING RD

TROY E SCHLOTMAN & ANDREAL SCHLOTMAN

1

6920 VIKING RD

LARRY A JOHANSEN & ANNA M KALKHOFF

27

2027 S UNION RD

DENNIS D NEBBIE & LINDA J NEBBIE

26

2027 S UNION RD

DENNIS D NEBBIE & LINDA J NEBBIE

239

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
2
.d

g
n

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

2
:1

0
:2

9
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

1
6

+
0
0

1
7

+
0
0

1
8

+
0
0

1
9

+
0
0

2
0

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.2

H
.2

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

53.00' LT

+68.26
53.00' LT

+28.26

33.00' LT

+65.07

R/W

PL

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1743 SF

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1642 SF2
5
'

58.00' LT

+13.83
58.00' LT

+43.83

2
0
'

38.00' LT

+68.26
38.00' LT

+28.26

38.00' LT

+13.83
38.00' LT

+43.83

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

4

6810 VIKING RD

MATTHEW L SCHULTES & SARAH A SCHULTES

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

26

2027 S UNION RD

DENNIS D NEBBIE & LINDA J NEBBIE

3

6830 VIKING RD

MICHAEL A HAGER & LYNETTE R HAGER 5

6728 VIKING RD

ROBERT J ZEY

5
'

30'

40'

5
'

33.00' LT

+93.57

240

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
3
.d

g
n

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

2
:1

0
:3

2
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

2
1
+
0
0

2
2

+
0
0

2
3

+
0
0

2
4

+
0
0

2
5

+
0
0

2
6

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.3

H
.3

2
0
'

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

53.00' LT

+30.12
53.00' LT

+20.34

77.50' LT

+80.06

48.00' LT

+80.06

2
0
'

1
5
'

45.50' LT

+30.84

45.50' LT

+60.84

R/W

PL

10' 
TRAIL

33.00' LT

+30.10

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1370 SF 1
2
.5
'

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 3810 SF

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1240 SF

77.50' LT

+20.06

4
4
.5
'

EASTMENT, 2660 SF
PERMANENT DRAINAGE 

38.00' LT

+30.84
38.00' LT

+60.84

38.00' LT

+30.10

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

6

6716 VIKING RD

RANDALL D LORENZEN & PATRICIA R LORENZEN

7

6702 VIKING RD

STEPHEN C RIGGS & JANICE L RIGGS

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

30'

60'

5
'

5
'

33.00' LT

+20.57

33.00' LT

+80.06

241

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

j
s
t
o
e
r

m
e
r

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
4
.d

g
n

2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4

3
:5

3
:1

0
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4

2
7

+
0
0

2
8

+
0
0

2
9

+
0
0

3
0

+
0
0

3
1
+
0
0

3
2

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.4

H
.4

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

1
5
'

10' TRAIL

33.00' LT

+62.66 1
5
'

1
5
'

48.00' LT

+62.66
EASEMENT, 5115 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 

EASEMENT, 1,965 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 

2
0
'

5
'

R/W

PL

48.00' LT

+70.00

53.00' LT

+70.00

53.00' LT

+95.27 58.00' LT

+95.27

33.00' LT

+95.26

36.73' LT

+95.26

43.94' LT

+50.29

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

8

6616 VIKING RD

ALICE D BULLERS

LEGEND

FEE ACQUISITION

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

9

KMTC GROUP, LLC

242

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

j
s
t
o
e
r

m
e
r

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
5
.d

g
n

3
/
5
/
2
0
2
4

9
:2

6
:0

9
 

A
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

3
/
5
/
2
0
2
4

3
2

+
0
0

3
3

+
0
0

3
4

+
0
0

3
5

+
0
0

3
6

+
0
0

3
7

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.5

H
.5

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.00' RT

+60.10

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E

43.00' RT

+60.10

1
3
'

5
'

1
5
'

5
'

6
8
'

1
3
'

60' RADIUS

60' RADIUS

482.5' RADIUS

480.5' RADIUS

18,492 SF ROW ACQUISITION

2,118 SF ROW ACQUISITION

R/W

PL

33.00' LT

+60.17

46.00' LT

+60.18

106.00' LT

+89.89

116.00' LT

+89.89

101.00' LT

+25.40

46.00' LT

+92.62

51.00' LT

+04.69

46.00' LT

+26.92

51.00' LT

+26.82

107.89' RT

+15.87

77.04' RT

+08.44

33.00' RT

+50.60

205.29' RT

+25.83

107.53' RT

+05.87

74.37' RT

+15.89

49.64' RT

+50.22

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
1,788 SF OF TEMPORARY

101.00' LT

+30.08

106.00' LT

+32.15

46.00' LT

+85.08

51.00' LT

+87.15

51.00' LT

+60.53

51.00' LT

+60.19

116.00' LT

+39.89

INSTALL NEW FIELD FENCE

INSTALL NEW FIELD FENCE

6
6
' 
R

O
W

24

6421 VIKING RD

JACOB G NAUHOLZ & JESSICA L NAUHOLZ

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

LEGEND

FEE ACQUISITION

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

9

KMTC GROUP, LLC

10

KMTC GROUP, LLC

243

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

j
s
t
o
e
r

m
e
r

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
6
.d

g
n

2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4

3
:5

4
:4

2
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4

3
8

+
0
0

3
9

+
0
0

4
0

+
0
0

4
1
+
0
0

4
2

+
0
0

4
3

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.6

H
.6

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.00' LT

+00.06

38.00' LT

+00.05

5
'

63.00' RT

+52.31
63.00' RT

+27.31
58.00' RT

+45.72

58.00' RT

+70.72

25' TEMPORARY EASEMENT

56.00' RT

+72.80

56.00' RT

+97.80

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 891 SF

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 2725 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 3330 SF

2
3
'

3
0
'

43.00' RT

+45.72

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 2772 SF

43.00' RT

+70.72

1
0
'

43.00' RT

+00.23

1
0
'

1
0
'

43.00' RT

+97.80
43.00' RT

+72.80
43.00' RT

+40.24

43.00' RT

+27.31
43.00' RT

+52.3133.00' RT

+00.23

33.00' RT

+40.24

R/W

PL

5
'

33.00' LT

+85.76

38.00' LT

+85.55

6
6
' 
R

O
W

11

6314 VIKING RD

DAVID W CAMPBELL

22

6337 VIKING RD

BRUCE L BARIDON & MARILYN D BARIDON

23

6415 VIKING RD

M L JERNIGAN & LINDA L JERNIGAN

24

6421 VIKING RD

JACOB G NAUHOLZ & JESSICA L NAUHOLZ

LEGEND

FEE ACQUISITION

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

2
7
' 
B
/B

10

KMTC GROUP, LLC

244

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

j
s
t
o
e
r

m
e
r

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
7
.d

g
n

2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4

2
:3

5
:4

6
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4

4
4

+
0
0

4
5

+
0
0

4
6

+
0
0

4
7

+
0
0

4
8

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.7

H
.7

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.00' RT

+43.20

10' TRAIL

TEMPORARY EASEMENT5
'

33.00' LT

+61.61

38.00' LT

+61.60

5
'

5
'

38.00' LT

+26.72

47.00' LT

+01.72

38.00' LT

+22.58
33.00' LT

+84.06

33.00' RT

+23.21

38.00' LT

+56.61

R/W

PL

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 865 SF

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 3450 SF

2
3
'

2
9
'

1
4
'

43.00' RT

+63.03

43.00' RT

+48.28

62.00' RT

+48.28
62.00' RT

+23.28

43.00' RT

+23.21

56.00' LT

+56.61

56.00' LT

+81.61

2
8
.5
'

43.00' RT

+73.27

61.50' RT

+73.27

61.50' RT

+08.27

43.00' RT

+43.20
43.00' RT

+08.27

1
0
'

53.50' LT

+92.58

53.50' LT

+22.58

2
0
.5
'

47.00' LT

+26.72

1
0
'

25'

30'

25'

5
'

EASEMENT, 2870 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 

EASEMENT, 860 SF
CONSTRUCTION 
TEMPORARY 

5
' 38.00' LT

+01.72
38.00' LT

+81.61

EASEMENT, 1870 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 

38.00' LT

+92.58

33.00' RT

+63.03

6
6
' 
R

O
W

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

20

6211 VIKING RD

MARVIN J MC ELVAIN & JEAN A MC ELVAIN

21

6317 VIKING RD

REBECCA D DICKINSON

22

6337 VIKING RD

BRUCE L BARIDON & MARILYN D BARIDON

19

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

12

6206 VIKING RD

JOHN C MUNCY & NANCY L MUNCY

11

6314 VIKING RD

DAVID W CAMPBELL

2
7
' 
B
/B

10

KMTC GROUP, LLC

245

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
8
.d

g
n

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

2
:1

0
:4

3
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

4
9

+
0
0

5
0

+
0
0

5
1
+
0
0

5
2

+
0
0

5
3

+
0
0

5
4

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.8

H
.8

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

10' TRAIL

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.13' RT

+28.56

75.17' LT

+90.46

33.00' LT

+90.53

38.00' LT

+90.52

R/W

PL

5
'

15'

CONTRACTOR TO TIE INTO EXISTING GRADE AT ROW LINE

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

12

JOHN C MUNCY & NANCY L MUNCY

12

6206 VIKING RD

JOHN C MUNCY & NANCY L MUNCY

19

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

246

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
1
7
.d

g
n

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

2
:1

1
:0

1
 
P

M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

2
3
1+

0
0

2
3
2

+
0
0

2
3
3

+
0
0

2
3
4

+
0
0

2
3
5

+
0
0

2
3
6

+
0
0

2
3
7

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.17

H
.1

7

2
0
'

INNOVATION DRIVE

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

R/W

PL

EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

EXISTING PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

1
0
'

1
0
'

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

43.50' LT

+33.05

33.50' LT

+32.55

32.50' RT

+29.62

42.50' RT

+29.23

247

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

j
s
t
o
e
r

m
e
r

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
1
8
.d

g
n

3
/
5
/
2
0
2
4

9
:5

5
:0

8
 

A
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

3
/
5
/
2
0
2
4

2
3
6

+
0
0

2
3
7

+
0
0

2
3
8

+
0
0

2
3
9

+
0
0

2
4

0
+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.18

H
.1

8

2
0
'

INNOVATION DRIVE

10' TRAIL

W
. V

IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

R/W

PL

PERMANENT PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT, 6220 SF

PERMANENT PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT, 6710 SF

GRADING LIMITS

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1
0
'

1
0
'

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

43.00' LT

+75.99

33.00' LT

+76.00

47.00' RT

+76.03

43.00' LT

+85.54

57.00' RT

+31.38

57.00' RT

+76.04

9

KMTC GROUP, LLC

248

Item 20.



249

Item 20.



250

Item 20.



251

Item 20.



252

Item 20.



253

Item 20.



254

Item 20.



255

Item 20.



256

Item 20.



257

Item 20.



258

Item 20.



259

Item 20.



260

Item 20.



261

Item 20.



262

Item 20.



263

Item 20.



264

Item 20.



265

Item 20.



266

Item 20.



267

Item 20.



268

Item 20.



269

Item 20.



270

Item 20.



271

Item 20.



272

Item 20.



273

Item 20.



274

Item 20.



275

Item 20.



276

Item 20.



277

Item 20.



278

Item 20.



279

Item 20.



280

Item 20.



281

Item 20.



282

Item 20.



283

Item 20.



284

Item 20.



285

Item 20.



286

Item 20.



287

Item 20.



288

Item 20.



289

Item 20.



290

Item 20.



291

Item 20.



292

Item 20.



293

Item 20.



294

Item 20.



295

Item 20.



296

Item 20.



297

Item 20.



298

Item 20.



299

Item 20.



300

Item 20.



301

Item 20.



302

Item 20.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
1
.d

g
n

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

2
:1

0
:2

8
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

1
0

+
0
0

1
1
+
0
0

1
2

+
0
0

1
3

+
0
0

1
4

+
0
0

1
5

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.1

H
.1

2
0
'

W. VIKING ROADS
. 

U
N
IO

N
 R

O
A

D

GRADING LIMITS

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.00' LT

+69.27

33.00' LT

+67.03

33.00' LT

+33.03

45.50' LT

+04.30
45.50' LT

+74.30

R/W

PL

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1214 SF

38.00' LT

+26.50

38.00' LT

+56.50

8
.5
'

1
2
.5
'

30'

5
'1
0
'

30'

43.00' LT

+33.03

EASEMENT, 1288 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

41.50' LT

+26.50

41.50' LT

+56.50

38.00' LT

+74.30

38.00' LT

+04.30

38.00' LT

+93.00

43.00' LT

+93+00

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

2

6910 VIKING RD

TROY E SCHLOTMAN & ANDREAL SCHLOTMAN

1

6920 VIKING RD

LARRY A JOHANSEN & ANNA M KALKHOFF

27

2027 S UNION RD

DENNIS D NEBBIE & LINDA J NEBBIE

26

2027 S UNION RD

DENNIS D NEBBIE & LINDA J NEBBIE

303

Item 20.



304

Item 20.



305

Item 20.



306

Item 20.



307

Item 20.



308

Item 20.



309

Item 20.



310

Item 20.



311

Item 20.



312

Item 20.



313

Item 20.



314

Item 20.



315

Item 20.



316

Item 20.



317

Item 20.



318

Item 20.



319

Item 20.



320

Item 20.



321

Item 20.



322

Item 20.



323

Item 20.



324

Item 20.



325

Item 20.



326

Item 20.



327

Item 20.



328

Item 20.



329

Item 20.



330

Item 20.



331

Item 20.



332

Item 20.



333

Item 20.



334

Item 20.



335

Item 20.



336

Item 20.



337

Item 20.



338

Item 20.



339

Item 20.



340

Item 20.



341

Item 20.



342

Item 20.



343

Item 20.



344

Item 20.



345

Item 20.



346

Item 20.



347

Item 20.



348

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 8, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: West Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project 
  City Project Number: RC-362-3212 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the West Viking Road Reconstruction and Trail Project. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, April 1st, 2024, at 7:00pm as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project and Friday, April 19th, 2024, at 2pm as the date and time 
for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be published 
by Thursday, April 4th, 2024. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution 
to contractors on Tuesday, April 2nd, 2024, via QuestCDN (reference #9016651), 
allowing more than two (2) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 

This project involves the reconstruction of W. Viking Road from Production Drive to 
Union Road, a single lane roundabout at the future intersection of Innovation Drive and 
W Viking Road, extension of Innovation Drive in the industrial park to Viking Road, 
installation of curb & gutter from Production Drive to Hudson Road, intersection 
improvements at Hudson Road, recreational trail from Hudson Road to Innovation 
Drive, recreational trail around northerly industrial park pond, sanitary sewer installation, 
water main installation, and roundabout landscaping. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $7,822,524.00. The project 
will be funded by Local Option Sales Tax, General Obligation Bond, and Tax Increment 
Financing – Unified Industrial Park (TIF-UN).  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the West Viking Road 
Reconstruction and Trail Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

349

Item 21.



DIVISION 2 EARTHWORK

2.01 2010-C Clearing and Grubbing LS 40,000.00$          1                40,000.00$        -$                    

2.02 2010-D-1 Topsoil, On-site CY 12.00$                  10,814      129,768.00$      -$                    

2.03 2010-E Excavation, Class 10 CY 10.00$                  33,194      331,940.00$      -$                    

2.04 2010-G Subgrade Preparation, 12" Depth SY 3.00$                    20,568      61,704.00$        -$                    

2.05 2010-I Subgrade Treatment, Geo Grid SY 6.00$                    2,000        12,000.00$        -$                    

2.06 2010-J Subbase, Modified, 6" Depth SY 10.00$                  2,645        26,450.00$        -$                    

2.07 2010-J Subbase, Modified, 12" Depth SY 14.00$                  20,342      284,788.00$      -$                    

2.08 2010-M Compaction Testing LS 20,000.00$          1                20,000.00$        -$                    

DIVISION 3 TRENCH EXCACATION AND BACKFILL

3.01 3010-F Trench Compaction Testing LS 20,000.00$          1                20,000.00$        -$                    

DIVISION 4 SEWERS AND DRAINS

4.01 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC, 8" LF 120.00$               1,446        173,520.00$      -$                    

4.02 4010-E Sanitary Sewer Service Stub, PVC, 4" LF 80.00$                  497           39,760.00$        -$                    

4.03 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 15" LF 60.00$                  4,167        250,020.00$      -$                    

4.04 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 18" LF 70.00$                  2,350        164,500.00$      -$                    

4.05 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 24" LF 80.00$                  1,069        85,520.00$        -$                    

4.06 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 30" LF 100.00$               28             2,800.00$          -$                    

4.07 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 36" LF 100.00$               351           35,100.00$        -$                    

4.08 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 66" LF 400.00$               79             31,600.00$        -$                    

4.09 4020-D Removal of Storm Sewer LF 25.00$                  760           19,000.00$        -$                    

4.10 4020-999-A Storm Sewer, Bend, 30 Degrees EA 2,000.00$            2                4,000.00$          -$                    

4.11 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 15" EA 3,000.00$            3                9,000.00$          -$                    

4.12 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 18" EA 3,500.00$            6                21,000.00$        -$                    

4.13 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 24" EA 4,000.00$            4                16,000.00$        -$                    

4.14 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 30" EA 4,500.00$            2                9,000.00$          -$                    

4.15 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 36" EA 5,000.00$            2                10,000.00$        -$                    

4.16 4030-B, C, D Pipe Apron, Guard, and Footing, 66" EA 8,000.00$            2                16,000.00$        -$                    

4.17 4040-A Subdrain, HDPE, 6" LF 16.00$                  9,373        149,968.00$      -$                    

4.18 4040-C-1 Subdrain Cleanout, PVC, 6", Type B EA 1,000.00$            7                7,000.00$          -$                    

4.19 4040-D-1 Subdrain Connect to Structure EA 250.00$               117           29,250.00$        -$                    

4.20 4040-D-1 Subdrain Outlet to Ditch EA 500.00$               2                1,000.00$          -$                    

4.21 4040-E Storm Sewer Service Stub, PVC, 1.5" Diameter LF 25.00$                  400           10,000.00$        -$                    

4.22 4040-999-A Subdrain Connection, Field Tile LF 25.00$                  200           5,000.00$          -$                    

4.23 4040-999-B Subdrain Outlet, Connect Existing Subdrain to Structure EA 400.00$               26             10,400.00$        -$                    

West Viking Road

Engineer's Opinion of Probable Project Costs

Updated March 6, 2024

SUDAS Item No. Item Description Unit Unit Price

Division 1 

Quantity

Division 2 

Quantity

Division 2         

Price

Item 

No.

Division 1          

Price

V:\Projects\2018\118.1174.08K\Design\Cost_Opinion_FinalPlan_2024-02-16.xlsm

350

Item 21.



SUDAS Item No. Item Description Unit Unit Price

Division 1 

Quantity

Division 2 

Quantity

Division 2         

Price

Item 

No.

Division 1          

Price

DIVISION 5 WATER MAINS AND APPURTENANCES

5.01 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12" LF 90.00$                  3,562        320,580.00$      -$                    

5.02 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12", Restrained Joint LF 100.00$               1,450        145,000.00$      -$                    

5.03 5010-C-2 Fitting By Weight, DI MJ LB 22.00$                  2,000        44,000.00$        -$                    

5.04 5010-D Water Service Stub, Copper, 3/4", Opposite Side EA 4,000.00$            9                36,000.00$        -$                    

5.05 5020-A Valve, Gate, 12" EA 4,000.00$            6                24,000.00$        -$                    

5.06 5020-C Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 7,000.00$            12             84,000.00$        -$                    

5.07 5020-G Valve Box Extension EA 1,000.00$            4                4,000.00$          -$                    

5.08 5020-I Fire Hydrant Adjustment EA 4,000.00$            3                12,000.00$        -$                    

DIVISION 6 STRUCTURES FOR SANITARY AND STORM SEWERS

6.01 6010-A Manhole, SW-301, 48" EA 8,000.00$            4                32,000.00$        -$                    

6.02 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 48" EA 5,000.00$            4                20,000.00$        -$                    

6.03 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 60" EA 7,000.00$            2                14,000.00$        -$                    

6.04 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 72" EA 9,000.00$            2                18,000.00$        -$                    

6.05 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 84" EA 12,000.00$          1                12,000.00$        -$                    

6.06 6010-B Intake, SW-507 EA 6,000.00$            51             306,000.00$      -$                    

6.07 6010-B Intake, SW-509 EA 8,000.00$            17             136,000.00$      -$                    

6.08 6010-B Intake, SW-510 EA 6,000.00$            1                6,000.00$          -$                    

6.09 6010-B Intake, SW-511 EA 4,500.00$            1                4,500.00$          -$                    

6.10 6010-B Intake, SW-512 EA 4,500.00$            4                18,000.00$        -$                    

6.11 6010-B Intake, SW-545 EA 6,000.00$            1                6,000.00$          -$                    

6.12 6010-E-1 Manhole Adjustment, Minor EA 1,000.00$            3                3,000.00$          -$                    

6.13 6010-F-1 Manhole Adjustment, Major EA 3,000.00$            3                9,000.00$          -$                    

6.14 6010-G-1 Connection to Existing Manhole EA 1,500.00$            3                4,500.00$          -$                    

6.15 6010-G-999 Connection to Existing Pipe EA 1,500.00$            8                12,000.00$        -$                    

6.16 6010-H-2 Remove Intake EA 1,500.00$            3                4,500.00$          -$                    

DIVISION 7 STREETS AND RELATED WORK

7.01 7010-A Pavement, PCC, 9" Depth, Class C SY 75.00$                  16,893      1,266,975.00$   -$                    

7.02 7010-E Curb and Gutter, PCC, 3.5' Wide, 9" Depth LF 40.00$                  2,801        112,040.00$      -$                    

7.03 7010-G Concrete Median, 6 "Depth SY 125.00$               186           23,250.00$        -$                    

7.04 7010-I PCC Pavement Samples and Testing LS 20,000.00$          1                20,000.00$        -$                    

7.05 7010-999-A Truck Apron with 9" PCC Base for Pavers SY 150.00$               348           52,200.00$        -$                    

7.06 7010-999-B Splitter Island with 9" PCC Base for Pavers SY 150.00$               115           17,250.00$        -$                    

7.07 7010-999-C Concrete Curb, 1' Wide LF 40.00$                  230           9,200.00$          -$                    

7.08 7010-999-D Planter Edging, Concrete, 6 "Wide LF 25.00$                  290           7,250.00$          -$                    

7.09 7020-I Asphalt Pavement Samples and Testing LS 5,000.00$            -            -$                    1                  5,000.00$          

7.10 7021-B Asphalt Overlay, 3" Depth, Surface, 0.5" Diameter, 58-28H, HT SY 25.00$                  -            -$                    3,387          84,675.00$        

7.11 7030-A-1 Removal of Sidewalk SY 15.00$                  40             600.00$              

V:\Projects\2018\118.1174.08K\Design\Cost_Opinion_FinalPlan_2024-02-16.xlsm

351

Item 21.



SUDAS Item No. Item Description Unit Unit Price

Division 1 

Quantity

Division 2 

Quantity

Division 2         

Price

Item 

No.

Division 1          

Price

7.12 7030-A-3 Removal of Driveway SY 10.00$                  540           5,400.00$          -$                    

7.13 7030-B Removal of Curb LF 25.00$                  100           2,500.00$          -$                    

7.14 7030-C Shared Use Path, PCC, 6" Depth SY 55.00$                  12,211      671,605.00$      -$                    

7.15 7030-D Special Subgrade Prep for Shared Use Path, 6" Depth SY 4.00$                    17,096      68,384.00$        -$                    

7.16 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 4" Depth SY 50.00$                  53             2,650.00$          -$                    

7.17 7030-F Brick/Paver for Truck Apron and Splitter Islands SF 16.00$                  3,649        58,384.00$        -$                    

7.18 7030-G Detectable Warnings SF 55.00$                  434           23,870.00$        -$                    

7.19 7030-H-1 Driveway, Paved, PCC, 6" Depth SY 65.00$                  1,429        92,885.00$        -$                    

7.20 7030-H-3 Driveway, Granular, 6" Depth TON 45.00$                  102           4,590.00$          -$                    

7.21 7040-A Full Depth Patches, PCC, 9" Depth SY 200.00$               150           30,000.00$        -$                    

7.22 7040-B Subbase Over-Excavation TON 60.00$                  48             2,880.00$          -$                    

7.23 7040-H Milling SY 10.00$                  -            -$                    3,387          33,870.00$        

7.24 7040-H Pavement Removal SY 8.00$                    10,850      86,800.00$        -$                    

7.25 7080-B Engineering Fabric SY 5.00$                    500           2,500.00$          -$                    

DIVISION 8 TRAFFIC

8.01 8010-A Traffic Signal Modifications LS 20,000.00$          1 20,000.00$        -$                    

8.02 8020-B Painted Pavement Markings, Solvent/Waterborne STA 150.00$               201 30,150.00$        -$                    

8.03 8020-G Painted Symbols and Legends, Solvent/Waterborne EA 250.00$               6 1,500.00$          -$                    

8.04 8020-K Pavement Markings Removed STA 100.00$               39 3,900.00$          -$                    

8.05 8020-M Grooves Cut for Pavement Markings STA 100.00$               201 20,100.00$        -$                    

8.06 8020-N Grooves Cut for Symbols and Legends EA 200.00$               6 1,200.00$          -$                    

8.07 8030-A Temporary Traffic Control LS 40,000.00$          1 40,000.00$        -$                    

8.08 8030-999-A Flagger CDAY 600.00$               20 12,000.00$        -$                    

8.09 8030-999-B Portable Dynamic Message Sign (PDMS) CDAY 200.00$               50 10,000.00$        -$                    

8.10 8040-A Traffic Signs, Type A EA 250.00$               41 10,250.00$        -$                    

8.11 8040-B Traffic Signs SF 5.00$                    268 1,340.00$          -$                    

8.12 8040-C Wood Posts LF 5.00$                    487 2,435.00$          -$                    

8.13 8040-I Remove, Salvage, and Reinstall Address Sign EA 200.00$               14 2,800.00$          -$                    

DIVISION 9 SITE WORK AND LANDSCAPING

9.01 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 6 AC 4,500.00$            15.0          67,500.00$        -$                    

9.02 9010-D Watering MGAL 100.00$               100.0        10,000.00$        -$                    

9.03 9030-B Plants with Warranty, Canopy Tree EA 700.00$               4.0            2,800.00$          -$                    

9.04 9030-B Plants with Warranty, Shrubs EA 65.00$                  28.0          1,820.00$          -$                    

9.05 9030-B Plants with Warranty, Ornamental Grasses EA 15.00$                  54.0          810.00$              -$                    

9.06 9030-999-A Mulch, Shredded Bark and Fabric SF 2.50$                    878.0        2,195.00$          -$                    

9.07 9030-999-B Mulch, Rock and Fabric CY 432.00$               14.0          6,048.00$          -$                    

9.08 9040-A-1 SWPPP Preparation LS 2,500.00$            1                2,500.00$          -$                    

9.09 9040-A-2 SWPPP Management LS 20,000.00$          1                20,000.00$        -$                    

V:\Projects\2018\118.1174.08K\Design\Cost_Opinion_FinalPlan_2024-02-16.xlsm

352

Item 21.



SUDAS Item No. Item Description Unit Unit Price

Division 1 

Quantity

Division 2 

Quantity

Division 2         

Price

Item 

No.

Division 1          

Price

9.10 9040-D-1 Filter Sock, 9" LF 3.00$                    20,000      60,000.00$        -$                    

9.11 9040-D-2 Filter Sock, Removal LF 1.00$                    20,000      20,000.00$        -$                    

9.12 9040-J Rip Rap, Class E TON 70.00$                  310           21,700.00$        -$                    

9.13 9040-N-1 Silt Fence LF 3.00$                    3,500        10,500.00$        -$                    

9.14 9040-N-2 Silt Fence, Removal of Sediment LF 0.50$                    3,500        1,750.00$          -$                    

9.15 9040-N-3 Silt Fence, Removal of Device LF 1.00$                    3,500        3,500.00$          -$                    

9.16 9040-O-2 Stabilized Construction Entrance TON 70.00$                  200.0        14,000.00$        -$                    

9.17 9040-Q-1 Erosion Control Mulching, Hydromulching AC 2,500.00$            30.0          75,000.00$        -$                    

9.18 9040-R Turf Reinforcement Mats, Type 2 SQ 100.00$               250.0        25,000.00$        -$                    

9.19 9040-T-1 Inlet Protection Device, Surface-Applied EA 100.00$               74             7,400.00$          -$                    

9.20 9040-T-2 Inlet Protection Device, Maintenance EA 50.00$                  148           7,400.00$          -$                    

9.21 9060-D Removal and Reinstallation of Existing Fence, Field Fence LF 20.00$                  2,000        40,000.00$        -$                    

9.22 9060-F Temporary Fence, Snow Fence LF 5.00$                    4,500        22,500.00$        -$                    

9.23 9080-C Safety Rail LF 250.00$               100           25,000.00$        -$                    

9.24 9920-999-A Mowing EA 300.00$               15             4,500.00$          -$                    

DIVISION 11 MISCELLANEOUS

11.01 11,020-A Mobilization LS 400,000.00$        1                400,000.00$      -$                    

11.02 10,030-A Maintenance of Postal Services LS 10,000.00$          1                10,000.00$        -$                    

11.03 11,030-B Maintenance of Solid Waste Collection LS 10,000.00$          1                10,000.00$        -$                    

11.04 11,040-B Temporary Granular Roadway SY 20.00$                  6,700        134,000.00$      -$                    

11.05 11,050-A Concrete Washout LS 20,000.00$          1                20,000.00$        -$                    

11.06 11,000-999-A Monument, Street Name EA 40,000.00$          4                160,000.00$      -$                    

11.07 11,000-999-B Monument, Welcome Sign EA 40,000.00$          2                80,000.00$        -$                    

11.08 11,000-999-D Electrical and Lighting, Roundabout LS 15,000.00$          1                15,000.00$        -$                    

11.09 11,000-999-E Street Light LS 400,000.00$        1                400,000.00$      -$                    

7,698,979.00$   123,545.00$      

7,822,524.00$  Total Construction Cost =

Subtotals =

V:\Projects\2018\118.1174.08K\Design\Cost_Opinion_FinalPlan_2024-02-16.xlsm

353

Item 21.



   FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

M E M O R A N D U M
Public Records Division

 TO: Honorable Mayor Danny Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 DATE: March 8, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Ordinance Adopting the 2024 Code of Ordinances  

 
Section 380.8 of the Code of Iowa requires that our Code of Ordinances be formally 
adopted at least once every five years. The Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances was last 
adopted in 2019 by Ordinance #2937.  Adoption of the attached ordinance simply 
reconfirms and codifies all of the individual ordinances adopted by the City Council 
during the past five years.  Thus, its adoption is not related to any new changes to or 
recodification of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me at 268-5115.  Thank 
you.   

354

Item 22.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613       (319) 268-5115 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 
 Section 1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this adopting ordinance is to enable the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, to comply with the provisions of Section 380.8 of the Code of Iowa.  
 
 Section 2.  Adoption.  The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby adopts 
the 2024 Code of Ordinances for the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 380.8 of the Code of Iowa. 
 
 Section 3.  Content.  The 2024 Code of Ordinances is composed of all City ordinances 
presently in effect, except grade ordinances, bond ordinances, zoning map ordinances, 
ordinances vacating streets and alleys, and ordinances containing legal descriptions of urban 
revitalization areas and urban renewal areas. 
  
 The 2024 Code of Ordinances shall include this adopting ordinance and the city clerk’s 
certification of its adoption and passage. 
 
 If the 2024 Code of Ordinances includes an ordinance that has adopted by reference 
the provisions of any statewide or nationally recognized standard code pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 380.10 of the Code of Iowa, the city clerk shall also keep on file, with the 
official copy of the city code, a copy of such standard code. 
 
 Section 4.  Format.  The 2024 Code of Ordinances shall be compiled in loose-leaf 
format. 
 
 Section 5.  Official Copy.  The city clerk shall be responsible for the compilation, 
organization and maintenance of the official 2024 Code of Ordinances and shall keep the 
official copy on file in the office of the city clerk. 
 
 Section 6.  Public Copies.  Additional copies of the 2024 Code of Ordinances shall be 
kept in the office of the city clerk and shall be available for public inspection and purchase. 
 
 Section 7.  Additional Ordinances.  All ordinances, except as hereinafter provided, 
adopted after the effective date of this ordinance shall be in the form of an amendment to or an 

355

Item 22.



2 
 

addition to the 2024 Code of Ordinances.  This section does not apply to grade ordinances, 
bond ordinances, zoning map ordinances, ordinances vacating streets and alleys, and 
ordinances containing legal descriptions of urban revitalization areas and urban renewal areas. 
 
 Section 8.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective after its passage and 
publication, as required by law. 
 

 

INTRODUCED:     March 18, 2024    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:         

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _  ____      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:  _____       

ADOPTED:      _      

 
 

_________________________ 
Danny Laudick, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

356

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 18, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Updates to City Code Section 23-300  
  Lawful Speed Limits Established 
  Center Street 
 
The newly designed and constructed streetscape of Center Street between Clair Street 
and Lone Tree Road near North Cedar Elementary has been completed. The 
improvements made through the corridor have been newly placed curbs, bio cells, and 
other streetscaping amenities. These improvements have provided additional traffic 
calming within the corridor. Additionally, the multi-way stop at Center Street and Lone 
Tree Road was installed last summer. Considering all these items, adjustments will shift 
to a 25mph zone from Lone Tree Road to Clair Street. 
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-300, Lawful 
Speed Limits Established, to match what has been designed and constructed. Please 
see the attached redline changes for City Code Section 23-300, Lawful Speed Limits 
Established.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approval of setting the speed limits in the 
corridor on the attached redline through the Center Street corridor from Clair Street to 
Lone Tree Road.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  
 

357

Item 23.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: Matthew Tolan, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 268-5161 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ENUMERATED SPEED LIMIT ON 
CENTER STREET AS 25 MILES PER HOUR FROM A POINT 200 FEET 
SOUTH OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH CLAIR STREET NORTH TO A POINT 
200 FEET NORTH OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONE TREE ROAD AND AS 
35 MILES PER HOUR FROM 300 FEET NORTH OF FIRST STREET NORTH 
TO A POINT 200 FEET SOUTH OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH CLAIR STREET 
AND FROM A POINT 200 FEET NORTH OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH LONE 
TREE ROAD NORTH TO THE NORTH CITY LIMITS, IN SECTION 23-300, 
LAWFUL SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED, OF DIVISION 5, SPEED, OF 
ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR 
VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA, BY 1.  REPEALING SUBSECTION 8(d) AND ENACTING A NEW 
SUBSECTION 8(d) IN LIEU THEREOF; AND REPEALING SUBSECTION 10(f) 
AND ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION 10(f) IN LIEU THEREOF; AND 2.  
REPEALING SUBSECTION 12(g) THEREOF. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. Subsection 8(d) and Subsection 10(f) of Section 23-300, Lawful Speed Limits 

Established, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in 
their entirety and new Subsections 8(d) and 10(f) are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 
Sec. 23-300. - Lawful speed limits established. 

Unless otherwise provided by this chapter or other city ordinances and appropriately 
posted, the speed limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in 
excess thereof shall be unlawful. 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 

   (8) Twenty-five miles per hour. 25 miles per hour on any of the following streets as 
indicated: 
 

358

Item 23.



2 

 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 
 

 d. Center Street, from a point 200 feet south of its intersection with Clair Street 
north to a point 200 feet north of its intersection with Lone Tree Road. 

 
[unchanged provisions omitted] 

 
(10) 35 miles per hour.  35 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated: 
 
                                   [unchanged provisions omitted] 
 
      f. Center Street, from a point 300 feet north of First Street north to a point 200 

feet south of its intersection with Clair Street, and from a point 200 feet north 
of its intersection with Lone Tree Road north to the north city limits. 

 
                                  [unchanged provisions omitted] 
 
Section 2.  Subsection 12(d) of Section 23-300, Lawful Speed Limits Established, of 

Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and 
subsequent Subsections are renumbered accordingly, as follows: 

 
(12)  45 miles per hour.  45 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated: 
 
                                   [unchanged provisions omitted] 
 

g. Dunkerton Road, from its intersection with U. S. Highway 218 east to the east 
city limits.  

h. Fitkin Road, from its intersection with Ford Road to Center Street.  

i. Ford Road, from its intersection with Fitkin Road south to Lone Tree Road.  

j. Greenhill Road, from its intersection with Hudson Road to the east city limits.  

k. Hudson Road, from its intersection with the south line of University Avenue south 
to the south city limits.  

l. Iowa Highway 58, from its intersection with Ridgeway Avenue south to the south 
city limits.  

m. Lake Street, from U.S. Highway 218 east to the east city limits.  

n. Leversee Road (West half), from a point one-quarter mile north of Lincoln Street 
to the north city limits.  

o. Lincoln Street, from its intersection with Vermont Street easterly to the city limits.  

p. Lone Tree Road, from its intersection with Center Street to Leversee Road.  

q. Main Street (South), from Viking Road south to the city limits.  

r. Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road west to the western city limits.  

s. Union Road, from the south city limits to West 1st Street.  

359

Item 23.



3 

 

t. Viking Road, from the east line of Prairie Parkway east to its intersection with 
Cedar Heights Drive.  

u. Ridgeway Avenue, from Iowa Highway 58 east to the eastern city limits.  

 
 
INTRODUCED:     ____________    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
ADOPTED:      ____________    
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                             Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

360

Item 23.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 1 of 4 

Sec. 23-300. Lawful speed limits established. 

Unless otherwise provided by this division or other city ordinances and appropriately posted, the speed 
limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in excess thereof shall be unlawful.  

(1) Parks, cemeteries, and alleys. 15 miles per hour in any park, cemetery, or public alley.  

(2) Business districts. 20 miles per hour in any business district.  

(3) Industrial districts. 25 miles per hour in any industrial district.  

(4) Residence districts; school districts. 25 miles per hour in any residence or school district.  

(5) Suburban districts. 45 miles per hour in any suburban district.  

(6) Fifteen miles per hour. 15 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. Clay Street, from West Third Street north to West Second Street.  

b. Pheasant Drive, for a distance of 210 feet east of the centerline of the jog in Pheasant Drive and 
for a distance of 200 feet west of the centerline of the jog in Pheasant Drive.  

(7) Twenty miles per hour. 20 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

Waterloo Road, from its intersection with 14th Street northwesterly to the intersection of Bluff Street 
and East 13th Street.  

(8) Twenty-five miles per hour. 25 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. 27th Street (West), from its intersection with Hudson Road west a distance of 1,800 feet.  

b. Brandilynn Boulevard, from 400 feet east of Wal-Mart Drive west to the west end of the street.  

c. Center Street, from its intersection with First Street to a point 300 feet north of First Street.  

d. Center Street, from a point 200 feet south of its intersection with Green Avenue Clair Street 
north to a point 200 feet north of its intersection with Lantz Avenue Lone Tree Road.  

e. Chancellor Drive, from Viking Road south to Ridgeway Avenue.  

f. Cottage Row Road, from Center Street south to a point 800 feet west of the south end of the 
Snag Creek Bridge.  

g. Technology Parkway, from Hudson Road east to Chancellor Drive.  

h. Wal-Mart Drive, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

i. Westminster Drive, from Viking Road north and east to Nordic Drive.  

(9) 30 miles per hour. 30 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from Main Street east to a point 850 feet east of Main Street.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 520 feet east of Main Street west to Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Main Street west to Highland Drive.  

d. Brandilynn Boulevard, from 400 feet east of Wal-Mart Drive east to the east end of the street.  

e. Main Street (South), from University Avenue south to Orchard Drive.  

f. Prairie Parkway, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

g. Winterberry Drive, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

361

Item 23.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 2 of 4 

(10) 35 miles per hour. 35 miles per hour on any of the following streets as indicated:  

a. 12th Street (West), from a point 425 feet west of the Carriage Lane intersection with West 12th 
Street to a point 125 feet west of the intersection of Barnett Drive with West 12th Street.  

b. 18th Street (East), from Main Street to Waterloo Road.  

c. 27th Street (West), from a point 1,800 feet west of Hudson Road west to a point 4,000 feet west 
of Hudson Road.  

d. Big Woods Road, from Lake Street north to the north city limits.  

e. Cedar Heights Drive, from its intersection with University Avenue to a point 1,200 feet south of 
University Avenue.  

f. Center Street, from a point 300 feet north of First Street north to a point 200 feet south of its 
intersection with Green Avenue Clair Street, and from a point 200 feet north of its intersection 
with Lantz Avenue  Lone Tree Road north to the north city limits.  

g. Cottage Row Road, from 800 feet west of the south end of the Snag Creek Bridge west to the end 
of said road.  

h. Dunkerton Road, from its intersection with Center Street east to its intersection with U. S. 
Highway 218.  

i. Greenhill Road, from Hudson Road west and north to West 27th Street.  

j. Hudson Road, from its intersection with the south line of University Avenue north to its 
intersection with First Street.  

k. Independence Avenue, from Lincoln Street north to Big Woods Road.  

l. Lake Street, from a point 600 feet east of Central Avenue east to U.S. Highway 218.  

m. Lincoln Street, from its intersection with Jefferson Street east to its intersection with Vermont 
Street.  

n. Lone Tree Road, from its intersection with Ford Road to Center Street.  

o. Main Street, from 13th Street to University Avenue, inclusive.  

p. Main Street (South), from Orchard Drive south to the end of the street.  

q. Production Drive, from Viking Road west and south to Technology Parkway.  

r. Rainbow Drive, from its intersection with Waterloo Road east to the city limits.  

s. Technology Parkway, from Hudson Road west to the west end of the street.  

t. University Avenue, from Hudson Road east to the east city limits.  

u. Viking Road, from its intersection with the west line of Prairie Parkway west to the west city 
limits.  

v. Waterloo Road, from its intersection with East 14th Street southeasterly to its intersection of 
University Avenue.  

w. Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road east to Iowa Highway 58.  

(11) 40 miles per hour. 40 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

Reserved.  

(12) 45 miles per hour. 45 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

362

Item 23.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 3 of 4 

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 850 feet east of Main Street to a point 1,520 feet east 
of Main Street.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 1,200 feet east of Main Street west to a point 520 feet 
east of Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Highland Drive west to a point 340 feet west of Lake Ridge Drive.  

d. 12th Street (West), from a point 125 feet west of the intersection of Barnett Drive with West 
12th Street to the west city limits.  

e. 27th Street (West), from a point 4,000 feet west of Hudson Road west to the west city limits.  

f. Cedar Heights Drive, from a point 1,200 feet south of University Avenue south to the city limits.  

g. Center Street, from a point 300 feet north of First Street to Cottage Row Road.  

h. Dunkerton Road, from its intersection with U. S. Highway 218 east to the east city limits.  

i. Fitkin Road, from its intersection with Ford Road to Center Street.  

j. Ford Road, from its intersection with Fitkin Road south to Lone Tree Road.  

k. Greenhill Road, from its intersection with Hudson Road to the east city limits.  

l. Hudson Road, from its intersection with the south line of University Avenue south to the south 
city limits.  

m. Iowa Highway 58, from its intersection with Ridgeway Avenue south to the south city limits.  

n. Lake Street, from U.S. Highway 218 east to the east city limits.  

o. Leversee Road (West half), from a point one-quarter mile north of Lincoln Street to the north city 
limits.  

p. Lincoln Street, from its intersection with Vermont Street easterly to the city limits.  

q. Lone Tree Road, from its intersection with Center Street to Leversee Road.  

r. Main Street (South), from Viking Road south to the city limits.  

s. Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road west to the western city limits.  

t. Union Road, from the south city limits to West 1st Street.  

u. Viking Road, from the east line of Prairie Parkway east to its intersection with Cedar Heights 
Drive.  

v. Ridgeway Avenue, from Iowa Highway 58 east to the eastern city limits.  

(13) 50 miles per hour. 50 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (West), from a point 340 feet west of Lake Ridge Drive west to Union Road.  

b. Union Road, from West First Street north to the north city limits.  

(14) 55 miles per hour. 55 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 1,520 feet east of Main Street east to a point 700 feet 
east of the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 
58 southbound overpass.  

363

Item 23.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 4 of 4 

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 600 feet west of the midpoint between the Iowa 
Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound overpass west to a point 
1,200 feet east of Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Union Road west to the west city limits.  

d. Iowa Highway 58, from a point 1,300 feet north of its intersection with Greenhill Road south to 
its intersection with Ridgeway Avenue.  

e. University Avenue, from a point 3,100 feet west of its intersection with Hudson Road to the west 
city limits.  

(15) 60 miles per hour. 60 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East), from its intersection with the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 
northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound overpass east a distance of 700 feet.  

b. Iowa Highway 58, from its intersection with First Street south to a point 1,300 feet north of its 
intersection with Greenhill Road.  

c. U.S. Highway 218 southbound, from a point 2,000 feet north of its intersection with Lincoln 
Street south to its intersection with First Street.  

d. U.S. Highway 218 northbound, from its intersection with First Street north to a point 410 feet 
north of its intersection with Lincoln Street.  

(16) 65 miles per hour. 65 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 700 feet east of its intersection with the midpoint 
between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound 
overpass east to the east city limits.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from the east city limits west to a point 600 feet east of its 
intersection with the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa 
Highway 58 southbound overpass.  

c. U.S. Highway 218 southbound, from the north city limits south to a point 2,000 feet north of its 
intersection with Lincoln Street.  

d. U.S. Highway 218 northbound, from a point 410 feet north of its intersection with Lincoln Street 
north to the north city limits.  

(Code 2017, § 26-207; Ord. No. 1935, §§ 2, 3, 2-25-1991; Ord. No. 1981, §§ 1—5, 7-13-1992; Ord. No. 1982, § 1, 7-
13-1992; Ord. No. 2002, §§ 1, 2, 1-11-1993; Ord. No. 2005, §§ 1, 2, 2-22-1993; Ord. No. 2116, §§ 2, 3, 9-11-1995; 
Ord. No. 2199, § 1, 8-11-1997; Ord. No. 2238, §§ 1, 2, 6-22-1998; Ord. No. 2244, § 2, 10-12-1998; Ord. No. 2314, §§ 
1, 2, 11-13-2000; Ord. No. 2315, §§ 1—5, 11-13-2000; Ord. No. 2325, §§ 1—3, 2-12-2001; Ord. No. 2358, §§ 1—3, 
11-26-2001; Ord. No. 2402, §§ 1, 2, 11-25-2002; Ord. No. 2403, §§ 1, 2, 11-25-2002; Ord. No. 2440, §§ 1, 2, 7-14-
2003; Ord. No. 2451, §§ 1—3, 9-22-2003; Ord. No. 2543, §§ 1, 2, 8-22-2005; Ord. No. 2589, §§ 1—6, 7-10-2006; 
Ord. No. 2601, §§ 1, 2, 9-25-2006; Ord. No. 2704, §§ 1—3, 2-22-2010; Ord. No. 2732, § 1, 2-28-2011; Ord. No. 
2767, §§ 1—4, 6-11-2012; Ord. No. 2772, §§ 1, 2, 7-23-2012; Ord. No. 2835, §§ 1, 2, 2-2-2015; Ord. No. 2898, §§ 1, 
2, 3-20-2017; Ord. No. 2917, §§ 1, 2, 2-19-2018; Ord. No. 2927, 6-18-2018; Ord. No. 2957, §§ 1—3, 11-4-2019; Ord. 
No. 2991, 8-2-2021) 

 

364

Item 23.



365

Item 24.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 03/18/24 COUNCIL MEETING



366

Item 24.



367

Item 24.



368

Item 24.



369

Item 24.



370

Item 24.



371

Item 24.



372

Item 24.



373

Item 24.



374

Item 24.



375

Item 24.



376

Item 24.



377

Item 24.



378

Item 24.



379

Item 24.



380

Item 24.



381

Item 24.



382

Item 24.



383

Item 24.



384

Item 24.



385

Item 24.



386

Item 24.



387

Item 24.



388

Item 24.



389

Item 24.



390

Item 24.



391

Item 24.



392

Item 24.



393

Item 24.



394

Item 24.



395

Item 24.



396

Item 24.



397

Item 24.



398

Item 24.



399

Item 24.



400

Item 24.



401

Item 24.



402

Item 24.



403

Item 24.



404

Item 24.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 03/18/24 MEETING



405

Item 24.



406

Item 24.



407

Item 24.



408

Item 24.



409

Item 24.



410

Item 24.



411

Item 24.



412

Item 24.



413

Item 24.



414

Item 24.



415

Item 24.



416

Item 24.



417

Item 24.



418

Item 24.



419

Item 24.



420

Item 24.



421

Item 24.



422

Item 24.



423

Item 24.



424

Item 24.



425

Item 24.



426

Item 24.



427

Item 24.



428

Item 24.



429

Item 24.



430

Item 24.



431

Item 24.



432

Item 24.



433

Item 24.



434

Item 24.



435

Item 24.



436

Item 24.



437

Item 24.



438

Item 24.



439

Item 24.



440

Item 24.



441

Item 24.



442

Item 24.



443

Item 24.



444

Item 24.



445

Item 24.



446

Item 24.



447

Item 24.



448

Item 24.



449

Item 24.



450

Item 24.



451

Item 24.



From: Kelly Dunn <Kelly.Dunn2@cedarfalls.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 28, 2024 2:48 PM 
To: Danny Laudick <Danny.Laudick@cedarfalls.com> 
Subject: Dunn Referrals  

  
Hello Mayor, 
 
I would like to make a couple of referrals for the next agenda that they are able to get 
on.  I know I am late for the next meeting.  They are as follows: 
 

1. Refer to work session what the future of the soon to be vacated Cedar Falls High 
School will look like and would also like to address what the future of the 
Sartori/Mercy One site would look like in the future, in the event that building is 
vacated. 

2. Refer (either work session or committee, whichever is best) review of future land 
use map in conjunction with Resilience Plan that is filed away and flood plain 
map with the thought that looking at green space and what requirements should 
be for any future development(s) especially where the Dry Run Creek and its 
watershed are concerned.  I am thinking of the concerns that were voiced during 
the meeting in January of this year regarding development near Aldrich 
Elementary. 

Please, let me know of questions or concerns.  Thank you! 
 
Regards, 
Kelly 
 

Kelly Dunn 

Council At Large 

City of Cedar Falls 
 

319-215-6891 

 
 

452

Item 25.

mailto:Kelly.Dunn2@cedarfalls.com
mailto:Danny.Laudick@cedarfalls.com

	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes-3/4/24
	240304MINUTES

	Item 2.	PH-Blackhawk Properties, LLC
	1_CC Memo for Blackhawk Properties, LLC Public Hearing 03-18-24
	2_Site Map
	3_Executed DA - Blackhawk Properties, LLC
	4_Authorizing Resolution - Blackhawk Propeerties, LLC
	5_Deed Without Warranty - Blackhawk Properties, LLC

	Item 3.	PH-Floodplain regulations
	1. CC Memo TA24-001.Flood Ordiance Amendments 3-4-24
	2. Redline Amended Code Language
	3. Flood Plain Map Adoption Ord 1

	Item 4.	Committee Minutes 03/04/2024
	03-04-2024 COW Minutes FINAL

	Item 5.	Boards & Commissions Resignation
	Resignation-Jennifer Onuigbo

	Item 6.	Boards & Commission Appointments
	2024-03-11_CSC_Lee_Reappoint

	Item 7.	Civil Service Certified List
	3321_001

	Item 8.	Retail alcohol
	03-18-24 Retail alcohol

	Item 10.	Quit Claim Deeds-Conveyance of Land to the City
	3231_001

	Item 11.	Assessment-307 N. Francis Assessment
	307 N Francis Street Assessment

	Item 12.	2024 City Initiative Day-Contract
	2024 City Volunteer Initiative Day of Service Contract MEMO
	2024 Day of Service City Contract
	Section 2 General Terms for Service Contracts - Effective  8.1.23
	Section 3 Contingent Terms for Service Contracts - Effective  8.1.23

	Item 13.	Tennis-Collab Program Agreement
	Tennis cover memo 2-29-24
	2024 Youth Tennis Agreement
	Insurance 2024
	Tennis.Res

	Item 14.	2023 Payment Standards change to SAFMR for Section 8 HCV Program
	Memo to cc  - Payment Standards for 2023 SAFMR 3-18-241

	Item 15.	1218 Cottage Row Road Floodplain Buyout
	1.  Memo Approving Asbestos Testing Agreement 3-18-2024
	2. Contract
	3. Contract exhibits

	Item 16.	Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities
	1. Council memo - BRIC Extension
	EMK-2021-BR-041-0003 - City of Cedar Falls - Time Ext Agreement Amendment

	Item 17.	M&R Agreement-Casey’s General Store
	1. Memo - Casey's General Store (1620 W 1st Street)
	2. MRA - Casey's General Store (1620 W 1st Street)

	Item 18.	2024 Street Restoration Project-Bid
	1. Memo Low Bid - 2024 Street Restoration
	2. Bid Tab

	Item 19.	North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase II-Bid
	1. Memo Low Bid - NCHA Recon Phase II
	Bid Tab

	Item 20.	West Viking Road Recon ROW
	1.Memo - W Viking Road ROW Acquisition
	2. ROW PLAN - W Viking Road 2024-03-06_FinalPlans
	3. City ROW-FINAL
	4. County ROW

	Item 21.	Plans Specifications and Estimate- West Viking Rd Reconstruction and Trail Project
	1. Memo PSE - W Viking Road Reconstruction
	2. EOPC - W Viking Road 2024-03-06

	Item 22.	Ord-Code of Ordinances
	1-memocccodeord-2024 (1)
	2-Ord-Adoption of Code 2024

	Item 23.	Ord.-Speed limit-Center Street
	1. Memo - Center Street Speed Limit Ordinance
	2. Center Street Speed Limit Ordinance
	3. Sec._23_300.___Lawful_speed_limits_established REDLINE

	Item 24.	Bills and Claims 3-18-24
	1 Daily Invoices 031824
	2 Council Invoices 031824

	Item 25.	Referral-Future of CFHS and Mercy One Buildings
	Dunn Referrals

	Bottom

